AGENDA

Regular Meeting of the Bedford City Council
Tuesday, March 25, 2014
Bedford City Hall Building A
2000 Forest Ridge Drive
Bedford, Texas 76021

Council Chamber Work Session 5:00 p.m.
Council Chamber Regular Session 6:30 p.m.

COMPLETE COUNCIL AGENDAS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION ARE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW
ONLINE AT http://lwww.bedfordtx.gov

WORK SESSION

e Review and discuss items on the regular agenda and consider placing items for approval by
consent.

e Staff report on Focus Area B — City Codes.
EXECUTIVE SESSION

To convene in the conference room in compliance with Section 551.001 et. Seq. Texas
Government Code, to discuss the following:

a) Pursuant to Section 551.071, consultation with City Attorney regarding pending or
contemplated litigation regarding 533 Bedford Road.

b) Section 551.071, consultation with City Attorney regarding pending or contemplated
litigation — Restaurants with alcohol sales in violation of Section 10.06 “Annual reporting
requirements for authorized restaurants with alcohol sales” of the City of Bedford’'s Code
of Ordinances.

REGULAR SESSION 6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER/GENERAL COMMENTS

INVOCATION (Pastor Dr. Kevin Smith, Faith Christian Fellowship Church)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

OPEN FORUM

(The public is invited to address the Council on any topic that is posted on this agenda. Citizens desiring to speak on Public Hearing(s) must do
so at the time the Public Hearing(s) are opened. In order to speak during Open Forum a person must first sign in with the City Secretary prior
to the Regular Session being called to order. Speakers will be called upon in the order in which they sign in. Any person not signing in prior to
the commencement of the Regular Session shall not be allowed to speak under Open Forum. Further, Open Forum is limited to a maximum of
30 minutes. Should speakers not use the entire 30 minutes Council will proceed with the agenda. At the majority vote of the Council the Mayor
may extend the time allotted for Open Forum.)

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ITEMS BY CONSENT

COUNCIL RECOGNITION

1. Employee Service Awards
2. Proclamation declaring April 2014 as Child Abuse Prevention Month in the City of Bedford.

3. Proclamation recognizing the Police Department’s Repeat Victimization Unit.



4. Presentation of a letter of recognition from the Greater Fort Worth Chapter of the American
Council of the Blind.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

5. Consider approval of the following City Council minutes:
a) March 3, 2014 board and commission work session
b) March 3, 2014 joint Planning and Zoning Commission work session
¢) March 11, 2014 regular meeting

PERSONS TO BE HEARD

6. The following individuals have requested to speak to the Council tonight under Persons to
be Heard.

a) Jessica Feldt, 2124 Shady Grove Drive, Bedford, Texas 76021 — Requested to speak to
Council regarding Ordinance No. 12-3039 Section 54-70 and requests that the Council
allow/approve property owners to use reusable containers to store trash and also to
dispose of trash from their property.

b) Kevin King, 1717 Arbor Mill Circle, Bedford, Texas 76021 — Requested to speak to
Council regarding the US Constitution.

OLD BUSINESS

7. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Marketing License
Agreement with Utility Service Partners (d/b/a Service Line Warranties of America) for the
National League of Cities (NLC) Service Line Warranty Program.

NEW BUSINESS

8. Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 22. “Building and Building Regulations”, Article
XIIl. *Fences”, Section 22-554. “Definitions”, Section 22-555. “Construction Permit Required”,
Section 22-557. “Height and Construction Requirements” and Section 22-558. “Maintenance”,
of the City of Bedford Code of Ordinances; providing a savings clause; providing a
severability clause; and providing an effective date.

9. Consider approval of an ordinance and all matters incident and related to the issuance and
sale of $3,200,000 “City of Bedford, Texas General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014,” dated
March 25, 2014.

10. Consider approval of an ordinance and all matters incident and related to the issuance and
sale of $2,300,000 “City of Bedford, Texas Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations,
Series 2014,” dated March 25, 2014.

11. Consider a resolution declaring expectation to reimburse expenditures with proceeds of
future debt.

12. Consider a resolution of the City Council of Bedford, Texas, authorizing the submission of
the grant application for a Repeat Victimization Unit storefront to the Office of the Governor,
Criminal Justice Division.

13. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the City of Fort Worth for the 2013 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant
(JAG) Formula Program Award.

14. Consider a resolution naming the Fort Worth Star-Telegram the official newspaper of the City
of Bedford and entering into an advertising contract with the Fort Worth Star-Telegram for
the term of one year.



15. Report on most recent meeting of the following Boards and Commissions:
v" Animal Shelter Advisory Board - Councilmember Boyter

v Beautification Commission - Councilmember Turner

v' Community Affairs Commission - Councilmember Boyter

v" Cultural Commission - Councilmember Nolan

v Library Board - Councilmember Davisson

v' Parks & Recreation Board - Councilmember Davisson

v" Senior Citizen Advisory Board - Councilmember Turner

v" Teen Court Advisory Board - Councilmember Champney

16. Council member reports
17. City Manager/Staff Reports

18. Take any action necessary as a result of the Executive Session
(Any item on this posted agenda may be discussed in executive session provided it is within one of the permitted categories under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government
Code.)

ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION

|, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the outside window in a display cabinet at the City Hall of the City of Bedford, Texas, a
place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted by the following date and time: Friday, March 21, 2014 at 5:00 p.m.,
and remained so posted at least 72 hours before said meeting convened.

Michael Wells, City Secretary Date Notice Removed

(Auxiliary aids and services are available to a person when necessary to afford an equal opportunity to participate in City functions and activities. Auxiliary aids and services
or accommodations must be requested in writing to the City Secretary’s Office a minimum of seventy-two hours (72) hours prior to the scheduled starting time of the posted
meeting. Requests can be delivered in person or mailed to the City Secretary’s Office at 2000 Forest Ridge Drive, Bedford, TX 76021, or emailed to mwells@bedfordtx.gov.
Some requests may take longer due to the nature, extent and/or availability of such auxiliary aids, services or accommodations.)


mailto:mwells@bedfordtx.gov�

y=X|Council Agenda Background

PRESENTER: Beverly Griffith, City Manager DATE: 03/25/14

Work Session

ITEM:

Staff report on Focus Area B — City Codes.

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

City Manager and staff will be presenting a recap of multiple areas regarding Code Compliance and
Inspections. In December 2013, Deputy Police Chief Les Hawkins presented a six month status
update on Code Compliance activity since the Division had been moved to the Police Department in
May of 2013. The purpose of this item is to update and expand upon the information presented in
December to include both Code Compliance and Inspections. Topics to be presented include, but
are not limited to, the following:

Related ordinance revisions to date

Resource allocation

Policies and Procedures

Past and current projects

Workload output comparisons

Additional programs implemented since last report
Recommendations for future program tools.

Nogkrwbdr

We look forward to the opportunity to share successes, as well as discussion of areas for
continued improvement.

ATTACHMENTS:
N/A




AGENDA

PRESENTER: Beverly Griffith, City Manager DATE: 03/25/14

Council Recognition

ITEM:

Employee Service Recognition

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

The following employees have completed a service period and are eligible for recognition:

Lasedric Johnson Police Department 5years
James Copley Fire Department 10 years
Jack Ventrca Fire Department 10 years
Michelle Wilson Police Department 25 years
ATTACHMENTS:

N/A




AGENDA

PRESENTER: Jim Griffin, Mayor DATE: 03/25/14

Council Recognition

ITEM:

Proclamation declaring April 2014 as Child Abuse Prevention Month in the City of Bedford.

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

Lindsey Dula, Director of Program Services with Alliance for Children, will be present to accept the
proclamation.

ATTACHMENTS:

Proclamation
Letter of Request




COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

WHEREAS, 229,138 investigations regarding reports of child abuse or neglect were reported in
Texas in 2013; and

WHEREAS, 5,689 cases of child abuse and neglect were confirmed in Tarrant County in 2013;
and

WHEREAS, 14 child deaths were attributed to abuse or neglect in 2013; and

WHEREAS, Alliance For Children provided child-focused services to 2,016 children in 2013;
which included 405 in the Northeast community; and

WHEREAS, Alliance For Children provided prevention education to over 30,000 adults and
children in Tarrant County in 2013; and

WHEREAS, these prevention programs succeed because of partnerships among agencies,
schools, religious organizations, law enforcement, parents and the business community; and

WHEREAS, everyone in the community should become more aware of child abuse prevention
and consider helping parents raise their children in a safe, nurturing environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, let it be known that I, Jim Griffin, Mayor of the City of Bedford, and the City
Council do hereby proclaim the month of April 2014 as:

Child Abuse Prevention Month

in the City of Bedford and urge all citizens to work together to help reduce child abuse and
neglect significantly in the years to come.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and
caused the seal of the City of Bedford to be affixed this
25th day of March, 2014.




COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

From: Helen Ortega [N

Sent: Wednesday, March 05, 2014 10:53 AM
To: Wells, Michael
Subject: Alliance For Children Prevent Child Abuse Month

Dear Mr. Wells,

Once again, we are asking the city of Bedford to show support by supporting a city
proclamation for Child Abuse Prevention Month this April.

| have attached a sample proclamation and | would appreciate it if you could let me know if it
can be read at one of your city council meetings. A representative from Alliance For Children
would be happy to attend and accept the proclamation.

Thank you for your past and continued support we look forward to working with you again this
year. Should you have any questions; please contact me.

Thank you,

Helen Ortega

Community Liaison, NE Center
817-427-3110 - phone
www.allianceforchildren.org



mailto:HOrtega@Allianceforchildren.org�
http://www.allianceforchildren.org/�
https://www.facebook.com/AllianceForChildrenTarrant�
https://twitter.com/afc_tarrant�

AGENDA

PRESENTER: Jim Griffin, Mayor DATE: 03/25/14

Council Recognition

ITEM:

Proclamation recognizing the Bedford Police Department’s Repeat Victimization Unit.

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

The Bedford Police Department was recognized by the Texas State Senate for the Repeat
Victimization Unit.

ATTACHMENTS:

Proclamation







AGENDA

Representatives from the Greater Fort Worth

PRESENTER: Chapter of the American Council of the Blind

DATE: 03/25/14

Council Recognition

ITEM:

Presentation of a letter of recognition from the Greater Fort Worth Chapter of the American Council
of the Blind.

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

The Greater Fort Worth Chapter of the American Council of the Blind would like to present to the
City Council a letter of recognition for the City’s support of the blind and visually impaired.
Representatives from the organization scheduled to be in attendance are: Ginger Kraft, President;
Sheila Derrick, Treasurer; Jean Russell, Program Director; and Edgar Henderson, Bedford resident
and Chapter Member. A representative of the Department of Assistive and Rehabilitation Services
may also be present.

ATTACHMENTS:

Letter of Request




COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

From: Ginger Kraft
To: Wells, Michael
Cc: Sheila Derrick; jean russell; Edgar Henderson; ||| | RN

Subject: Recognition from The American Council of the Blind
Date: Monday, March 17, 2014 11:51:50 AM

Dear Mr. Wells,

As we discussed, one of our members, Mr. Edgar
Henderson, a resident of Bedford, spoke to our Chapter
about the great things Bedford has done for the blind
community. It was proposed and accepted that we
publicly honor the city of Bedford and we would like to
present the city with a letter of recognition for your
support of the blind and visually impaired.

I believe Mr. Henderson talked to someone about the
agenda on March 25th as a good time to present our
document to the Mayor. If this is correct, please let me
know.

Those from our Chapter who will be in attendance are:

Ginger Kraft, President

Sheila Derrick, Treasurer

Jean Russell, Program Director

Edgar Henderson, resident of Bedford and a new
member of our Chapter

Since our document mentions the help of the
Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services
(DARS), we have asked them to send a representative
to attend the meeting.

We are very grateful for your support and help and
want to thank you for your service to the community.

Regards,


mailto:gkraft5@charter.net
mailto:Michael.Wells@bedfordtx.gov
mailto:sjderrick212@hotmail.com
mailto:jruss19@sbcglobal.net
mailto:edgar.henderson@att.net
mailto:irene.Resendes@dars.state.tx.us

AGENDA

Ginger Kraft, President
8400 Big Horn Way
Fort Worth, TX 76137
817 479-7465

The Greater Fort worth Area Council of the American
Council of the Blind



AGENDA

PRESENTER: Michael Wells, City Secretary DATE: 03/25/14

Minutes

ITEM:

Consider approval of the following City Council minutes:

a) March 3, 2014 board and commission work session

b) March 3, 2014 joint Planning and Zoning Commission work session
¢c) March 11, 2014 regular meeting

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

N/A

ATTACHMENTS:

March 3, 2014 board and commission work session
March 3, 2014 joint Planning and Zoning Commission work session
March 11, 2014 regular meeting




COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

STATE OF TEXAS 8§

COUNTY OF TARRANT 8§
CITY OF BEDFORD 8
The City Council of the City of Bedford, Texas, met in Work Session at 5:00 p.m. in the
TXI Conference Room, 1805 L. Don Dodson, on the 3rd day of March, 2014 with the
following members present:
Jim Griffin Mayor
Ray Champney Council Members
Jim Davisson
Patricia Nolan
Roy W. Turner
constituting a quorum.
Council Members Brown and Boyter were absent from the meeting.

Staff present included:

Beverly Griffith City Manager

David Miller Deputy City Manager
Michael Wells City Secretary

Cliff Blackwell Administrative Services Director
Roger Gibson Police Chief

Eric Griffin Deputy Police Chief
Cathy Haskell Senior Center Manager
Don Henderson Parks Superintendent
Tom Hoover Public Works Director
Meg Jakubik Asst. to the City Manager
Mirenda McQuagge-Walden Managing Director

Maria Redburn Library Manager
Jacquelyn Reyff Planning Manager

Bill Syblon Development Director
Eric Valdez Recreation Manager

CALL TO ORDER/GENERAL COMMENTS

The Mayor called the Work Session to order at 5:03 p.m.

WORK SESSION 5:00 p.m.

o Discussion on Board and Commission goals and direction.

Mayor Griffin stated that the goal of the meeting is to discuss the Boards and Commissions
giving them a unified direction based on Council’s vision. He asked that the Council liaisons
discuss what each Board or Commission is doing.

Teen Court Advisory Board




COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

Councilmember Champney discussed the purpose of the Board as described in their bylaws. He
stated that at the meetings he sits, listens, and responds to questions. He gives support for their
needs that are relevant to Bedford and brings those to Council for discussion. The Board works
very well and is beneficial to the three cities and he did not see any need for deviation from their
purpose. There was discussion on the Teen Court banquet, if there are enough funds for the
scholarships, the bylaws, and the fine structure.

Beautification Commission

Councilmember Turner discussed the purpose of the Commission, which is dedicated to the
beautification of the City from an aesthetic, resident, and visitor point-of-view. The staff liaison,
Don Henderson, works closely with Chairperson Faye Murphy. They are one of the most active
in terms of hands-on activities, specifically at the Boys Ranch. One of the projects they are
looking at are design improvements along Harwood Road. They are funded by a $10,000
contribution from the City’s waste contract. They use that money each year and receive a lot of
funding from donations from businesses. They run special projects throughout the year
including Clean Up Bedford Day, Chunk Your Junk Day, and the Crud Cruiser. They work
closely with Teen Court on beautification projects. They look for Council guidance in regards to
Council projects. In regards to Clean Up Bedford Day, there was discussion on doing something
south of the freeway; whether the Commission would entertain having two days; issues with
finding volunteers to cover the whole area; using the $400 donated the previous year for “pickup
sticks;” encouraging Boards and Commissions to show up as groups; that they have been
finding less help from companies this year; and working with homeowners associations. There
was consensus to find a secondary date for Clean Up Bedford Day and to have a sign-up sheet
at the March 29 event. There was discussion on getting more cooperation between Boards and
Commissions and the red plastic flowers at the entrance to the Boys Ranch. There was
discussion on the business awards, including that the process has been modified, that they will
discuss four or five nominations at their next meeting, and that they do not recognize residents
at this time. There was discussion on getting more containers for Chunk Your Junk Day.

Cultural Commission

Councilmember Nolan stated that the Commission just had their joint work session with Council
and there is an emphasis on trying to make the cultural district more visible. She did not realize
the amount of artists in the City and the Arts Talk held at the Old Bedford School was
enlightening. She stated that to really move forward on this issue, the City has to go big and she
hopes that the Council will go forward on a comprehensive master plan. There was discussion
on Twilight Thursdays, including having food trucks and art at the events. Managing Director
Mirenda McQuagge-Walden stated that she has met with Mark Chandler with the School District
and that they are trying very hard for to have a performance component and art exhibited at the
April 3 event. There will be beer, wine and dedicated food at the first Twilight Thursday and
there have been talks with Red Hot & Blue for an end of the season event. There was
discussion on having a pet happy hour and art booths at Twilight Thursdays, having school
orchestras come out to play, and coming up with plans.

Library Advisory Board

Councilmember Davisson stated that Library Manager Maria Redburn brings proposals for
changes to the Board on how things are run at the Library. These proposals have been vetted
by staff and legal counsel. The Board is made up of people who are very dedicated to the
Library and Ms. Redburn is the driving force. He will be asking for an item on the next agenda
regarding erecting a fence around the globe in the Library lobby. There was discussion on
adding more tables for the Mardi Gras event.



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

Senior Citizen Advisory Board

Councilmember Turner stated that the function of the Board is to organize leadership in senior
citizens to offer special services and recreation to seniors. It is run by a Board that meets
guarterly and is composed of senior citizens who are active in the Center. Activities include
dances and pottery. His main function as the liaison is to respond to problems they are having,
including issues with the pottery kiln the previous year. The most popular event of the Board is
the annual holiday luncheon and they have recently started doing breakfasts. He stated that
they would love to have a new center as there is limited space. There was discussion on
whether the current Senior Center lent itself to expansion.

Parks and Recreation Board

Councilmember Davisson stated that the Board has set goals for the coming year, including the
second phase of the dog park and working on the update to the Parks Master Plan. They are
working with Animal Control and the Beautification Commission to help with their projects,
including beautifying Carousel Park when it reopens. They are a very passionate group and
they have certain parks they check out before every meeting. In regards to the dog park, there
was discussion on having trees, new grass and shelters; the City's tree farm; the donation of
trees; what would be done if the School District takes the property; the walking trails and the
District being willing to co-op on something going through the area; that physical structures
could not be built under the power lines and that Oncor owns a portion of the property; and
incorporating a cultural component in the Parks Master Plan.

Animal Shelter Advisory Board

Mayor Griffin discussed setting some direction on what the Board wants to work towards,
including a renewed emphasis on assistance and help to the Shelter, the list of volunteers and
rescue organizations, promoting the pet fairs, and supporting the staff. There was discussion on
finding more and better ways to get pets adopted from the Shelter; the lack of people being able
to take the animals; other cities using volunteer groups in their endeavors; a volunteer liaison
position; forming a “Friends of the Shelter” group; the Shelter facility; joining activities with the
Cities of Hurst and Euless; enhancing animal control to serve the citizens of Bedford and to
better care for animals; the new software having pictures of animals; tying into networks of
rescue groups; and joint pet adoptions.

There was discussion on having information on the duties of Boards and Commissions available
to applicants at the time of Council interviews; and Council taking Board and Commission
recommendations into consideration.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Griffin adjourned the meeting at 6:19 p.m.

Jim Griffin, Mayor

ATTEST:

Michael Wells, City Secretary



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

STATE OF TEXAS 8§
COUNTY OF TARRANT 8§

CITY OF BEDFORD 8§

The City Council of the City of Bedford, Texas, met in joint work session with the
Planning and Zoning Commission at 6:30 p.m. in the TXI Conference Room, 1805 L. Don
Dodson on the 3rd day of March, 2014 with the following members present:

Jim Griffin Mayor
Chris Brown Council Members
Ray Champney

Jim Davisson
Patricia Nolan
Roy W. Turner

constituting a quorum.
Councilmember Boyter was absent from the meeting.
The following members of the Planning and Zoning Commission were present:

Bill Reese

Todd Carlson

Roger Fisher

Mickey Hall

Bill Reese

Jason Sinisi

Lee Pierson (alternate)

Chairperson
Commissioners

constituting a quorum.

Staff present included:

Beverly Griffith City Manager

David Miller Deputy City Manager
Michael Wells City Secretary

Meg Jakubik Asst. to the City Manager
Mirenda McQuagge-Walden Managing Director
Jackie Reyff Planning Manager

Bill Syblon Development Director

Also in attendance:

Jayashree Narayanal
Jim Tharp

CALL TO ORDER/GENERAL COMMENTS

The Joint Work Session was called to order at 6:37 p.m.

Gateway Planning
Oxley Williams Tharp
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JOINT WORK SESSION 6:30 p.m.

e City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission Joint Work Session to discuss
the Central Bedford Development Zone (aka CBDZ) for the development of draft
guidelines.

Mayor Griffin discussed the City embarking on the CBDZ project with one of the steps being to
devise a new name for the project.

Development Director Bill Syblon introduced Jayashree Narayanal, with Gateway Planning, and
Jim Tharp with Oxley Williams Tharp, the consultants on the project. He discussed the projects
Vision Plan, which includes planning and implementing high quality, unique development being
critical to the future of the City in order to create a place that is desired by the residents.
Planning Manager Jacquelyn Reyff presented an overview of the Vision document that was
approved by Council in June of 2013. She displayed a map from the Vision document showing
the focus areas and presented a project summary and timeline, which included stakeholder
meetings, a public open house, staff and stakeholder charette meetings, and the final Vision
document. This meeting is to discuss text amendments to the Zoning Ordinance. She displayed
possible housing mixes that were agreed to in the Vision document as well as a map showing
the potential area for more office, retail, and restaurant development. She discussed examples
of demand for new retail and the general amount of square footage that could be absorbed,; infill
and redevelopment of the area around City Hall; and other standard concepts, including
distinction, walkability, mixture of land uses, parking and authenticity. She displayed a timeline,
as well as the next steps to be taken. It was stated that meetings were held with TXI, State
National and Harley-Davidson to get their input on the Vision.

Ms. Narayanal discussed use-based zoning, which she stated does not drive development and
is a one size fits all approach. It involves buffering the use between everything next to it,
minimal design standards, and is unpredictable and mostly auto-oriented. In design-based
zoning, the focus is on the form and the market drives the use. The standards are particular to
the concepts the City wants to achieve. It involves mixing uses, minimum and maximum
setbacks, transitions instead of buffers, and the creation of a predictable environment. The City
would act as a master developer by creating the context. The buildings would be allowed to
evolve as the market changes. The City would be proactive in establishing standards so that the
vision would be implemented at the end of the day. From an owner and developer standpoint,
there would be a more streamlined review process because there are a detailed set of
standards and they would know what is expected of them. Multiple property owners would be
able to take advantage of the scope. Sub-districts could also be established and more graphics
should be used. Issues to consider include administrative approvals; non-conforming uses and
sites including ensuring that standards are evolutionary and property owners are not punished
for making minor changes; and infrastructure improvements as a public/private partnership.

There was discussion that the design criteria would be used in the entire zone; linkages
between the Library, the Old Bedford School, and the Boys Ranch Park; public/private
partnerships including the 380 program and TIFS, and what would be best received by
developers and what would be most cost effective; the role the City would play in making
improvements; using the private sector as a catalyst; the Cultural District as a catalyst; concerns
over the administrative review process bypassing the Commission and Council, and that both
groups would still have input; and that putting these standards in the code would let the City
know exactly what it is going to get. There was discussion on the boundaries of the CBDZ,
including the sub-districts; the elements that are going to be in the Code; that the Code would
only be rewritten for the district; the area south of the freeway including the highway serving as
a barrier, finding ways to better connect it, having walkways over the highway in the future, and
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success north of the freeway serving as a catalyst; the types of businesses the City is trying to
attract, including corporate, medical offices and service-type retail, and where; creating an
environment where one lives, works and partakes of opportunities; invigorating growth and
sustainability; auto-orientation in regards to what is being built; the key component of the project
being location; proceeding with caution; becoming a cultural center and attracting businesses
that are focused on arts and culture; creating a unique vision that the City owns and is a point of
differentiation; creating an environment that is demand generating; partnering and creating
synergy with a company like Harley-Davidson; creating a civic place or plaza; the market driving
the users; creating a sense of community; attracting the right kind of businesses and if the City
has the right kind of demographics; the residential density presentation by Jason Claunch;
another primary component being that it would feed into existing businesses and keep the
momentum going; creating opportunities for the market to grow; finding a niche that is unique
and different; getting a developer that does a significant part; attracting national chains as
opposed to local businesses; demographics and the City being landlocked; the synergy
between the medical and entertainment districts, the Harley-Davidson building, the CBDZ, and
City facilities including the Library, Boys Ranch and the Old Bedford School; a new city hall
being a catalyst and the City not feeling like community without a central area; and the City
owning a lot of land.

In regards to building height, there was discussion on the current restriction being 35 feet and if
there is a willingness to go higher to five or six stories with the right type of business; having
shared parking and garages; having buildings tall enough to be seen from the highway; and
having flexibility and transition standards. In regards to the placement of buildings, there was
discussion on ensuring that buildings are pulled to the front.

In regards to parking placement and standards, there was discussion on not micromanaging
parking requirements and creating a blended ratio for all commercial uses; letting the market
drive what the parking will be; the importance of where parking is located from a walking
standpoint; screening, the number of driveways and landscaping; creating joint agreements for
parking; the history of the development of parking standards; enforcing parking standards;
having parking lots in the back; and adding on-street parking. There was discussion on having
functional sidewalks and spending money on accents like trees and lighting; dealing with private
development and the City having the ultimate call on how the area is developed; what the main
street would be in the district including Parkwood Drive and L. Don Dodson; drive-thru designs
including an alternative design, expense, and choosing one that would work for all uses.

There was discussion on buildings needing access from the sidewalk; how the building frontage
design relates to the sidewalk; addressing shade through galleries, arcades or canopies;
ensuring that the design is suitable to store fronts; having windows and doors, as well as facade
articulation along the main streets so there are no blank walls; the current masonry requirement
being 60 percent; looking at more contemporary materials and designs; the need for flexibility;
being less restrictive as long as there are urban design standards and that it is style neutral; and
sign standards including identifying the different sign types and having a palette that allows for
blade signs.

There was discussion on standards for parks and open spaces; having courtyards and public or
private open spaces and amenities; creating common civic space to be a central gathering
place; balconies; what an ideal green space is and if there is a ratio; that there are different
scales for different kinds of parks; quality and amenities if the City owns the property and can
designate them on the map; having design standards for multifamily; there being a palette for
the developer to pick from; delineating on the map where parks, a new city hall or civic plaza are
to go; public/private partnerships and what the City has to do; that the City owns a lot of land
and has a lot of negotiating power; the City having more input; deciding on where a new city hall
would go; and the importance of standards for public parks and private open spaces.
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The next steps of the process are to take the original concept and refine it with the input from
the meeting. There was discussion on designhating where the main street area is going to be;
showing sub-districts; having a framework; building a model or having renderings; adding more
detail to the conceptual plan; and trees on Central Drive. The Council and the Commission were
of the consensus to hold their next joint meeting on April 1, 2014.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:29 p.m.

Jim Griffin, Mayor
ATTEST:

Michael Wells, City Secretary



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA
STATE OF TEXAS 8§
COUNTY OF TARRANT §
CITY OF BEDFORD 8
The City Council of the City of Bedford, Texas, met in Work Session at 6:00 p.m. and Regular

Session at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 2000 Forest Ridge Drive, on the 11th
day of March, 2014 with the following members present:

Jim Griffin Mayor
Michael Boyter Council Members
Ray Champney

Patricia Nolan
constituting a quorum.
Council Members Brown and Davisson were absent from the meeting.
Councilmember Turner arrived at 6:18 p.m.

Staff present included:

Beverly Griffith City Manager

David Miller Deputy City Manager
Stan Lowry City Attorney

Michael Wells City Secretary

Chuck Carlisle Facilities Manager
Roger Gibson Police Chief

Don Henderson Parks Superintendent
Jacquelyn Reyff Planning Manager
Bill Syblon Development Director

WORK SESSION

Mayor Griffin called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

o Review and discuss items on the regular agenda and consider placing items for approval by
consent.

Council discussed placing the following items on consent: 1, 3, and 4.

On Item #3, Council was of the consensus to change the wording of Item #7 in the Council’'s Mission
Statement to read: “Support and develop arts and culture in Bedford.”

Parks Superintendent Don Henderson presented information on Item #4, which is to retrofit the shower
heads at Splash. The retrofit has one valve, which can divert water to hot or cold. A person would press
one button for the water to run 45 seconds. This would save in maintenance and reduce water loss. In
answer to questions from Council, Mr. Henderson stated that the City has not done business with the
low bidder and has done business with the other bidder.

e Discussion regarding a grant proposal for a collaborative effort with the City of Hurst Police
Department for a storefront location for the Repeat Victimization Unit.

Police Chief Roger Gibson stated that his purpose is to bring to Council information on a competitive
grant with the Office of the Governor. He discussed the two main components of the Repeat
Victimization Program, which are domestic violence and mental health victimization. The City, along with
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the Cities of Hurst and Euless, works very closely with a representative from Tarrant County Mental
Health and Mental Retardation. This has been very successful and it is leading them to pursue a grant
through the same office, which Hurst is coordinating. If approved, the three agencies would have their
own mental health specialist. He feels like this grant will be approved based on the criteria from the
State. He discussed the Department having limited space and where to put the mental health specialist;
staff working more closely together leading to better coordination; and issues with interviewing victims,
including that many would rather go someplace other than the Law Enforcement Center. Therefore, staff
has been looking at a storefront operation, which Hurst has been looking at as well. He stated that with
these types of grants, cooperative efforts are more inclined to be approved and it would help negate the
costs for the initial set-up. He discussed issues with pursuing a second grant and that the City received
an exception from the State. The grant is for $60,000, which does not require a cash match but that
there would be some costs for getting everything in place. He discussed Hurst having requirements that
the storefront be in the Bellaire area. He stated that the grant money could be turned down even if it is
approved. He asked that Council give approval to continue the process as staff continues to gather
information and decide later on if they want to proceed.

In answer to questions from Council, Chief Gibson stated that the personnel side of grants typically roll
over for three years; that they would have to resubmit for the storefront grant yearly; and that he does
not anticipate Hurst stopping sharing the cost as they want to house four people out of the storefront,
which is not grant related and would be absorbed entirely by Hurst. Council was of the consensus to
move forward on pursuing the grant.

e Discussion regarding combining the Building and Standards Commission and the Zoning
Board of Adjustment into a single entity called the Board of Adjustment.

Development Director Bill Syblon asked Council for their approval on combining two lightly utilized
Boards and Commissions, the Zoning Board of Adjustment and the Building and Standards
Commission. He stated that they meet once or twice a year; one of the groups has had trouble getting a
guorum; and that it would make sense to combine them. This would give more work to individuals and
would be more efficient. If Council agrees, staff will come back with ordinance changes. They will work
with the City Attorney over the next month and hope to have a draft ordinance to Council by early April.
City Attorney Stan Lowry stated that the new board would have two separate roles as a traditional board
of adjustment and for buildings and standards; and that their respective ordinances would be combined.
There was discussion on issues getting a qualified engineer to be appointed. Council was of the
consensus to move forward on combining the two groups.

e Discussion regarding a masonry wall behind the old library building.

Deputy City Manager David Miller stated that the Zoning Ordinance requires that when a commercial
property backs up to a residential neighborhood, a masonry wall needs to be put up between the
properties. The old library was rezoned to commercial to allow TXI to occupy the building so a masonry
wall would have to be built. The City has received letters from both adjacent residential property owners
who have asked that the City not construct the wall. He presented three possible solutions as follows: 1)
Leave the ordinance as is and staff will move forward on the construction of the wall and bring back bids
for approval. The estimated costs are between $42,000 and $59,000 depending on the height of the
wall; 2) Change the masonry wall requirement to allow a waiver or appeal process to come to the
Council. For the appeal to be heard, there would be a requirement of a certain percentage of the
residential property owners stating they do not want the wall; or, 3) Change the ordinance so that
government buildings are exempt from the requirement.

In answer to questions from Council, he stated that in regards to other situations like this in the City,
Shipley’s Do-Nuts has put money in escrow to build a wall if the residential property behind them is
developed. Mr. Lowry stated that properties that were in existence prior to the requirement in the
ordinance would be grandfathered. In answer to further questions from Council, Mr. Miller stated that
staff would take the recommendations through the proper channels including the Planning and Zoning
Commission; that other City buildings are not commercial so the regulation would not kick in; and that
the regulation kicks in with TXI leasing the building as commercial. There was discussion on whether
the City was skirting its own rules and regulations; making TXI pay for the fence, to which it was stated
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that in lease agreements, such fences are usually built by the landowners; and that if the wall were to be
built, the City would move fairly quickly. In answer to questions from Council, Mr. Lowry stated that if
Council goes with the option of creating a variance process tied to a percentage of property owners, it
needs some permanency attached to it as it deals with zoning and land use; and that the percentage of
property owners could be defined as some perimeter of properties and that it is based on property
ownership that adjoins the fence. There was discussion on ordinances protecting residents; defining
adjacent residential neighborhoods; this being a unique situation; the three scenarios where this
situation could happen including new commercial property going in next to residential, a property being
converted from residential to commercial, and a public building being converted for commercial use.
City Manager Beverly Griffith stated that the residential property to the west of the building is shown to
be commercial on the City’'s Comprehensive Plan. In answer to questions from Council, Facilities
Manager Chuck Carlisle stated that the residents did not want the area to look like some sort of prison,
that they liked the aesthetic value of trees and open spaces, and that it would hurt the curb appeal of
the apartment complex. A majority of Council asked staff to move forward on creating a variance
procedure in conjunction with having a significant percentage of residents being opposed to a wall.

Mayor Griffin adjourned the Work Session at 6:41 p.m.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

To convene in the conference room in compliance with Section 551.001 et. Seq. Texas
Government Code, to discuss the following:

a) Pursuant to Section 551.071, consultation with City Attorney regarding pending or
contemplated litigation regarding 533 Bedford Road.

b) Pursuant to Section 551.071, consultation with City Attorney regarding pending or
contemplated litigation — Jonathan David Tsuchiya vs. The State of Texas et al.

Executive Session was moved to the end of the Regular Session.

Council convened into Executive Session pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.071,
consultation with City Attorney regarding pending or contemplated litigation regarding 533 Bedford Road
and Section 551.071, consultation with City Attorney regarding pending or contemplated litigation —
Jonathan David Tsuchiya vs. The State of Texas et al, at 7:18 p.m.

Council reconvened from Executive Session at approximately 7:39 p.m.

Any necessary action to be taken as a result of the Executive Session will occur during the Regular
Session of the Bedford City Council Meeting.

REGULAR SESSION 6:30 P.M.

The Regular Session began at 6:42 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER/GENERAL COMMENTS

Mayor Griffin called the meeting to order. He stated that Council Members Brown and Davisson were
unable to attend the meeting.

INVOCATION
Councilmember Turner gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was given.

OPEN FORUM
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Nobody chose to speak during Open Forum.

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ITEMS BY CONSENT

Motioned by Councilmember Champney to approve the following items by consent: 1, 3 and 4 with the
change for Item #3 to incorporate the new verbiage for the addition to the Mission Statement.

Councilmember Turner discussed an amendment to the minutes for the February 25, 2014 regular
meeting regarding the Investment Committee report, where it should read the City’s return for 2013 was
eight basis points instead of eight percent.

Councilmember Champney amended his motion to approve the following items by consent: the change
to the minutes as stipulated by Councilmember Turner in relationship to the eight percent versus eight
basis points from the financial report, 1, 3 and 4, with the appropriate adjustment to Item #3
incorporating arts and culture as part of the Mission Statement. The motion was seconded by
Councilmember Nolan.

Motion approved 5-0-0. Mayor Griffin declared the motion carried.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

1. Consider approval of the following City Council minutes:
a) February 24, 2014 joint work session
b) February 25, 2014 regular meeting

This item was approved by consent with a change to the minutes of the February 25, 2014 regular
meeting as follows: The report on the Investment Committee meeting stating that the City’s overall
return for 2013 was eight basis points instead of eight percent.

PERSONS TO BE HEARD

2. The following individual has requested to speak to the Council tonight under Persons to be
Heard.
a) Norman Ashton, 3304 Norman Lane, Bedford, Texas 76021 — Requested to speak to
the Council regarding home businesses.

Norman Ashton, 3304 Norman Lane, Bedford, Texas — Mr. Ashton requested to speak to Council
regarding code compliance with home businesses. His goal is for his property values stay up and that
things are not done to the neighborhoods to decline property values. He stated that since January 1, the
City has seen a seven percent decrease in property values based on information from Trullia.com. The
Council has part of their guidance to keep property values at the front and to maintain them. He stated
that he called Code Compliance a year ago regarding a neighbor operating a small engine repair shop.
The neighbor had 30 items listed on Craigslist and there was continuous noise from two-cycle engines.
A Code Officer came out and told Mr. Ashton that he was the problem, that the neighbor said that Mr.
Ashton was upset because he had been woken up early on a Saturday, and that the engines were for
the homeowner and the Boy Scouts. He sent an email to Council last Easter Sunday in which he told
them about the shop. Code went out again and found no code violations. He stated that home
businesses should be transparent and not increase people or traffic in the neighborhood, and that it is
unclear about that term being in the ordinance. He recently used the Better in Bedford app to report a
noise nuisance. He was contacted by Officer Brett Bowen who met with the homeowner and told them
that they were in violation of the ordinance. There has been a decrease in traffic and Craigslist
advertisements. He stated that the three critical focus areas of the Council are economic development,
City codes, and the budget. He displayed pictures of items being sold on Craigslist over a two-week
period. All the maintenance is being performed in a garage and a new shed in the back yard, and there
are fuel smells. He was told the previous year that the City ordinance does not mandate that a home
business be transparent to the neighborhood. Items to be considered are decreased property values as
nobody would want to purchase a home next to a small engine repair shop, unwanted neighborhood
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traffic, hazardous material storage, and grease on the sidewalks. He asked that the ordinance be
reevaluated in regards to transparency for home businesses. He likes home businesses and thinks they
should be allowed as long as they are transparent.

There was discussion on changes to Code Compliance and this issue being addressed and followed-up
on. In answer to questions from Council, Mr. Ashton stated that the pictures were pulled off of the
Craigslist website about three months previously; that the Better in Bedford app shows nearby issues
and may hinder Code Compliance; that Code Compliance could not find any signs of grease on the
sidewalks; that there are spots on the asphalt that may be coming from cars coming and going; and that
the gasoline smell has not been that bad the last couple of weeks. In answer to questions from Council,
Chief Gibson stated that the Police Department took over Code Compliance in June of the previous year
and that they responded to the first complaint later that month. The officer did not see a violation and
closed out the complaint. In January, Deputy Chief Les Hawkins saw the neighbor and asked Officer
Bowen to go to the location. The neighbor stated that the engine repair was a hobby and agreed that
after he sells a certain amount of items, he will be done. There are currently four items on Craigslist,
only one of which has to do with lawn care. He stated that he is not aware of the smell issue.

There was discussion on having staff make changes to the ordinance to rectify the situation moving
forward; looking at gaps in the ordinance based on this discussion; the meaning of the term
“transparency” and that it comes out of case law; and that the City's ordinance is not dissimilar to other
cities when it comes to home occupations. In answer to questions about a decline in home values, Ms.
Griffith stated that the decline mentioned is in listing prices rather than assessed value.

NEW BUSINESS

3. Consider a resolution of the City Council of the City of Bedford, Texas amending the Mission
Statement and the Focus Areas for the City of Bedford as determined during the 2014 City
Council Strategic Planning Session, to be effective upon its passage.

This item was approved by consent with the wording of Item #7 in the Council’s mission statement to
read: “Support and develop arts and culture in Bedford.”

4. Consider aresolution authorizing the purchase and installation of replacement shower units
at Splash in the amount of $24,996 from Riley Plumbing and Mechanical.

This item was approved by consent.

5. Report on most recent meeting of the following Boards and Commissions:
v" Animal Shelter Advisory Board - Councilmember Boyter

No report was given.
v Beautification Commission - Councilmember Turner

Councilmember Turner encouraged everybody to take advantage of Clean Up Bedford Day, which is on
March 29 starting at 8:00 a.m. at Meadow Park. It will be held in conjunction with Chunk Your Junk Day.

v' Community Affairs Commission - Councilmember Boyter
No report was given.
v Cultural Commission - Councilmember Nolan

Councilmember Nolan reported that the Commission will meet the following week and reminded
everybody of the Twilight Thursday event on April 3.

v' Library Board - Councilmember Davisson
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No report was given.

v' Parks & Recreation Board - Councilmember Davisson

No report was given.

v' Senior Citizen Advisory Board - Councilmember Turner

Councilmember Turner stated that the Board will meet again in April.

v' Teen Court Advisory Board - Councilmember Champney

Councilmember Champney reported that the Board met the previous Thursday and is finalizing plans for
the Teen Court Banquet on April 3. He addressed what Council discussed at their work session about
the Council helping the Board in performing their functions.

6. Council member reports

No other reports were given.

7. City Manager/Staff Reports

No report was given.

8. Take any action necessary as a result of the Executive Session

No action was necessary as a result of the Executive Session.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Griffin adjourned the meeting at 7:40 p.m.

Jim Griffin, Mayor

ATTEST:

Michael Wells, City Secretary



AGENDA

PRESENTER: See below DATE: 03/25/14

Persons to be Heard

ITEM:

a) Jessica Feldt, 2124 Shady Grove Drive, Bedford, Texas 76021 — Requested to speak to the
Council regarding Ordinance No. 12-3039 Section 54-70 and requests that the Council
allow/approve property owners to use reusable containers to store trash and also to dispose of
trash from their property.

b) Kevin King, 1717 Arbor Mill Circle, Bedford, Texas 76021 — Requested to speak to the Council
regarding the US Constitution.

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

N/A

ATTACHMENTS:

Letters of Request
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From: Jessica Felct [ [N

Sent: Thursday, March 13, 2014 2:05 PM

To: Wells, Michael

Subject: request to speak at the 03/25 board meeting.

Mr. Wells,

Per my phone call | would like to be put on the agenda to speak at the 03/25 city council meeting
My name is Jessica Feldt

My address is 2124 Shady Grove Dr. Bedford TX 76021

The reason | would like to speak is in regarding to Ord. No. 12-3039 section 54-70. | would like to
request the council to allow/approve property owners to use reusable containers to store trash and also
to dispose of trash from their property.

This suggestion has a positive impact on our environment, and would aid home owners in comply with
the city code above.

Thank you,
Jessica Feldt
Home owner


mailto:FELDTJ@michaels.com�

COMMUNIQUE 3,151/!4 AGENDA
g

b/"" A -./IC/@ .
March 19, 2014

I, Kevin Scott King, request a position in the Persons to be Heard' section of the March 25 City
Council meeting for the City of Bedford, TX. The subject will be 'The US Constitution'.

Address:
1717 Arbor Mill Cr
Apt 1622
Bedford, TX 76021

Regards,
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PRESENTER: David Miller, Deputy City Manager DATE: 03/25/14
Council Mission Area: Be responsive to the needs of the community.
ITEM:

Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Marketing License Agreement
with Utility Service Partners (d/b/a Service Line Warranties of America) for the National League of
Cities (NLC) Service Line Warranty Program.

City Attorney Review: Yes

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

At the February 25, 2014 Council Meeting, Council considered this resolution regarding a marketing
agreement with Utility Service Partners (d/b/a Service Line Warranties of America) (USP). At that
time, Council requested additional information, including additional letter templates, example
letters, and further information on the RFQ process used by the North Central Texas Council of
Governments (NCTCOG).

Attached are the letter templates provided by USP, which can be further modified to suit the
Council, and examples of actual letters used by cities participating in the program. NCTCOG
initiated the RFQ process in 2010 and engaged in a competitive process, which included the
participation of five member cities (Carrollton, Plano, Arlington, Forney, and Crandall). The
evaluation team scored the submittals based on the criteria set forth in the RFQ, as listed below:
e Philosophy of the firm as presented in cover letter
Stipulations of the service contract
Timeline for initial rollout
Quality of the service provider’s claims process (including denial rate)
Handling of customer grievances
Quality of service provider’s current partnership with cities, utility providers,
municipalities, etc.
e Level of communication to citizens about warranty program including: annual caps,
event caps, questions/concerns
e Level of customer protection if: the company goes out of business, there is a lien placed
on the home, etc.
Sustainability of firm based on financial information
Remuneration to COG/cities is a best fit for our situation
Ability and willingness of service provider to work with NCTCOG/cities
Experience with similar projects
References
Quality of partnership contracts
Quality of homeowner contracts
Qualifications of key personnel: managers, supervisors, and other team members
Contractor screening process
Included any affirmative action programs (if included, please add 3 points)
Quality of Responses: overall RFQ is written clearly and succinctly
Service provider has a clear understanding of the project
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For your reference, below are the highlights from the service agreement:
e The agreement term is three years with automatic renewals of one year. The City has the
ability to terminate the agreement with 90-day written notice.
e A License Fee of $0.50 for each month a Warranty shall be in force for a Residential
Property Owner. This will be paid annually in January.
e Two Marketing Campaigns will be conducted each year, in the spring and fall.
e The Warranty Pricing is as follows:
0 Sewer
= Year 1-$7.75 per month; $88.00 annually
=  Year 2 - $7.75 per month; $88.00 annually (subject to annual review)
=  Year 3-$7.75 per month; $88.00 annually (subject to annual review)
0 Water
"  Year 1l-$5.75 per month; $64.00 annually
= Year 2 - $5.75 per month; $64.00 annually (subject to annual review)
®  Year 3 - $5.75 per month; $64.00 annually (subject to annual review)

RECOMMENDATION:

If the City Council desires to participate in this program, please use the following motion:

Approval of a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Marketing License Agreement
with Utility Service Partners (d/b/a Service Line Warranties of America) for the National League of
Cities (NLC) Service Line Warranty Program.

FISCAL IMPACT: ATTACHMENTS:
Revenue: License Fee of $0.50 each month, per | Resolution
product/household, to be paid annually Marketing License Agreement

Letter Templates
Example Letters
Marketing Materials from USP

Page 2 of 2
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RESOLUTION NO. 14-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A MARKETING
LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS (D/B/A SERVICE LINE
WARRANTIES OF AMERICA) FOR THE NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES (NLC) SERVICE
LINE WARRANTY PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, sewer and water line laterals between the mainlines and the connection on the
residential private property are owned by individual residential property owners; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of Bedford, Texas desires to offer Residential Property
owners the opportunity, but not the obligation, to purchase a service line warranty; and,

WHEREAS, Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc. (d/b/a Service Line Warranties of
America) is the administrator of the National League of Cities Service Line Warranty
Program and has agreed to provide the Warranty to Residential Property Owners subject
to the terms and conditions in the agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BEDFORD,
TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the recitals above are found to be true and correct, and are
incorporated herein.

SECTION 2. That the City Council does authorize the City Manager to enter into a
Marketing License Agreement with Utility Service Partners (d/b/a Service
Line Warranties of America) for the National League of Cities Service Line
Warranty Program.

PRESENTED AND PASSED this 25th day of March 2014, by a vote of ____ ayes, ___ nays
and ___ abstentions, at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Bedford, Texas.

Jim Griffin, Mayor

ATTEST:

Michael Wells, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Stan Lowry, City Attorney
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SEWER AND WATER LINE MARKETING LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS, AND UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS PRIVATE
LABEL, INC. D/B/A SERVICE LINE WARRANTIES OF AMERICA

This SEWER AND WATER LINE MARKETING LICENSE AGREEMENT
("Agreement") entered into as of | ,20 ] ("Effective Date"), by and between the
City of Bedford, Texas ("City"), and Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc. d/b/a Service
Line Warranties of America ("SLWA"), herein collectively referred to singularly as "Party" and
collectively as the "Parties".

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, sewer and water line laterals between the mainlines and the connection on
residential private property are owned by individual residential property owners ("Residential
Property Owner"); and

WHEREAS, City desires to offer Residential Property Owners the opportunity, but not
the obligation, to purchase a service line warranty ("Warranty"); and

WHEREAS, SLWA is the administrator of the National League of Cities Service Line
Warranty Program and has agreed to provide the Warranty to Residential Property Owners
subject to the terms and conditions contained herein; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and with
the intent to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Purpose. City hereby grants to SLWA the right to offer the Warranty to Residential
Property Owners subject to the terms and conditions herein.

2. Grant of License. City hereby grants to SLWA a non-exclusive license ("License") to
use City's name and logo on letterhead, bills and marketing materials to be sent to Residential
Property Owners from time to time, and to be used in advertising, all at SLWA's sole cost and
expense and subject to City's prior review and approval, which will not be unreasonably
conditioned, delayed, or withheld. City agrees that it will not extend a similar license to any
competitor of SLWA during the term of this Agreement.
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3. Term. The term of this Agreement ("Term") shall be for three (3) years from the
Effective Date. The Agreement will automatically renew for additional one (1) year terms
("Renewal Term") unless one of the Parties gives the other written notice at least ninety (90)
days prior to end of the Term or of a Renewal Term that the Party does not intend to renew this
Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, either party may terminate this agreement, without
cause, by giving the other party ninety (90) days written notice. In the event that SLWA is in
material breach of this Agreement, the City may terminate this Agreement thirty (30) days after
giving written notice to SLWA of such breach, if said breach is not cured during said thirty (30)
day period. SLWA will be permitted to complete any marketing initiative initiated or planned
prior to termination of this Agreement after which time, neither Party will have any further
obligations to the other and this Agreement will terminate. During the Term, SLWA shall
conduct a Spring and Fall campaign each year in accordance with the schedules set forth in
Exhibit A. The pricing for each such campaign shall be in accordance with Exhibit A attached
hereto.

4. Consideration. As consideration for such license, SLWA will pay to City a License Fee
of [Fifty-Cents ($.50)] for each month a Warranty shall be in force for a Residential Property
Owner ("License Fee") during the term of this Agreement. The first payment shall be due by
January 30th of the year following the conclusion of first year of the Term. Succeeding License
Fee payments shall be made on an annual basis throughout the Term and any Renewal Term,
due and payable on January 30th of the succeeding year. Each License Fee payment herein shall
be paid within thirty (30) days after it becomes due. SLWA shall include with each License Fee
payment to City a statement signed by an SLWA corporate officer certifying the calculation of
the License Fee. City will have the right, at its sole expense, to conduct an audit, upon
reasonable notice and during normal business hours, of SLWA's books and records pertaining to
any fees due under this Agreement while this Agreement is in effect and for one (1) year after
any termination of this Agreement.

5. Indemnification. SLWA hereby agrees to protect, indemnify, and hold the City, its
elected officials, officers, employees and agents (collectively or individually, "Indemnitee")
harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, expenses, suits, actions, decrees,
judgments, awards, attorneys' fees and court costs (individually or collectively, "Claim"), which
an Indemnitee may suffer or which may be sought against or are recovered or obtainable from
an Indemnitee, as a result of, or by reason of, or arising out of or in consequence of any act or
omission, negligent or otherwise, of the SLWA or its officers, employees, contractors,
subcontractors, agents or anyone who is directly or indirectly employed by, or is acting in
concert with, the SLWA or its officers, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, or agents in
the performance of this Agreement; provided that the applicable Indemnitee notifies SLWA of
any such Claim within a time that does not prejudice the ability of SLWA to defend against
such Claim. Any Indemnitee hereunder may participate in its, his, or her own defense, but will
be responsible for all costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees, in connection with
such participation in such defense.

6. Notice. Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given

2
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when notice is (i) received by the Party to whom it is directed by personal service or (ii)
deposited as registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with the United States Postal
Service, addressed as follows:

To: City:
ATTN: David Miller
City of Bedford
2000 Forest Ridge
Bedford, TX 76021
Phone: (817) 952-2101

To: SLWA:
ATTN: Vice President, Business Development
Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc.
11 Grandview Circle, Suite 100
Canonsburg, PA 15317
Phone: (724) 749-1003

7. Modifications or Amendments/Entire Agreement. Any and all of the representations
and obligations of the Parties are contained herein, and no modification, waiver or amendment
of this Agreement or of any of its conditions or provisions shall be binding upon a party unless
in writing signed by that Party.

8. Assignment. This Agreement and the License granted herein may not be assigned by
SLWA without the prior written consent of the City.

9. Counterparts/Electronic Delivery. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,
all such counterparts will constitute the same contract and the signature of any Party to any
counterpart will be deemed a signature to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart.
Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or e-mail and upon receipt will be
deemed originals and binding upon the Parties hereto, regardless of whether originals are
delivered thereafter.

10.  Choice of Law/Attorney Fees. The governing law shall be the laws of the State of
Texas. In the event that at any time during the Term or any Renewal Term either Party institutes
any action or proceeding against the other relating to the provisions of this Agreement or any
default hereunder, then the unsuccessful Party shall be responsible for the reasonable expenses
of such action including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred therein by the successful Party.
Venue for any litigation shall be in Tarrant County, Texas.

11.  Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The above Recitals and Exhibit A attached
hereto are incorporated by this reference and expressly made part of this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day
and year first written above.

SEWER AND WATER LINE MARKETING LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

CITY OF BEDFORD AND UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS PRIVATE LABEL, INC.
D/B/A SERVICE LINE WARRANTIES OF AMERICA

CITY OF BEDFORD

UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS PRIVATE LABEL, INC.

By:

Brad H. Carmichael, Vice President

By:

Edwin F. Westfield, III, Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit A
NLC Service Line Warranty Program
City of Bedford, TX
Term Sheet
February 5, 2014
(Term Sheet valid for 90 days)

I. Term of agreement
a. Initial term
1. Three years guaranteed (total of 6 campaigns)
II. Annual royalty — $0.50 per month per paid warranty contract
a. City logo on marketing materials (resident letter and outer envelope)
b. Signature by city official
II1. Products offered
a. External sewer line warranty
b. External water line warranty
IV. Scope of Coverage
a. External sewer line warranty
1. Scope is from the street curb until line daylights inside home...of which includes
the service line under the concrete floor. [Note: If homeowner responsibility is different than
this language, please advise.]
b. External water line warranty
1. Scope is from the meter and/or curb box until it daylights inside home...of which
includes the service line under the concrete floor. [Note: If homeowner responsibility is
different than this language, please advise.]
V. Marketing Campaigns — two seasonal campaigns per year (Spring and Fall
a. 2014 Spring - Sewer
b. 2014 Fall - Water
c. 2015 Spring - Sewer
d. 2015 Fall - Water
e. 2016 Spring - Sewer
f. 2016 Fall - Water
VL. Pricing
a. Sewer
i. Year 1 - $7.75 per month; $88.00 annually
ii. Year 2 - $7.75 per month; $88.00 annually (subject to annual review)
iii. Year 3 - $7.75 per month; $88.00 annually (subject to annual review)
b. Water
i. Year 1 - $5.75 per month; $64.00 annually
ii. Year 2 - $5.75 per month; $64.00 annually (subject to annual review)
iii. Year 3 - $5.75 per month; $64.00 annually (subject to annual review)
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City of Anywhere

State

N T Py AUTO**5-DIGIT 26301
ﬁ John Smith
987 Main Street
Anytown, ST 12345

Re: Sewer Service Line Repair

Contact ID: 1234567 Coverage for [City] Homeowners

Reminder - Please disregard if you have already enrolled

Dear [Customer Name]:

Did you know that necessary repairs to the sewer line that runs between your home and the public utility connection
are the responsibility of the homeowner? You may be aware of efforts in communities across the country to
improve our public water and sewer service lines. The lines on your property are subjected to the same elements
as the [City] service lines — root invasion, ground shifting, fluctuating temperatures, age and more. Repair costs
for a broken or leaking sewer line on your property can cost you between $1,300 to upwards of $3,500 — a cost
that can be hard on your budget.

As a [City] homeowner and city official committed to introducing programs that will help improve quality of life and
bring cost savings to residents, | am pleased to introduce the Service Line Warranties of America (SLWA) Sewer
Line Warranty Program. For a small fee, sewer line repair coverage is provided up to $4,000 per repair, with no
annual caps or service fees. In the event of a broken, clogged or leaking service line on your property, with a single
call to a 24-hour toll-free hotline, a local, licensed, reputable plumber will be dispatched to your residence quickly
to make the repair...it's that simple!

As an accredited BBB organization that has maintained an A+ rating for more than 10 years, Service Line
Warranties of America has helped more than 60,000 homeowners across the country save over $45 million in
service line repair costs. The SLWA Sewer Line Warranty Program is the only service line protection program for
homeowners endorsed by the [City] City Council.

Enroll by [Date] to receive a discounted price of $ , which represents a savings of over _ % on the
standard monthly price. Save even more with an annual payment of $ and SLWA will waive the
normal 30 day waiting period — so you’ll enjoy immediate coverage!

Return the completed bottom portion of this letter in the enclosed, self-addressed, stamped envelope, or call
1-800-000-000 to speak with an SLWA agent Monday through Friday 8:00 am to 6:00 pm EDT. You can also learn
more — or enroll online — at www.slwofa.com.

Sincerely,

Mayor Name
Mayor

Complete warranty terms and conditions will be provided following enroliment. Program participation may be terminated at any time. You have
30 days from the date you enroll to receive a full refund. After 30 days, you will be reimbursed the pro rata share of any amount you paid for
any portion of the warranty period subject to cancellation.

Cut here [LETTERCD]
To enroll or to view the Terms and Conditions, please visit www.slwofa.com.

Please mark your selection:

L] Yes, please enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for just $ per month.
John Smith
987 Main Street L] 1 want to save more. Enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for $ per year.
Anytown, ST 12345
Contact ID: 1234567

| certify to the best of my knowledge that my line is in good working order.

Signature: Date:
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City of Anywhere

State

N T Py AUTO**5-DIGIT 26301
ﬁ John Smith
987 Main Street
Anytown, ST 12345

Re: Service Line Repair Coverage

Contact ID: 1234567 for Home/Property Owners

Reminder - Please disregard if you have already enrolled

Dear [Customer Name]:

Did you know that necessary repairs to the sewer line that runs between your home and the public utility connection
are the responsibility of the homeowner? While efforts are underway in many communities to improve public
water and sewer systems, these fixes don’t address the sewer lines located on your property, which are subject
to the same conditions as public lines — ground shifting, root invasion, fluctuating temperatures, age and more.

Should a sewer line on your property fail, you will need to find a reliable plumber to make the repair, which can
cost $1,300 to upwards of $3,500, a big hit to a budget. To help protect your budget from unexpected, expensive
service line repairs, and in keeping with our commitment to introduce programs to our residents that provide cost
savings and enhance quality of life, [City] is bringing a Sewer Line Warranty Program to our homeowners. After
evaluating available options, the Service Line Warranties of America (SLWA) Sewer Line Warranty Program
has been determined to provide the best value for our homeowners. For a small fee, needed repairs to your sewer
line will be covered up to $4,000 per repair incident with no service fees or deductibles, annual or lifetime limits. If
your sewer fails, simply call the 24-hour toll-free number to speak with an SLWA agent who will quickly dispatch a
local, licensed, reputable plumber to make the repair.

[City/City Council] fully supports the SLWA Service Line Warranty Program. An A+ accredited Better Business
Bureau member for more than 10 years, Service Line Warranties of America has helped more than 60,000
homeowners across the country save more than $45 million in service line repair costs. To learn more about the
program — and read what homeowners think — visit www.slwofa.com.

Enroll by [Date] to receive a discounted price of $ , which represents a savings of over _ % on the
standard monthly price, or save even more with the $ annual payment. And, SLWA will waive the 30
day waiting period, so you’ll receive immediate coverage!

Call 1-800-000-0000 to speak with an SLWA agent Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 6:00 pm EDT,
or return the completed bottom portion of this letter in the enclosed, self-addressed, stamped envelope or enroll
online at www.slwofa.com.

Sincerely,

Mayor Name
Mayor

Complete warranty terms and conditions will be provided following enroliment. Program participation may be terminated at any time. You have
30 days from the date you enroll to receive a full refund. After 30 days, you will be reimbursed the pro rata share of any amount you paid for
any portion of the warranty period subject to cancellation.

Q
o< Cut here [LETTERCD]
To enroll or to view the Terms and Conditions, please visit www.slwofa.com.
Please mark your selection:
L] Yes, please enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for just $ per month.
John Smith
987 Main Street L] I want to save more. Enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for $ per year.

Anytown, ST 12345
Contact ID: 1234567
| certify to the best of my knowledge that my line is in good working order.

Signature: Date:
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City of Anywhere

State

N T Py AUTO**5-DIGIT 26301
ﬁ John Smith
987 Main Street
Anytown, ST 12345

Re: Sewer Service Line Repair

Contact ID: 1234567 Coverage for Homeowners

Reminder - Please disregard if you have already enrolled

Dear [Customer Name]:

Did you know that necessary repairs to the sewer line that runs between your home and the public utility connection
are the responsibility of the homeowner? Whether the service line is located on your property or lies beneath
the city, it is impacted by the same elements — ground shifting, root invasion, fluctuating temperatures, age and
more. Should the sewer line on your property spring a leak, clog or break, you will have to find and pay a plumber
to make the repair, which can cost $1,300 to upwards of $3,500. The expense of this kind of repair can wreak
havoc on a family’s budget and is not usually covered by a homeowner’s policy.

National efforts are underway in communities across the country to invest in improvements to our public water and
sewer lines; however, repairs to the sewer line that runs from your home to the public utility connection remain the
responsibility of the homeowner.

As part of our continuing effort to bring cost-saving programs and services to the community, [City] is working
with Service Line Warranties of America (SLWA) to offer sewer line repair protection. For a small fee, sewer line
repair coverage of up to $4,000 per repair is available to [City] homeowners. There are no deductibles or service
fees and no annual or lifetime limits with this warranty. Participation in the SLWA warranty program is optional, but
could potentially save you money. Visit www.slwofa.com to learn how the program has helped more than 60,000
homeowners across the country save over $45 million in service line repair costs.

Enroll by [Date] to pay just $ per month — a savings of more than __ % on the standard price, or save
even more with an annual payment of $ . And, SLWA will waive the normal 30 day waiting period — so
you’ll enjoy immediate coverage!

Call 1-800-000-0000 Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 6:00 pm EDT to speak with an SLWA agent,
or return the completed bottom portion of this letter in the enclosed, self-addressed, stamped envelope or enroll
online at www.slwofa.com.

Sincerely,

City Official Name
City Official Title

Complete warranty terms and conditions will be provided following enroliment. Program participation may be terminated at any time. You have
30 days from the date you enroll to receive a full refund. After 30 days, you will be reimbursed the pro rata share of any amount you paid for
any portion of the warranty period subject to cancellation.

Cut here [LETTERCD]
To enroll or to view the Terms and Conditions, please visit www.slwofa.com.

Please mark your selection:

L] Yes, please enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for just $ per month.
John Smith
987 Main Street L] 1 want to save more. Enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for $ per year.
Anytown, ST 12345
Contact ID: 1234567

| certify to the best of my knowledge that my line is in good working order.

Signature: Date:
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City of Anywhere

State

N T Py AUTO**5-DIGIT 26301
ﬁ John Smith
987 Main Street
Anytown, ST 12345

Re: Service Line Repair Protection

Contact ID: 1234567 for [City] Homeowners

Reminder - Please disregard if you have already enrolled

Dear [Customer Name]:

Were you aware that the sewer line that runs between your home and the public utility connection is the responsibility
of the homeowner and repairs to these lines are usually not covered by homeowner’s insurance? These lines have
been subjected to the same elements that have caused our public service lines to decay — ground shifting, root
invasion, fluctuating temperatures, age and more.

A national initiative is underway to repair and replace the water and sewer lines that enable us to supply our
residents with fresh drinking water and properly process waste water. While the initiative addresses our public
service lines, the cost of repairs for failed sewer lines on your property will come out of your budget and can cost
between $1,300-$3,500 or more!

As part of our continuing effort to bring programs and services to the community that help residents save money
and improve quality of life, [City] is introducing the Service Line Warranties of America (SLWA) Sewer Line Warranty
Program to home/property owners in our community. The SLWA Sewer Line Warranty Program offers sewer line
repair protection of up to $4,000 per incident with no additional service fees or deductibles and no annual or
lifetime limits. Visit www.slwofa.com to learn how the program has helped over 60,000 homeowners save more
than $45 million in service line repair costs.

Enroll by [Date] to pay just $ per month — a savings of more than __ % on the standard price, or save
even more with an annual payment of $ . And, SLWA will waive the normal 30 day waiting period — so
you’ll enjoy immediate coverage!

Participation in the SLWA warranty program is optional and voluntary, but could potentially save you money. No
public funds are used in the marketing or administration of this program, and no financial investment was required
to bring the program to [City] residents. To enroll, simply return the completed bottom portion of this letter in the
enclosed, self-addressed, stamped envelope, or call 1-800-000-0000 Monday through Friday 8:00 am to 6:00 pm
EDT to speak with an SLWA agent or enroll online at www.slwofa.com.

Sincerely,

City Official Name
City Official Title

Complete warranty terms and conditions will be provided following enroliment. Program participation may be terminated at any time. You have
30 days from the date you enroll to receive a full refund. After 30 days, you will be reimbursed the pro rata share of any amount you paid for
any portion of the warranty period subject to cancellation.

Cut here [LETTERCD]
To enroll or to view the Terms and Conditions, please visit www.slwofa.com.

Please mark your selection:

L] Yes, please enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for just $ per month.
John Smith
987 Main Street L] I want to save more. Enroll me in the Sewer Line Warranty for $ per year.
Anytown, ST 12345
Contact ID: 1234567

| certify to the best of my knowledge that my line is in good working order.

Signature: Date:
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NLC Service Line Warranty Program Highlights

4 Nearly 200 cities participating nationwide

4 No cost to or liability for the city to participate

4 Healthy, ongoing annual revenue stream for city

4 Educates homeowners about their lateral line responsibilities

4 Program is endorsed by the National League of Cities

4 Utility Service Partners handles all marketing and management of the program

4 24/7/365 bilingual customer service

4 All repairs performed to city code by local, licensed contractors

4 Reduces calls from residents to City Hall for lateral water and sewer line issues

4 Homeowner billed by NLC Service Line Warranty Program

4 USP is North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCG) Shared Services
Program Partner

4 City provides residents an affordable solution that covers cost of repairs to water and
sewer lines for which the homeowner is responsible

4 Saved more than 60,000 homeowners across the country over $45 million in utility

line repair costs

Participating Cities (Sample of nearly 200)

Large Small

Atlanta, GA Dayton, OH
Madison, WI Englewood, CO
Phoenix, AZ Franklin Park, IL

San Diego, CA

Overland Park, KS

Utility Service Partners, Inc. = 11 Grandview Circle = Suite 100 = Canonsburg, PA = 15317

AGENDA

Utility Service Partners, NLC Service Line Warranty Program Administrator
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NLC Service Line Warranty Program Benefits

City

Keeps money in the local economy by using
contractors in the area

Reduces calls to City/Public Works when a
homeowner’s line fails

Provides non-tax revenue stream without any
investment

Keeps money in the local economy by using
contractors in the area

Educates homeowners about their service
line responsibilities

Ensures contractors are current on licenses
and insurance and repairs are made
according to city code

Accolades & Accomplishments

Residents

Affordable utility line repair solution for families
on a budget

Repairs made within 24 hours of claim
submittal/acceptance

No service fees or deductibles

No annual or lifetime limits on number of repair
incidents

Prevents aggravation of having to find a local
reputable plumber

Keeps money in the homeowner’s pocket;
repairs cost between $1,300 to upwards of
$4,000 without the warranty protection

Accredited Better Business Bureau member with A+ rating for over 10 years

Recipient of the 2013 Western Pennsylvania Better Business Bureau Torch Award for

Marketplace Ethics

Less than 3% of all submitted claims are denied — one of the industry’s highest

A customer satisfaction rating that has exceeded 95% for more than a decade

9 of 10 customers surveyed have recommended the program to friends, family and

neighbors

Learn more about the program online at www.UtilitySP.net or call 1-866-XXX-XxxX.
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NATHONAL | Service Line Warranty Program Administered by
LEAGUE \Utility
of CIT' ES W A A Purtnes Inc

NLC Service Line Warranty Program City Testimonials

“After four years of program participation (and over $1 million spent
by the NLC Program on Atlanta homeowner repairs), we continue to
receive compliments from our constituents on our sharing this
opportunity with them. Many have signed up and for those who have
had to use the service; we have not received any complaints.

“The City places all program revenue in our Care and Conserve Fund.
This fund is used to educate our citizens about water conservation,
assist Senior and Low-income residents with their water bills and help
them with minor repairs. | am sure your City will be happy with your
partnership with the NLC Service Line Protection Program.”

Felicia Moore
Councilmember
City of Atlanta, GA

“The City of Hutchinson enrolled in the USP/NLC Warranty Program
about two years ago. One of the significant selling points for the City
Council and staff was the National League of Cities endorsement. NLC
did the homework and vetted the program before endorsing it for its
member cities. | believe the letter from the City provided a trust factor
that is not present through direct solicitation to residents from other
warranty companies who send letters that give the ‘appearance’ of
coming from the city.”
John Deardoff
“The NLC program endorsed by the City provides certain comfort level City Manager
residents are looking for in the decision of whether to enroll.” “So far Hutchinson, KS
the USP/NLC Program has delivered what they said they would to the
City of Hutchinson. | would be happy to visit with anyone about the
program and our experience here in Hutchinson.”

"The Service Line Warranty Program helps both Phoenix
residents and the city government. Revenue from the program
goes to core city services like police, fire, parks, libraries and
senior centers.

The warranties give residents an innovative and affordable

option for repairs to their sewer and water lines."
Jon Brodsky

Public Information Officer
Phoenix, AZ

Utility Service Partners, Inc. = 11 Grandview Circle = Suite 100 = Canonsburg, PA = 15317

Utility Service Partners, NLC Service Line Warranty Program Administrator
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“The response to the program by the Rock Falls residents has been
tremendous. Many of our homeowners contacted their insurance
agent when they received the program offer in the mail and were
shocked to find out that they were not covered by their
homeowner’s policy for repair replacement of their water and
sewer lines.”

“Our program is in its second year and the participation is still
growing. We are very pleased that we can offer the Service Line
Warranty Program to our residents of the City of Rock Falls. “

Robbin Blackert
City Administrator
Rock Falls, IL

“The program payouts have been huge for our homeowners; over
$230,000 in water and sewer line repairs alone in 24 months. It
really illustrates the fact that the program is responsive.”

“Please feel free to send potential participating cities to me for an
Bryan Long outstanding reference! “
City Manager
Lawton, OK

“SLW of America has done exactly what they claim and we have
heard nothing but praise from our citizens for the program. The
benefit for our City Sewer Department is fewer call-outs; because the
homeowner’s failing service lines are finally getting fixed. Local
plumbers embraced the program and | have heard nothing but
positive comments from them.”

“We feel it is important to take every opportunity to endorse the SLW
program, because the many copy-cat competitors mailing out
enrollment forms cause confusion for our customers. I've researched
each of the copy-cat offers mailed to El Dorado residents and all fall
short of the SLW program ”

Kurt Bookout
Public Utilities Director
El Dorado, KS

Utility Service Partners, NLC Service Line Warranty Program Administrator

“I whole-heartedly endorse the NLC-USP program and feel it will
continue to be a valuable approach to proactively addressing the
problem of decaying water and sewer infrastructure.”

Learn more about the program online at www.UtilitySP.net or call 1-866-XxX-XXXX.
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PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS: WEIGHING

Local government entering into an agreement with a
private sector company has been the subject of much
debate. But public entities and private companies have
been successfully collaborating for years via advisory
boards, stakeholder groups and governance bodies

to leverage the collective experience, knowledge and
expertise of a broader group.

From infrastructure renewal programs in Louisville, KY, to
parks programs in Nashville, TN, for many cities, public
private partnerships, or P3s (PPP), are an alternative
worth exploring.

WHY THE PUBLIC-PRIVATE MODEL
WORKS FOR MUNICIPALITIES AND
UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS

The National League of Cities (NLC) Service Line
Warranty Program provides both an educational program
and an innovative solution for homeowners whose aging
water and sewer lines are not included in our national or
local initiatives to repair and replace the public service
lines that serve our communities. For a small fee, the

NLC Service Line Warranty provides homeowners with
generous coverage for the cost of repairs to failed water
or sewer lines.

The NLC Service Line Warranty Program is a uniquely co-
branded program between the Program’s administrator,
Utility Service Partners, and your municipality. As a
Program that is designed to provide homeowners with
repair/replacement coverage for water and sewer lines

to their homes, the warranty products provided by the
Program must be marketed directly to the homeowner.

The power of the municipal co-branding is that it serves to
build confidence in the quality of the program, promoting
a higher adoption rate. More homeowner participation
means lower costs to the homeowner. In addition, many
of our municipal program participants enjoy good reports
from their residents, who are happy to have coverage for
unexpected — and often expensive — water and sewer line
repairs that are not generally covered by homeowner’s
insurance or repaired by the municipality that owns the
main service lines. Consistent with NLC’s public policy
initiatives to address the national problem of aging water

PPP in the News

rvYvi. -




1E

COMMUNIQUE

AGENDA

P PROS AND CONS

and sewer infrastructure along with the associated water
quality issues, this Program does not market or endorse
the marketing of any other unrelated products.

Why is this important? Our approach alleviates concerns
over privacy issues often raised by residents when their
municipality participates in a co-branded marketing
partnership. However, municipalities participating in the
NLC Service Line Warranty Program can rest assured, as
the Program only markets the water and sewer service
line warranties to your residents, and does not to use

this Program or the municipal relationship or brand to sell
additional, unrelated products that would be inconsistent
with the public policy aspect of this Program.

THE BOTTOM LINE

The NLC Service Line Warranty Program is a public-
private partnership that truly brings together the best of
both sectors. Participation in the program requires no
financial investment from the municipality.

LEARN MORE by visiting www.utilitysp.net/PPP
or call 1-866-974-4801.

NOT JUST ANOTHER
WARRANTY COMPANY

USP is committed to providing valuable
service line protection at a fair market
price, helping our municipal partners
educate residents about their service
line responsibilities and ensuring every
interaction with customers and city
stakeholders exceeds expectations.
Service Line Warranties of America —
USP’s consumer brand, is the honored
recipient of the 2013 Western PA Better
Business Bureau Torch Award for
Marketplace Ethics.

“Cities across America are finding
that effective public-private
partnerships can deliver quality
services to their communities while
easing the burden on citizens.”

Jim Hunt, past president of
the National League of Cities
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LEARN MORE

VISIT WWW.UTILITYSP.NET/PPP
OR CALL 1-866-974-4801

Utility
Service

Partners, Inc.

AGENDA
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PRESS RELEASE

Service Line Warranties of America named the 2013 Winner of the
Western Pennsylvania Torch Award for Marketplace Ethics

Canonsburg, Pennsylvania (January 15, 2014) — Service Line Warranties of

Utlllty America (SLWA), a Utility Service Partners company, is proud to be selected as
ervice the 2013 Winner of the Western Pennsylvania Torch Award for Marketplace Ethics
A Partners, Inc. by the Western Pennsylvania Better Business Bureau (BBB).

“Service Line Warranties of America is extremely proud to be selected as
a Better Business Bureau Torch Award winner for 2013,” said Philip E, Riley, Jr., president and CEO of SLWA.
“Our commitment to marketplace ethics has been a constant standard within our organization. This award
underscores our vision of ‘Bringing peace of mind, one community at a time. We very much appreciate the Western
Pennsylvania Better Business Bureau recognition of our high standards that we will continue to adhere to each and
every day.”

SLWA is the consumerfacing organization that provides utility service line warranties to consumers nationwide and
is part of the Utility Service Partners, Inc. (USP) family of companies. Headquartered in Canonsburg, Pennsylvania,
the company has saved more than 60,000 homeowners more than $45 million in utility service line repairs. In
addition, through its partnership with the National League of Cities (NLC), the NLC Service Line Warranty Program
offers water and sewer line protection to more than 3.5 million residents through nearly 200 municipal partners.

“Considering the large customer base that Service Line Warranties of America has worked with over these past 10
years and their exemplary record at the Bureau, I'm proud to have you as an accredited business of the BBB," said
Mr. Warren King, President of the Western Pennsylvania Better Business Bureau. “There were several key things
that stood out in your business philosophy — full disclosure and communication with customers, partners, vendors
and staff, which are part of the company’s daily ethical standards and values; honoring promises by providing
service in the fairest and most honest way possible; and acting with integrity, which involves mutual respect.

“Service Line Warranties of America assimilates integrity, ethics, trust, and honesty as central values for its
organization,” said Dr. James Weber, Torch Award Judge and current Professor of Business Ethics and Management
at Duguesne University. “This firm's ethical employee training includes six pillars of character and emphasizes

a positive approach toward ‘the benefits of being ethical’ The firm also created a Community and Employee
Engagement Committee to better enable the firm to act responsibly toward the community.”

Together with the National League of Cities, USP and SLWA provide a valuable resource for communities across the
nation from a trustworthy organization. “This award underscores one of the primary reasons the National League

of Cities selected USP as a partner and extended our agreement for another five years,” said Clarence Anthony,
Executive Director of the National League of Cities. “The organization's exemplary record of customer service and
transparency is what has driven the success of the organization over the years.”

Utility Service Partners e 11 Grandview Circle, Suite 100 e Canonsburg, PA 15317
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About Utility Service Partners, Inc.

Founded in 2003, USP strives to be the leading provider of solutions to North American municipal and utility clients by
delivering quality programs that bring value to both the client and their residents. Operating under the consumer brand,
Service Line Warranties of America, USP and SLWA are committed to addressing the aging infrastructure across the nation
with a focus on public-private partnerships.

About Better Business Bureau

The Better Business Bureau is an unbiased organization that sets and upholds high standards for fair and honest business
behavior. Businesses that earn BBB accreditation contractually agree and adhere to the organization's high standards of
ethical business behavior. BBB provides objective advice, free BBB Business Reviews and BBB Wise Giving ReportsTM, and
educational information on topics affecting marketplace trust. To further promote trust, BBB also offers complaint and dispute
resolution support for consumers and businesses when there is difference in viewpoints. Today, 113 BBBs serve communities
across the U.S. and Canada, evaluating and monitoring more than 4.5 million local and national businesses and charities.

#iH#

Media Contact
Hayley Martin
724-749-1042
hmartin@utilitysp.net

Utility Service Partners e 11 Grandview Circle, Suite 100 e Canonsburg, PA 15317
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PRESENTER: David Miller, Deputy City Manager DATE: 03/25/14
Council Mission Area: Be responsive to the needs of the community.
ITEM:

Consider an ordinance amending Chapter 22. “Building and Building Regulations”, Article XIIl.
“Fences”, Section 22-554. “Definitions”, Section 22-555. “Construction Permit Required”, Section
22-557. “Height and Construction Requirements” and Section 22-558. “Maintenance”, of the City of
Bedford Code of Ordinances; providing a savings clause; providing a severability clause; and
providing an effective date.

City Attorney Review: Yes

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

Council directed staff to make changes to the Fence Ordinance to address the following:

e Improving the requirements for the maintenance and replacement of masonry screening

e Having the smooth side of wood fencing facing all public properties including
thoroughfares

e Ensuring fences are permitted when 25 percent of repair or replacement occurs instead of
the current 50 percent

An additional item for amendment to the Fence Ordinance has been added by staff after Code
Compliance found a fence that had been installed without a permit and had missing sections. The
fence had four feet of separation between each eight foot fence panel. This fence was revised to be
compliant with the smooth side out and constructed to be continuous under the permit and
inspection process. Photos are attached.

The following is a summary of the proposed changes:
Sec. 22-554. - Definitions.
Public Property: Any property that is not owned by a private individual or a company. Property,

premises and facilities that are owned by the government or one of its agencies, divisions, or
entities.

Thoroughfare: A public or private right-of-way however designated, which provides vehicular
access to adjacent land within the corporate limits of the City.

Utility Easement: A utility easement is an easement that allows a utility the right to use and access
specific area of another's property for laying gas, electric, phone, cable, water, and sewer lines.

Sec. 22-555. - Construction permit required.

It shall be unlawful for any person to erect or have erected a new fence, or any part of a fence in
excess of 25 percent per elevation side in the city without first obtaining a construction permit.

Section 22-557. Height and construction requirements
(5) Fences adjacent to and facing a thoroughfare, public property or any utility easement in

excess of (50) feet shall be constructed with the smooth finished surface facing outward
from the property and facing the thoroughfare, public property or utility easement. Any




(9)

Section 22-558. Maintenance

®3)

(4)

(5)

AGENDA

posts or support beams shall be inside the finished surface or designed to be an integral
part of the finished surface.

Fences shall be constructed in a manner to provide a continuous barrier without missing
sections along each elevation side. Gates shall be allowed to be an integral part of the
continuous barrier.

Masonry fences and masonry fence columns facing a thoroughfare that require complete or
partial replacement, damaged or in need of repair shall be replaced, repaired or
reconstructed with the same or similar masonry materials and same or similar color of
masonry materials provided the materials are still available and comply with the
requirement for masonry fence construction.

The owner of a property that has a masonry fence that is not required by ordinance under
zoning or development standards may appeal to the City Council to repair or replace an
existing masonry fence or masonry fence columns facing a thoroughfare with alternative
screening methods or materials that do not comply with the regulations specified in section
22-558 (3).

Fences shall not have murals, graffiti, advertising or other illegal signage.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the following motion:

Approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 22. “Building and Building Regulations”, Article XIII.
“Fences”, Section 22-554. “Definitions”, Section 22-555. “Construction Permit Required”, Section
22-557. “Height and Construction Requirements” and Section 22-558. “Maintenance”, of the City of
Bedford Code of Ordinances; providing a savings clause; providing a severability clause; and
providing an effective date.

FISCAL IMPACT: ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Red-line Ordinance
Fence Photos
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ORDINANCE 14-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 22. “BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS”, ARTICLE
Xlll. “FENCES”, SECTION 22-554. “DEFINITIONS”, SECTION 22-555. “CONSTRUCTION PERMIT
REQUIRED”, SECTION 22-557. “HEIGHT AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS” AND SECTION
22-558. “MAINTENANCE”, OF THE CITY OF BEDFORD CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Bedford is a home rule City acting under its home rule Charter adopted by
the electorate pursuant to Article Xl, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of the
Texas Local Government Code; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of Bedford, Texas deems it necessary, in order to provide for the
health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of the City of Bedford, to establish the
provisions of this ordinance regarding the regulation of Fences as authorized by the State of
Texas; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of Bedford, Texas has established regulations for fences, in Chapter
22, Building and Building Regulations, Article Xlll-Fences, of the Code of Ordinances, as
amended; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of Bedford, Texas has determined that revisions are necessary to
this Fence ordinance and has noticed, according to the requirements of public meetings by State
Law, the proposed amendments; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of Bedford, Texas has, after thoughtful deliberation, voted to approve
these Fence ordinance amendments.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BEDFORD,
TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That Chapter 22, Building and Building Regulations, Article XllI-Fences, of the
Code of Ordinances, being the fence ordinance of the City of Bedford is hereby
amended to read in its entirety as follows:

Sec. 22-554. - Definitions.

Public Property: Any property that is not owned by a private individual or a company. Property,

premises and facilities that are owned by the government or one of its agencies, divisions, or
entities.

Thoroughfare: A public or private right-of-way however designated, which provides vehicular
access to adjacent land within the corporate limits of the City.

Utility Easement: A utility easement is an easement that allows a utility the right to use and access
specific area of another's property for laying gas, electric, phone, cable, water, and sewer lines.

Sec. 22-555. - Construction permit required.

It shall be unlawful for any person to erect or have erected a new fence, or any part of a fence in
excess of 25 percent per elevation side in the city without first obtaining a construction permit.
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Sec. 22-557. - Height and construction requirements.

(5) Fences adjacent to and facing a thoroughfare, public property or any utility easement in
excess of (50) feet shall be constructed with the smooth finished surface facing outward
from the property and facing the thoroughfare, public property or utility easement. Any
posts or support beams shall be inside the finished surface or designed to be an integral
part of the finished surface.

(9) Fences shall be constructed in a manner to provide a continuous barrier without missing
sections along each elevation side. Gates shall be allowed to be an integral part of the
continuous barrier.

Sec. 22-558. - Maintenance.

3) Masonry fences and masonry fence columns facing a thoroughfare that require complete
or partial replacement, damaged or in need of repair shall be replaced, repaired or
reconstructed with the same or similar masonry materials and same or similar color of
masonry materials provided the materials are still available and comply with the
requirement for masonry fence construction.

(4) The owner of a property that has a masonry fence that is not required by ordinance under
zoning or development standards may appeal to the City Council to repair or replace an
existing masonry fence or masonry fence columns facing a thoroughfare with alternative
screening methods or materials that do not comply with the regulations specified in
section 22-558 (3).

(5) Fences shall not have murals, graffiti, advertising or other illegal signage.

SECTION 2.  That this Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not
repeal any of the provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where
there are direct conflicts with the provisions of this Ordinance. Ordinances or
parts thereof in force at the time this Ordinance shall take effect and that are
inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they are
inconsistent with this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in this
Ordinance, or application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held invalid or
unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance, and the City Council
hereby declares it would have passed such remaining portion of the Ordinance
despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and
effect.
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SECTION 4.  This Ordinance shall take effect on the 14th day of April 2014 in accordance with
law, and it is so ordained.

PRESENTED AND PASSED on this 25th day of March 2014, by a vote of __ayes, __nays and __
abstentions at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Bedford, Texas.

Jim Griffin, Mayor

ATTEST:

Michael Wells, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Stan Lowry, City Attorney
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Clifford Blackwell, CGFO, Director of

PRESENTER: Administrative Services DATE! 03/25/14
Council Mission Area: Be responsive to the needs of the community.
ITEM:

Consider approval of an ordinance and all matters incident and related to the issuance and sale of
$3,200,000 “City of Bedford, Texas General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014,” dated March 25, 2014.

City Attorney Review: N/A

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

In November 2013, the City of Bedford, Texas held a successful bond election to finance Phase | of
the Boys Ranch Master Plan.

This ordinance authorizes the issuance of $3,200,000 in general obligation (G.O.) bonds for the
purpose of funding the following Boys Ranch Park improvements: lake improvements, trail
improvements, channel improvements, recreation facilities and related improvements.

Standard and Poor’s, the City’s bond rating agency, declared these G.O. bonds ‘AA’ with a stable
outlook based on the most recent rating analysis. This rating reaffirms the City’s status based on
strong wealth and income levels, very strong budgetary flexibility with an adjusted available fund
balance of 20.8%, adequate budgetary performance, very strong liquidity providing strong cash
levels to cover debt service and expenditures, and strong management conditions with good
financial management policies and practices.

These G.O. bonds will be amortized over a 20-year term. Additionally, this bond issuance is being
sold simultaneously along with the Series 2014 Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations to
achieve savings in cost of issuance. The cost of issuing both obligations should not exceed
$80,000, whereas, selling separately would cost more than $95,000.

Due to the fact these obligations are competitively bid, the payment schedules, along with sections
of the ordinance cannot be finalized until the bids are officially opened and accepted; which is on
March 25, 2014.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the following motion:

Approval of an ordinance and all matters incident and related to the issuance and sale of $3,200,000
“City of Bedford, Texas General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014,” dated March 25, 2014.

FISCAL IMPACT: ATTACHMENTS:

Amount of issue: $3,200,000 | Ordinance
To be paid from revenue by Debt Fund: 100% | Copy of Preliminary Official Statement (POS)

Tax Rate Impact: $0.0033 per $100 AV
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE authorizing the issuance of “CITY OF
BEDFORD, TEXAS, GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES
2014,” specifying the terms and features of said bonds; levying a
continuing direct annual ad valorem tax for the payment of said
bonds; and resolving other matters incident and related to the
issuance, sale, payment and delivery of said bonds, including the
approval and execution of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement
and the approval and distribution of an Official Statement; and
providing an effective date.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bedford, Texas (the “City”) finds and
determines that general obligation bonds in the principal amount of $3,200,000, approved and
authorized to be issued at an election held on November 5, 2013, should be issued and sold at
this time pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 1331, as amended; a summary of the
general obligation bonds authorized at said election, and at the December 8, 1990 election, for
which there remains voted authorization, the principal amounts authorized, amounts heretofore
issued and being issued pursuant to this ordinance and amounts remaining to be issued
subsequent hereto being as follows:

Amount Amount
Election Amount Previously Being Unissued
Date Purpose Authorized ($) Issued ($) Issued ($) Balance ($)
9-12-95  Police Facility Improvements 6,625,000 6,295,000 0 330,000
9-12-95  Streets/Drainage 13,200,000 12,675,000 0 525,000
11-06-01 Parks 2,235,000 2,235,000 0 0
11-06-01 Drainage Improvements 5,895,000 1,800,000 0 4,095,000
11-06-01 City Building Improvements 1,075,000 885,000 0 190,000
11-06-01  Animal Control 240,000 0 0 240,000
11-06-01  Public Safety Improvements 4,060,000 2,885,000 0 1,175,000
11-06-01  Street Improvements (Major 5,430,000 3,265,000 0 2,165,000
Thoroughfares)
11-06-01 Residential Street 3,730,000 1,725,000 0 2,005,000
Improvements
11-05-13 Park Improvements (Boys 3,200,000 0 3,200,000 0

Ranch Lake)

[*Original issue premium in the amount of $ which the City has allocated to and applied against the 2013
voted authorization referenced in the above table results in a total amount of $ allocated to and applied
against the 2013 voted authorization.]

AND WHEREAS, the City Council hereby reserves and retains the right to issue the
balance of unissued bonds approved at said elections in one or more installments when, in the
judgment of the City Council, funds are needed to accomplish the purposes for which such
bonds were voted; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Authorization - Designation - Principal Amount - Purpose. General
obligation bonds of the City shall be and are hereby authorized to be issued in the aggregate
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principal amount of $3,200,000 to be designated and bear the title “CITY OF BEDFORD,
TEXAS, GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2014” (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of
(i) providing funds for permanent public improvements and public purposes, to wit: park
improvements (Boys Ranch Lake improvements, trail improvements, channel improvements,
recreation facilities, and related improvements at Boys Ranch Park) and (ii) to pay the costs of
issuance, all in accordance with the authority conferred by and in conformity with the
Constitution, the laws of the State of Texas, including Texas Government Code, Chapter 1331,
as amended.

SECTION 2. Fully Registered Obligations - Bond Date - Authorized
Denominations - Stated Maturities - Interest Rates. The Bonds shall be issued as fully
registered obligations only, shall be dated March 15, 2014 (the “Bond Date”), shall be in
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple (within a Stated Maturity) thereof, shall become
due and payable on February 1 in each of the years and in principal amounts (the “Stated
Maturities”), and shall bear interest at the rate(s) per annum in accordance with the following
schedule:

Year of Principal Interest
Stated Maturity Amount Rate

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034

Bonds shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amounts from the date of initial delivery at the
rate(s) per annum shown above in this Section (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months). Interest on the Bonds shall be payable on February 1 and
August 1 in each year until maturity or prior redemption, commencing August 1, 2014.

SECTION 3. Terms of Payment - Paying Agent/Registrar. The principal of,
premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds, due and payable by reason of maturity,
redemption or otherwise, shall be payable only to the registered owners or holders of the Bonds
(the “Holders”) appearing on the registration and transfer books maintained by the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the payment thereof shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of
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America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private
debts, and shall be without exchange or collection charges to the Holders.

The selection and appointment of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
Dallas, Texas, or its assigns (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”), to serve as Paying Agent/Registrar
for the Bonds is hereby approved and confirmed. Books and records relating to the registration,
payment, exchange, and transfer of the Bonds (the “Security Register”) shall at all times be kept
and maintained on behalf of the City by the Paying Agent/Registrar, all as provided herein, in
accordance with the terms and provisions of a “Paying/Agent Registrar Agreement,”
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, and such reasonable rules and
regulations as the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City may prescribe. The Mayor and City
Secretary are authorized to execute and deliver such Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement in
connection with the delivery of the Bonds. The City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying
Agent/Registrar at all times until the Bonds are paid and discharged; and, any successor Paying
Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, trust company, financial institution or other entity
gualified and authorized to serve in such capacity and perform the duties and services of Paying
Agent/Registrar. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, the City agrees
to promptly cause a written notice of the change to be sent to each Holder by United States
Mail, first class postage prepaid; and, such notice shall also give the address of the new Paying
Agent/Registrar.

Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds, shall be payable at the Stated Maturities
or on a date of earlier redemption thereof only upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds to
the Paying Agent/Registrar at its desighated offices, initially in East Syracuse, New York, or,
with respect to a successor Paying Agent/Registrar, at the designated offices of such successor
(the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”). The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay interest on
the Bonds only to the Holder whose name appears in the Security Register at the close of
business on the Record Date (the fifteenth day of the month next preceding each interest
payment date) and shall pay either by: (1) check sent by United States Mail, first class postage
prepaid, to the address of the registered owner recorded in the Security Register or (2) by such
other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by the Holder at the
Holder’s risk and expense. If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the
Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the
city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are
authorized by law or executive order to be closed; then, the date for such payment shall be the
next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking
institutions are authorized to be closed and payment on such date shall have the same force
and effect as if made on the original date payment was due.

In the event of a nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30)
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar if and when funds for the payment of such interest
have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled
payment date of the past due interest (which shall be fifteen (15) days after the Special Record
Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United
States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder appearing on the Security
Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice.
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SECTION 4. Redemption.

€) Optional Redemption. The Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after
February 1, 2025 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City on
February 1, 2024, or any date thereafter, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity by lot by the Paying
Agent/Registrar) at the redemption price of par, together with interest accrued to the redemption
date.

(b) Exercise of Redemption Option. Not less than forty-five (45) days prior to an
optional redemption date for the Bonds (unless a shorter notification period shall be satisfactory
to the Paying Agent/Registrar), the City shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of: (1) the
decision to redeem Bonds, (2) the principal amount of each Stated Maturity to be redeemed,
and (3) the date of redemption.

(c) Selection of Bonds for Redemption. If less than all Outstanding Bonds of
the same Stated Maturity are to be redeemed on a redemption date, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall treat such Bonds as representing the number of Bonds Outstanding, which is obtained by
dividing the principal amount of such Bonds by $5,000, and shall select by lot the Bonds to be
redeemed within such Stated Maturity.

(d) Notice of Redemption. Not less than thirty (30) days prior to a redemption
date for the Bonds, a notice of redemption shall be sent by United States Mail, first class
postage prepaid, in the name of the City and at the City’s expense, to each Holder of a Bond to
be redeemed in whole or in part at the address of the Holder appearing on the Security Register
at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice,
and any notice of redemption so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given
irrespective of whether received by the Holder.

All notices of redemption shall: (1) specify the date of redemption for the Bonds,
(2) identify the Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of a portion of the principal amount to be
redeemed, the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, (3) state the redemption price,
(4) state that the Bonds, or the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall
become due and payable on the redemption date specified, and the interest thereon, or on the
portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall cease to accrue from and after the
redemption date, and (5) specify that payment of the redemption price for the Bonds, or the
principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall be made at the Designated Payment/Transfer
Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon presentation and surrender thereof by the
Holder. If a Bond is subject by its terms to prior redemption, and has been called for
redemption, and notice of redemption thereof has been duly given as hereinabove provided,
such Bond (or the principal amount thereof to be redeemed) shall become due and payable and
interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the specified redemption date; provided
moneys sufficient for the payment of such Bond (or of the principal amount thereof to be
redeemed) at the then applicable redemption price are held for the purpose of such payment by
the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(e) Conditional Notice of Redemption. With respect to any optional redemption
of the Bonds, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest
on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to
the giving of such notice of redemption, such notice may state that said redemption may, at the
option of the City, be conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Paying Agent/Registrar
on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon the satisfaction of any prerequisites
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set forth in such notice of redemption; and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice
shall be of no force and effect, the City shall not redeem such Bonds and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, to
the effect that the Bonds have not been redeemed.

SECTION 5. Reqistration - Transfer - Exchange of Bonds - Predecessor Bonds.
A Security Register relating to the registration, payment, and transfer or exchange of the Bonds
shall at all times be kept and maintained by the City at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office
of the Paying Agent/Registrar and at a place within the State of Texas, as provided herein and
in accordance with the provisions of an agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar and such
rules and regulations as the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City may prescribe. The Paying
Agent/Registrar shall obtain, record, and maintain in the Security Register the name and
address of each registered owner of the Bonds issued under and pursuant to the provisions of
this Ordinance. Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms and the terms hereof, be
transferred or exchanged for Bonds of like kind, of other authorized denominations upon the
Security Register by the Holder, in person or by his duly authorized agent, upon surrender of
such Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument
of transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the Holder or by his duly authorized agent,
in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.

Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond (other than the Initial Bond authorized in
Section 8 hereof) at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, the
Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, in the nhame of the designated transferee or
transferees, one or more new Bonds, executed on behalf of, and furnished by, the City of
authorized denominations and of like Stated Maturity and of a like aggregate principal amount
as the Bond or Bonds surrendered for transfer.

At the option of the Holder, Bonds (other than the Initial Bond authorized in Section 8
hereof) may be exchanged for other Bonds of authorized denominations and having the same
Stated Maturity, bearing the same rate of interest and of like aggregate principal amount as the
Bonds surrendered for exchange, upon surrender of the Bonds to be exchanged at the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. Whenever any Bonds are
surrendered for exchange, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver new Bonds,
executed on behalf of, and furnished by, the City, to the Holder requesting the exchange.

All Bonds issued in any transfer or exchange of Bonds shall be delivered to the Holders
at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar or sent by United
States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the Holders, and, upon the registration and delivery
thereof, the same shall be the valid obligations of the City, evidencing the same obligation to
pay, and entitled to the same benefits under this Ordinance, as the Bonds surrendered in such
transfer or exchange.

All transfers or exchanges of Bonds pursuant to this Section shall be made without
expense or service charge to the Holder, except as otherwise herein provided, and except that
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall require payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or
exchange of any tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such
transfer or exchange.

Bonds cancelled by reason of an exchange or transfer pursuant to the provisions of this

Section are hereby defined to be “Predecessor Bonds,” evidencing all or a portion, as the case
may be, of the same obligation to pay evidenced by the new Bond or Bonds registered and
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delivered in the exchange or transfer. Additionally, the term “Predecessor Bonds” shall include
any mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond for which a replacement Bond has been issued,
registered, and delivered in lieu thereof pursuant to the provisions of Section 11 hereof and
such new replacement Bond shall be deemed to evidence the same obligation as the mutilated,
lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond.

Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue or transfer to
an assignee of a Holder any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within forty-five (45)
days of the date fixed for the redemption of such Bond; provided, however, such limitation on
transferability shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder of the unredeemed balance
of a Bond called for redemption in part.

SECTION 6. Book-Entry-Only Transfers and Transactions. Notwithstanding the
provisions contained in Sections 3, 4 and 5 hereof relating to the payment, and
transfer/exchange of the Bonds, the City hereby approves and authorizes the use of “Book-
Entry-Only” securities clearance, settlement and transfer system provided by The Depository
Trust Company (“DTC"), a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State
of New York, in accordance with the operational arrangements referenced in the Blanket Issuer
Letter of Representation, by and between the City and DTC (the “Depository Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Depository Agreement and the rules of DTC, the Bonds shall be
deposited with DTC who shall hold said Bonds for its participants (the “DTC Participants”).
While the Bonds are held by DTC under the Depository Agreement, the Holder of the Bonds on
the Security Register for all purposes, including payment and notices, shall be Cede & Co., as
nominee of DTC, notwithstanding the ownership of each actual purchaser or owner of each
Bond (the “Beneficial Owners”) being recorded in the records of DTC and DTC Participants.

In the event DTC determines to discontinue serving as securities depository for the
Bonds or otherwise ceases to provide book-entry clearance and settlement of securities
transactions in general or the City determines that DTC is incapable of properly discharging its
duties as securities depository for the Bonds, the City covenants and agrees with the Holders of
the Bonds to cause Bonds to be printed in definitive form and provide for the Bond certificates to
be issued and delivered to DTC Participants and Beneficial Owners, as the case may be.
Thereafter, the Bonds in definitive form shall be assigned, transferred and exchanged on the
Security Register maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar and payment of such Bonds shall
be made in accordance with the provisions of Sections 3, 4 and 5 hereof.

SECTION 7. Execution - Registration. The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the
City by the Mayor under its seal reproduced or impressed thereon and countersigned by the
City Secretary. The signature of said officers and the seal of the City on the Bonds may be
manual or facsimile. Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of individuals who are or
were the proper officers of the City on the Bond Date shall be deemed to be duly executed on
behalf of the City, notwithstanding that such individuals or either of them shall cease to hold
such offices at the time of delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchaser(s) and with respect to
Bonds delivered in subsequent exchanges and transfers, all as authorized and provided in
Texas Government Code, Chapter 1201, as amended.

No Bond shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Ordinance, or be valid or
obligatory for any purpose, unless there appears on such Bond either a certificate of registration
substantially in the form provided in Section 9C, manually executed by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas or his duly authorized agent, or a certificate of registration
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substantially in the form provided in Section 9D, manually executed by an authorized officer,
employee or representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and either such certificate upon any
Bond duly signed shall be conclusive evidence, and the only evidence, that such Bond has been
duly certified, registered and delivered.

SECTION 8. |Initial Bond. The Bonds herein authorized shall be initially issued as a
single fully registered bond in the aggregate principal amount shown in Section 1 hereof with
principal installments to become due and payable as provided in Section 2 hereof and
numbered T-1. The initial bond (the “Initial Bond”) shall be registered in the name of the initial
purchaser(s), or the designee thereof. The Initial Bond shall be the Bond submitted to the Office
of the Attorney General of the State of Texas for approval, certified and registered by the Office
of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and delivered to the initial
purchaser(s). Any time after the delivery of the Initial Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar,
pursuant to written instructions from the initial purchaser(s), or the designee thereof, shall
cancel the Initial Bond and exchange it for definitive Bonds of authorized denominations, Stated
Maturities, principal amounts and bearing applicable interest rates for transfer and delivery to
the named Holders at the addresses identified for such purpose; all pursuant to and in
accordance with such written instructions from the initial purchaser(s), or the designee thereof,
and such other information and documentation as the Paying Agent/Registrar may reasonably
require.

SECTION 9. Forms.

A. Forms Generally. The Bonds, the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Registration Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar,
and the form of Assignment to be printed on each of the Bonds, shall be substantially in the
forms set forth in this Section with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and
other variations as are permitted or required by this Ordinance and may have such letters,
numbers, or other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the
Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers
Association) and such legends and endorsements (including insurance legends in the event the
Bonds, or any maturities thereof, are purchased with insurance and any reproduction of an
opinion of counsel) thereon as may, consistently herewith, be established by the City or
determined by the officers executing such Bonds as evidenced by their execution. Any portion
of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse thereof, with an appropriate reference
thereto on the face of the Bond.

The definitive Bonds and the Initial Bond shall be printed, lithographed, engraved,
typewritten, photocopied or otherwise reproduced in any other similar manner, all as determined
by the officers executing such Bonds as evidenced by their execution thereof.

The City may provide (i) for the issuance of one fully registered Bond for each Stated
Maturity in the aggregate principal amount of each Stated Maturity and (ii) for the registration of
such Bonds in the name of a securities depository, or the nominee thereof. While any Bond is
registered in the name of a securities depository or its nominee, references herein and in the
Bonds to the Holder or registered owner of such Bonds shall mean the securities depository or
its nominee and shall not mean any other person.
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B. Form of Definitive Bonds.

REGISTERED REGISTERED
NO. R- $

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TEXAS
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND

SERIES 2014
Bond Date: Interest Rate: Stated Maturity: CUSIP No.:
March 15, 2014 %

Registered Owner:
Principal Amount:

The City of Bedford (the “City”), a body corporate and municipal corporation in the
County of Tarrant, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and
hereby promises to pay to the registered owner named above, or the registered assigns thereof,
on the Stated Maturity date specified above the Principal Amount hereinabove stated (or so
much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption) and to pay interest on the
unpaid principal amount hereof from the interest payment date next preceding the “Registration
Date” of this Bond appearing below (unless this Bond bears a “Registration Date” as of an
interest payment date, in which case it shall bear interest from such date, or unless the
“Registration Date” of this Bond is prior to the initial interest payment date in which case it shall
bear interest from the date of initial delivery) at the per annum rate of interest specified above
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months; such interest
being payable on February 1 and August 1 in each year, commencing August 1, 2014, until
maturity or prior redemption. Principal of this Bond shall be payable at its Stated Maturity or on
a redemption date to the Registered Owner hereof upon presentation and surrender at the
designated offices of the Paying Agent/Registrar executing the registration certificate appearing
hereon, initially in East Syracuse, New York, or, with respect to a successor Paying
Agent/Registrar, at the designated offices of such successor (the “Designated Payment/Transfer
Office”). Interest is payable to the registered owner of this Bond (or one or more Predecessor
Bonds, as defined in the Ordinance hereinafter referenced) whose name appears on the
“Security Register” maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the
“Record Date,” which is the fifteenth day of the month next preceding each interest payment
date, and interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent United States Mail,
first class postage prepaid, to the address of the registered owner recorded in the Security
Reqister or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and
at the risk and expense of, the registered owner. If the date for the payment of the principal of
or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking
institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to be closed, then the date
for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal
holiday, or day when banking institutions are authorized to be closed; and payment on such
date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. All
payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond shall be without exchange or
collection charges to the owner hereof and in any coin or currency of the United States of

57731897.3/11312434 8



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private
debts.

This Bond is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $3,200,000 to be designated and bear the title “City of Bedford, Texas, General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2014” (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of providing funds for
(i) permanent public improvements and public purposes, to wit: park improvements (Boys
Ranch lake improvements, trail improvements, channel improvements, recreation facilities, and
related improvements at Boys Ranch Park, and (i) to pay the costs of issuance, all in
accordance with the authority conferred by and in conformity with the Constitution, the laws of
the State of Texas, including Texas Government Code, Chapter 1331, as amended, and
pursuant to an Ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City (herein referred to as the
“Ordinance”).

The Bonds maturing on and after February 1, 2025, may be redeemed prior to their
Stated Maturities, at the option of the City, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity by lot by the Paying
Agent/Registrar), on February 1, 2024, or on any date thereafter, at the redemption price of par,
together with accrued interest to the date of redemption.

At least thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds, the City shall
cause a written notice of such redemption to be sent by United States Malil, first class postage
prepaid, to the registered owners of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the
Security Register and subject to the terms and provisions relating thereto contained in the
Ordinance. If a Bond (or any portion of its principal sum) shall have been duly called for
redemption and notice of such redemption duly given, then upon such redemption date such
Bond (or the portion of its principal sum to be redeemed) shall become due and payable, and
interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the redemption date; provided moneys for
the payment of the redemption price and the interest on the principal amount to be redeemed to
the date of redemption are held for the purpose of such payment by the Paying Agent/Registrar.

In the event a portion of the principal amount of a Bond is to be redeemed and the
registered owner is someone other than Cede & Co., payment of the redemption price of such
principal amount shall be made to the registered owner only upon presentation and surrender of
such Bond to the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and a new
Bond or Bonds of like maturity and interest rate in any authorized denominations provided by
the Ordinance for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum thereof will be issued to
the registered owner, without charge. If a Bond is selected for redemption, in whole or in part,
the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to transfer such Bond to an
assignee of the registered owner within forty-five (45) days of the redemption date; provided,
however, such limitation on transferability shall not be applicable to an exchange by the
registered owner of the unredeemed balance of a Bond redeemed in part.

With respect to any optional redemption of the Bonds, unless moneys sufficient to pay
the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been
received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such
notice may state that said redemption may, at the option of the City, be conditional upon the
receipt of such moneys by the Paying Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such
redemption, or upon the satisfaction of any prerequisites set forth in such notice of redemption;
and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the City
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shall not redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in
which the notice of redemption was given, to the effect that the Bonds have not been redeemed.

The Bonds are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax levied, within the
limitations prescribed by law, upon all taxable property in the City. Reference is hereby made to
the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the
Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the registered owner of this Bond
by the acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of terms; the description of and the
nature and extent of the tax levied for the payment of the Bonds; the terms and conditions
relating to the transfer or exchange of this Bond; the conditions upon which the Ordinance may
be amended or supplemented with or without the consent of the registered owners; the rights,
duties, and obligations of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions
upon which this Bond may be discharged at or prior to its maturity or redemption, and deemed
to be no longer Outstanding; and for other terms and provisions contained therein. Capitalized
terms used herein have the meanings assigned in the Ordinance.

This Bond, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be transferred
on the Security Register only upon its presentation and surrender at the Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, with the Assignment hereon duly
endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the
Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by, the registered owner hereof, or his duly authorized
agent. When a transfer on the Security Register occurs, one or more new fully registered
Bonds of the same Stated Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of
interest, and of the same aggregate principal amount will be issued by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to the designated transferee or transferees.

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the
registered owner whose name appears on the Security Register (i) on the Record Date as the
owner entitled to payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Bond as the
owner entitled to payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or upon its prior redemption,
in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner for all other purposes, and neither
the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, shall be affected by notice to the
contrary. In the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date and for thirty (30)
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest
have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled
payment date of the past due interest (which shall be fifteen (15) days after the Special Record
Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United
States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each registered owner appearing on
the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date
of mailing of such notice.

It is hereby certified, recited, represented and declared that the City is a body corporate
and political subdivision duly organized and legally existing under and by virtue of the
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas; that the issuance of the Bonds is duly authorized by
law; that all acts, conditions and things required to exist and be done precedent to and in the
issuance of the Bonds to render the same lawful and valid obligations of the City have been
properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, and the Ordinance; that
the Bonds do not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation; and that due provision has
been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds by the levy of a tax as
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stated above. In case any provision in this Bond shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the
validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected
or impaired thereby. The terms and provisions of this Bond and the Ordinance shall be
construed in accordance with and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City has caused this Bond to be duly
executed under the official seal of the City as of the Bond Date.

CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS

Mayor
COUNTERSIGNED:
City Secretary
(City Seal)
C. Form of Reqgistration Certificate of Comptroller of Public Accounts to

appear on Initial Bond only.

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

(
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS g REGISTER NO.
THE STATE OF TEXAS g

| HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Comptroller

of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this

Comptroller of Public Accounts
of the State of Texas

(SEAL)
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D. Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Reqgistrar to appear on Definitive Bonds

only.
REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

This Bond has been duly issued and registered under the provisions of the within
mentioned Ordinance; the bond or bonds of the above entitled and designated series originally
delivered having been approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered
by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying Agent/Registrar.

The designated offices of the Paying Agent/Registrar in East Syracuse, New York is the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office for this Bond.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST
COMPANY, N.A,, Dallas, Texas
as Paying Agent/Registrar

Registered this date:

By:

Authorized Signature

E. Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto
(Print or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee:)

(Social Security or other identifying number: )
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints

attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of
substitution in the premises.

DATED:

NOTICE: The signature on this
Signature guaranteed: assignment must correspond with the
name of the registered owner as it
appears on the face of the within Bond in
every particular.

F. Form of Initial Bond.

The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in subsection B of this Section except that
the heading and paragraph one shall be amended to read as follows:

NO. T-1 $
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TEXAS
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
SERIES 2014

Bond Date: March 15, 2014
Registered Owner:
Principal Amount:

The City of Bedford, Texas (the “City”), a body corporate and municipal corporation in
the County of Tarrant, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself indebted to and
hereby promises to pay to the registered owner, or the registered assigns thereof, the Principal
Amount hereinabove stated on February 1 in each of the years and in principal installments in
accordance with the following schedule:

YEAR OF PRINCIPAL INTEREST
MATURITY INSTALLMENTS RATE

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 2 hereof)

(or so much principal thereof as shall not have been redeemed prior to maturity) and to pay
interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the date of initial delivery at the per annum
rates of interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day
months; such interest being payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing
August 1, 2014, until maturity or prior redemption. Principal installments of this Bond are
payable on the Stated Maturity dates or on a redemption date to the registered owner hereof by
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas (the “Paying
Agent/Registrar”), upon its presentation and surrender at its designated offices, initially in East
Syracuse, New York, or, with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the designated
office of such successor (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”). Interest shall be payable
to the registered owner of this Bond whose hame appears on the “Security Register” maintained
by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which is the
fifteenth day of the month next preceding the interest payment date hereof and interest shall be
paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent by United States mail, first class postage
prepaid, to the address of the registered owner recorded in the Security Register or by such
other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by and at the risk and
expense of the registered owner. If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the
Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the
city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are
authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next
succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking
institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and
effect as if made on the original date payment was due. All payments of principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on this Bond shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of America
which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

SECTION 10. Levy of Taxes. To provide for the payment of the “Debt Service
Requirements” of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds and (ii) a sinking fund for their
payment at maturity or a sinking fund of 2% (whichever amount is the greater), there is hereby
levied, and there shall be annually assessed and collected in due time, form, and manner, a tax
on all taxable property in the City, within the limitations prescribed by law, and such tax hereby
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levied on each one hundred dollars’ valuation of taxable property in the City for the Debt Service
Requirements of the Bonds shall be at a rate from year to year as will be ample and sufficient to
provide funds each year to pay the principal of and interest on said Bonds while Outstanding;
full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection; separate books and records
relating to the receipt and disbursement of taxes levied, assessed and collected for and on
account of the Bonds shall be kept and maintained by the City at all times while the Bonds are
Outstanding, and the taxes collected for the payment of the Debt Service Requirements on the
Bonds shall be deposited to the credit of a “Special 2014 Bond Account” (the “Interest and
Sinking Fund”) maintained on the records of the City and deposited in a special fund maintained
at an official depository of the City’s funds; and such tax hereby levied, and to be assessed and
collected annually, is hereby pledged to the payment of the Bonds.

The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Secretary, City Manager, and Director of Administrative
Services, any one or more of said officials of the City, are hereby authorized and directed to
cause to be transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, from funds on deposit in
the Interest and Sinking Fund, amounts sufficient to fully pay and discharge promptly each
installment of interest and principal of the Bonds as the same accrues or matures or comes due
by reason of redemption prior to maturity; such transfers of funds to be made in such manner as
will cause collected funds to be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar on or before each
principal and interest payment date for the Bonds.

The City has sufficient current funds available to pay the payment to become due on the
Bonds on August 1, 2014, and there will be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund (created
for the payment of the Bonds) such amount of current funds which will be sufficient to pay the
amounts to become due on the Bonds on August 1, 2014.

SECTION 11. Mutilated - Destroyed - Lost and Stolen Bonds. In case any Bond
shall be mutilated, or destroyed, lost or stolen, the Paying Agent/Registrar may execute and
deliver a replacement Bond of like form and tenor, and in the same denomination and bearing a
number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated
Bond, or in lieu of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, only upon the
approval of the City and after (a) the filing by the Holder thereof with the Paying Agent/Registrar
of evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar of the destruction, loss or theft of such
Bond, and of the authenticity of the ownership thereof and (b) the furnishing to the Paying
Agent/Registrar of indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the City and the Paying
Agent/Registrar harmless. All expenses and charges associated with such indemnity and with
the preparation, execution and delivery of a replacement Bond shall be borne by the Holder of
the Bond mutilated, or destroyed, lost or stolen.

Every replacement Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall be a valid and binding
obligation of the City, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and
ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds; notwithstanding the enforceability of payment by
anyone of the destroyed, lost, or stolen Bonds.

The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all
other rights and remedies with respect to the replacement and payment of mutilated, destroyed,
lost or stolen Bonds.

SECTION 12. Satisfaction of Obligation of City. If the City shall pay or cause to be
paid, or there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders, the principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds, at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Ordinance, then the
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pledge of taxes levied under this Ordinance and all covenants, agreements, and other
obligations of the City to the Holders shall thereupon cease, terminate, and be discharged and
satisfied.

Bonds or any principal amount(s) thereof shall be deemed to have been paid within the
meaning and with the effect expressed above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in
full such Bonds or the principal amount(s) thereof at maturity or to the redemption date therefor,
together with all interest due thereon, shall have been irrevocably deposited with and held in
trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, or (i) Government
Securities shall have been irrevocably deposited in trust with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an
authorized escrow agent, which Government Securities have been certified by an independent
accounting firm to mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money, together with any moneys
deposited therewith, if any, to pay when due the principal of and interest on such Bonds, or the
principal amount(s) thereof, on and prior to the Stated Maturity thereof or (if notice of
redemption has been duly given or waived or if irrevocable arrangements therefor acceptable to
the Paying Agent/Registrar have been made) the redemption date thereof. The City covenants
that no deposit of moneys or Government Securities will be made under this Section and no use
made of any such deposit which would cause the Bonds to be treated as “arbitrage bonds”
within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code"), or regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow
agent, and all income from Government Securities held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar,
or an authorized escrow agent, pursuant to this Section which is not required for the payment of
the Bonds, or any principal amount(s) thereof, or interest thereon with respect to which such
moneys have been so deposited shall be remitted to the City or deposited as directed by the
City. Furthermore, any money held by the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Bonds and remaining unclaimed for a period of three (3) years
after the Stated Maturity, or applicable redemption date, of the Bonds such moneys were
deposited and are held in trust to pay shall upon the request of the City be remitted to the City
against a written receipt therefor. The provisions of this paragraph are subject to the applicable
unclaimed property law of the State of Texas.

The term “Government Securities,” as used herein, means (i) direct noncallable
obligations of the United States of America, including obligations the principal of and interest on
which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (ii) noncallable
obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and, on the date of their
acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized
investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, (iii) noncallable obligations of a state
or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been
refunded and that, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to
investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its
equivalent, and (iv) any other then authorized securities or obligations that may be used to
defease obligations such as the Bonds under the then applicable laws of the State of Texas.

SECTION 13. Ordinance a Contract - Amendments - OQutstanding Bonds. This
Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Holders from time to time, be binding on the City,
and shall not be amended or repealed by the City so long as any Bond remains Outstanding
except as permitted in this Section and in Section 22 hereof. The City may, without the consent
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of or notice to any Holders, from time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any
manner not detrimental to the interests of the Holders, including the curing of any ambiguity,
inconsistency, or formal defect or omission in this Ordinance. Additionally, with the consent of
Holders holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, the
City may amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that,
without the consent of all the Holders of Outstanding Bonds no amendment, addition, or
rescission shall: (1) extend the time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal amount thereof, the redemption price therefor, or the
rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of,
premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, (2) give any preference to any Bond over any other
Bond, or (3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be held by Holders for
consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission.

The term “Outstanding” when used in this Ordinance with respect to Bonds means, as of
the date of determination, all Bonds theretofore issued and delivered under this Ordinance,
except:

(D] those Bonds canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar or delivered to the
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation;

2 those Bonds deemed to be duly paid by the City in accordance with the
provisions of Section 12 hereof; and

3 those mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bonds which have been
replaced with Bonds registered and delivered in lieu thereof as provided in Section 11
hereof.

SECTION 14. Covenants to Maintain Tax-Exempt Status.

(@) Definitions. When used in this Section, the following terms shall have the
following meanings:

“Closing Date” means the date on which the Bonds are first authenticated
and delivered to the initial purchasers against payment therefor.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all
legislation, if any, effective on or before the Closing Date.

“Computation Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the
Regulations.

“Gross Proceeds” means any proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(b)
of the Regulations, and any replacement proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-
1(c) of the Regulations, of the Bonds.

“Investment” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the
Regulations.

“Nonpurpose Investment” means any investment property, as defined in
Section 148(b) of the Code, in which Gross Proceeds of the Bonds are invested
and which is not acquired to carry out the governmental purposes of the Bonds.

“Rebate Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the
Regulations.
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“Regulations” means any proposed, temporary, or final Income Tax
Regulations issued pursuant to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code,
and 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, which are applicable to the
Bonds. Any reference to any specific Regulation shall also mean, as
appropriate, any proposed, temporary or final Income Tax Regulation designed
to supplement, amend or replace the specific Regulation referenced.

“Yield” of (1) any Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-5
of the Regulations; and (2) the Bonds has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-
4 of the Regulations.

(b) Not to Cause Interest to Become Taxable. The City shall not use, permit the
use of, or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other amounts (or any property the acquisition,
construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with Gross
Proceeds) in a manner which if made or omitted would cause the interest on any Bond to
become includable in the gross income, as defined in Section 61 of the Code, of the owner
thereof for federal income tax purposes. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
unless and until the City receives a written opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the
field of municipal bond law to the effect that failure to comply with such covenant will not
adversely affect the exemption from federal income tax of the interest on any Bond, the City
shall comply with each of the specific covenants in this Section.

(c) No Private Use or Private Payments. Except as permitted by Section 141 of
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall at all times prior to the
last Stated Maturity of Bonds:

() exclusively own, operate and possess all property the acquisition,
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or
indirectly with Gross Proceeds of the Bonds, and not use or permit the use of
such Gross Proceeds (including all contractual arrangements with terms different
than those applicable to the general public) or any property acquired, constructed
or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any activity carried on by any person or
entity (including the United States or any agency, department and instrumentality
thereof) other than a state or local government, unless such use is solely as a
member of the general public; and

(2) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other
payment by any person or entity who is treated as using Gross Proceeds of the
Bonds or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to
be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly with such Gross Proceeds, other
than taxes of general application within the City or interest earned on
investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending application for their
intended purposes.

(d) No Private Loan. Except to the extent permitted by Section 141 of the Code
and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of the
Bonds to make or finance loans to any person or entity other than a state or local
government. For purposes of the foregoing covenant, such Gross Proceeds are considered
to be “loaned” to a person or entity if: (1) property acquired, constructed or improved with
such Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to such person or entity in a transaction which creates
a debt for federal income tax purposes; (2) capacity in or service from such property is
committed to such person or entity under a take or pay, output or similar contract or
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arrangement; or (3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of such Gross
Proceeds or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds are
otherwise transferred in a transaction which is the economic equivalent of a loan.

(e) Not to Invest at Higher Yield. Except to the extent permitted by Section 148
of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not at any time prior to
the final Stated Maturity of the Bonds directly or indirectly invest Gross Proceeds in any
Investment (or use Gross Proceeds to replace money so invested), if as a result of such
investment the Yield from the Closing Date of all Investments acquired with Gross Proceeds
(or with money replaced thereby), whether then held or previously disposed of, exceeds the
Yield of the Bonds.

()] Not Federally Guaranteed. Except to the extent permitted by Section 149(b)
of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take
any action which would cause the Bonds to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of
Section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder.

(9) Information Report. The City shall timely file the information required by
Section 149(e) of the Code with the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038-G or such other
form and in such place as the Secretary may prescribe.

(h) Rebate of Arbitrage Profits. Except to the extent otherwise provided in
Section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder:

Q) The City shall account for all Gross Proceeds (including all
receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account
separately and apart from all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and
investments thereof) and shall retain all records of accounting for at least six
years after the day on which the last outstanding Bond is discharged. However,
to the extent permitted by law, the City may commingle Gross Proceeds of the
Bonds with other money of the City, provided that the City separately accounts
for each receipt and expenditure of Gross Proceeds and the obligations acquired
therewith.

2 Not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City shall
calculate the Rebate Amount in accordance with rules set forth in Section 148(f)
of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. The City shall maintain
such calculations with its official transcript of proceedings relating to the issuance
of the Bonds until six years after the final Computation Date.

3) As additional consideration for the purchase of the Bonds by the
Purchasers and the loan of the money represented thereby and in order to
induce such purchase by measures designed to insure the excludability of the
interest thereon from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income
tax purposes, the City shall pay to the United States out of the Interest and
Sinking Fund or its general fund, as permitted by applicable Texas statute,
regulation or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the amount
that when added to the future value of previous rebate payments made for the
Bonds equals (i) in the case of a Final Computation Date as defined in Section
1.148-3(e)(2) of the Regulations, one hundred percent (100%) of the Rebate
Amount on such date; and (ii) in the case of any other Computation Date, ninety
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percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount on such date. In all cases, the rebate
payments shall be made at the times, in the installments, to the place, and in the
manner as is or may be required by Section 148(f) of the Code and the
Regulations and rulings thereunder, and shall be accompanied by Form 8038-T
or such other forms and information as is or may be required by Section 148(f) of
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder.

(4) The City shall exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no
errors are made in the calculations and payments required by paragraphs (2) and
(3), and if an error is made, to discover and promptly correct such error within a
reasonable amount of time thereafter (and in all events within one hundred eighty
(180) days after discovery of the error), including payment to the United States of
any additional Rebate Amount owed to it, interest thereon, and any penalty
imposed under Section 1.148-3(h) of the Regulations.

) Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits. Except to the extent permitted by Section
148 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time
prior to the earlier of the Stated Maturity or final payment of the Bonds, enter into any
transaction that reduces the amount required to be paid to the United States pursuant to
subsection (h) of this Section because such transaction results in a smaller profit or a larger
loss than would have resulted if the transaction had been at arm’s length and had the Yield of
the Bonds not been relevant to either party.

() Elections. The City hereby directs and authorizes the Mayor, City Manager
and Director of Administrative Services, either or any combination of them, to make elections
permitted or required pursuant to the provisions of the Code or the Regulations, as they deem
necessary or appropriate in connection with the Bonds, in the Certificate as to Tax Exemption
or similar or other appropriate certificate, form or document.

(k) Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. In accordance with the provisions of
paragraph (3) of subsection (b) of Section 265 of the Code, the City hereby designates the
Bonds to be “qualified tax-exempt obligations” in that the Bonds are not “private activity
bonds” as defined in the Code and represents the amount of “tax-exempt obligations”
(excluding private activity bonds) to be issued by the City (including all subordinate entities of
the City) for the calendar year 2014 will not exceed $10,000,000.

SECTION 15. Sale of Bonds — Official Statement Approval. Pursuant to a public sale
for the Bonds, the bid submitted by (herein referred to collectively as the
“Purchasers”) is declared to be the best bid received producing the lowest true interest cost rate
to the City, and the sale of the Bonds to said Purchasers at the price of par plus a cash premium
of $ is hereby determined to be in the best interests of the City and is approved and
confirmed. Delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers shall occur as soon as possible upon
payment being made therefor in accordance with the terms of sale. The Initial Bond shall be
registered in the name as provided in the winning bid.

Furthermore, the use of the Preliminary Official Statement in connection with the public
offering and sale of the Bonds is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all respects. The
final Official Statement reflecting the terms of sale (together with such changes approved by the
Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Secretary, City Manager, and Director of Administrative Services
any one or more of said officials), shall be and is hereby in all respects approved and the
Purchasers are hereby authorized to use and distribute said final Official Statement, dated
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March 25, 2014, in the offering, sale and delivery of the Bonds to the public. The Mayor and
City Secretary are further authorized and directed to manually execute and deliver for and on
behalf of the City copies of said Official Statement in final form as may be required by the
Purchasers, and such Official Statement in the final form and content manually executed by said
officials shall be deemed to be approved by the Council and constitute the Official Statement
authorized for distribution and use by the Purchasers.

SECTION 16. Control and Custody of Bonds. The Mayor of the City shall be and is
hereby authorized to take and have charge of all necessary orders and records pending
investigation by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, including the printing and supply of
definitive Bonds, and shall take and have charge and control of the Initial Bond pending the
approval thereof by the Attorney General, the registration thereof by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts and the delivery thereof to the Purchasers.

SECTION 17. Proceeds of Sale. Immediately following the delivery of the Bonds, the
proceeds of sale of the Bonds, less amounts to pay costs of issuance, shall be deposited with
into a construction fund to finance the permanent public improvements referenced in Section 1
hereof. Any investment earnings realized may be expended for such authorized projects and
purposes or deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund. All surplus proceeds of sale of the
Bonds, including investment earnings, remaining after completion of all authorized projects or
purposes shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund.

SECTION 18. Notices to Holders - Waiver. Wherever this Ordinance provides for
notice to Holders of any event, such notice shall be sufficiently given (unless otherwise herein
expressly provided) if in writing and sent by United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to
the address of each Holder appearing in the Security Register at the close of business on the
business day next preceding the mailing of such notice.

In any case where notice to Holders is given by mail, neither the failure to mail such
notice to any particular Holders, nor any defect in any notice so mailed, shall affect the
sufficiency of such notice with respect to all other Bonds. Where this Ordinance provides for
notice in any manner, such notice may be waived in writing by the Holder entitled to receive
such notice, either before or after the event with respect to which such notice is given; and, such
waiver shall be the equivalent of such notice. Waivers of notice by Holders shall be filed with
the Paying Agent/Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of
any action taken in reliance upon such waiver.

SECTION 19. Cancellation. All Bonds surrendered for payment, redemption, transfer,
exchange, or replacement, if surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall be promptly
canceled by it; and, if surrendered to the City, such Bonds shall be delivered to the Paying
Agent/Registrar and, if not already canceled, shall be promptly canceled by the Paying
Agent/Registrar. The City may at any time deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation
any Bonds previously certified or registered and delivered which the City may have acquired in
any manner whatsoever, and all Bonds so delivered shall be promptly canceled by the Paying
Agent/Registrar. All canceled Bonds held by the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be returned to the
City.

SECTION 20. Legal Opinion. The Purchasers’ obligation to accept delivery of the
Bonds is subject to being furnished a final opinion of Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, Attorneys,
Dallas, Texas, approving the Bonds as to their validity, with said opinion to be dated and
delivered as of the date of delivery and payment for the Bonds. A true and correct reproduction
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of said opinion is hereby authorized to be printed on the definitive Bonds or an executed
counterpart thereof shall accompany the global Bonds deposited with DTC.

SECTION 21. CUSIP Numbers. CUSIP numbers may be printed or typed on the
definitive Bonds. However, it is expressly provided that the presence or absence of CUSIP
numbers on the definitive Bonds shall be of no significance and shall have no effect the legality
of such bonds. Furthermore, neither the City nor attorneys approving the Bonds as to legality
are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly printed or typed on the definitive
Bonds.

SECTION 22. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.

(@) Definitions. As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings
ascribed to such terms below:

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c¢2 12, as amended from time to time.
“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(b) Annual Reports.

The City shall provide annually to the MSRB (1) within six months after the end of each
fiscal year, beginning in or after 2014, financial information and operating data with respect to
the City of the general type included in Official Statement and described in Exhibit B hereto,
and (2) if not provided as part of such financial information and operating data, audited financial
statements of the City, when and if available. Any financial statements so provided shall be
prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in Exhibit B hereto, or such
other accounting principles as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to
state law or regulation, and audited, if the City commissions an audit of such statements and the
audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided.

If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may
be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any
document available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Web site or filed with the SEC.

(c) Notice of Certain Events.

The City shall provide notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds to
the MSRB, in a timely manner and not more than ten (10) business days after the occurrence of
the event:

Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

Non-payment related defaults;

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

PwnhE
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5 Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds;

7. Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds;

8 Bond calls;

9. Defeasances;

10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and
11. Rating changes.

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, which shall

occur as described below;

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or
the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, other than in the ordinary course of
business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or
the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material; and

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material.

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding subsection (c)12
is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal
agent, or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or
in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority
has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or
business of the City.

The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to provide
financial information or operating data in accordance with subsection (b) of this Section by the
time required by such Section.

(d) Filings with the MSRB.

All financial information, operating data, financial statements, notices and other
documents provided to the MSRB in accordance with this Section shall be provided in an
electronic format prescribed by the MSRB and shall be accompanied by identifying information
as prescribed by the MSRB.

(e) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments.

The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this
Section for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an “obligated person” with
respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any event will give
the notice required by subsection (c) of this Section of any Bond calls and defeasance that
cause the City to be no longer such an “obligated person.”

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial
owners of the Bonds; and, nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or
any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The City
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and
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notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section. Except as expressly
provided within this Section, the City does not undertake to provide any other information,
whether or not it may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s financial
results, condition, or prospects; nor does the City undertake to update any information provided
in accordance with this Section or otherwise. Furthermore, the City does not make any
representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest
in or sell Bonds at any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER OR
BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT,
FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE CITY,
WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT
SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON,
IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE
LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall
constitute a breach of or default under this Ordinance for purposes of any other provision of this
Ordinance.

Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the
duties of the City under federal and state securities laws.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the provisions of this Section may be
amended by the City from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances resulting from a
change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or
type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the provisions of this Section, as so amended,
would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the primary offering of the
Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of
the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed circumstances, and (2) either
(a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required by
any other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an amendment) of the Outstanding
Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a Person that is unaffiliated with the City (such as
nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair
the interests of the Holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The provisions of this Section
may also be amended from time to time or repealed by the City if the SEC amends or repeals
the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction determines that such
provisions are invalid, but only if and to the extent that reservation of the City’s right to do so
would not prevent underwriters of the initial public offering of the Bonds from lawfully purchasing
or selling Bonds in such offering. If the City so amends the provisions of this Section, it shall
include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided pursuant to
subsection (b) of this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the
amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating
data so provided.

SECTION 23. Further Procedures. Any one or more of the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem,
City Manager, City Secretary, and Director of Administrative Services are hereby expressly
authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all
such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and on behalf of the
City all agreements, instruments, certificates or other documents, whether mentioned herein or
not, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this
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Ordinance and the issuance of the Bonds. In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the Bonds,
the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Manager, City Secretary, and Director of Administrative
Services or Bond Counsel to the City are each hereby authorized and directed to approve any
changes or corrections to this Ordinance or to any of the documents authorized and approved
by this Ordinance: (i) in order to cure any ambiguity, formal defect or omission in the Ordinance
or such other document; or (ii) as requested by the Attorney General of the State of Texas or his
representative to obtain the approval of the Bonds by the Attorney General and if such officer or
counsel determines that such changes are consistent with the intent and purpose of the
Ordinance, which determination shall be final. In the event that any officer of the City whose
signature shall appear on any document shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of
such document, such signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient for all purposes the
same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery.

SECTION 24. Benefits of Ordinance. Nothing in this Ordinance, expressed or implied,
is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person other than the City, the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the Holders, any right, remedy, or claim, legal or equitable, under or by
reason of this Ordinance. This Ordinance in its entirety is intended to be and is for the sole and
exclusive benefit of the City, the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Holders.

SECTION 25. Inconsistent Provisions. All ordinances, orders or resolutions, or parts
thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict; and, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain
controlling as to the matters contained herein.

SECTION 26. Governing Law. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

SECTION 27. Effect of Headings. The Section headings herein are for convenience of
reference only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

SECTION 28. Construction of Terms. If appropriate in the context of this Ordinance,
words of the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural
number shall be considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or
neuter gender shall be considered to include the other genders.

SECTION 29. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof
to any circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the
application thereof to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid; and, the City Council
hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

SECTION 30. Incorporation _of Findings and Determinations. The findings and
determinations of the City Council contained in the preamble hereof are hereby incorporated by
reference and made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes as if the same were restated in full
in this Section.

SECTION 31. Public Meeting. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the
meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time,
place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this
Ordinance, was given, all as required by Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, as amended.
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SECTION 32. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and
after its passage and approval in accordance with the provisions of Texas Government Code,
Section 1201.028, as amended.

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally]
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PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 25th day of March, 2014.

CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Secretary

(City Seal)
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EXHIBIT A

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT
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EXHIBIT B
DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following information is referred to in Section 22 of this Ordinance.
Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data
The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided
annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or
under the headings of the Official Statement referred to) below:
1. The City’s annual financial statements.
2. The information contained in Tables 1 through 6 and 8 through 15 and in
Appendix B of the Official Statement.
Accounting Principles
The accounting principles referred to in such Section are generally those described in

Appendix B to the Official Statement, as such principles may be changed from time to time to
comply with state law or regulation.
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FirstSouthwest
Continulng Disdosure Services PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT Ratings:
(S0 *Coatiming Disclome of Infamation* beren) S&P: "AA"
Dated March 13, 2014 (See "Other Information -
NEW ISSUE - Book-Entry-Only Ratings" herein)

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing law, subject to
the matters described under "Tax Exemption" herein, including the alternative mininmm tax on corporations.

THE BO] LL BE I} INATED AS "QUALIFIED TAX- OBLIGATIONS" FINAN INSTITUTIONS

§3,200,000
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS
(Tarrant Counnty)
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2014

Dated Date: March 15, 2014 Due: February 1, s shown below

PAYMENT TERMS . . . Interest on the $3,200,000 City of Bedford, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014 (the "Bonds™) will accrue from March 15,
2014, (the "Dated Date™) and will be payable August 1 and February 1 of each year commencing August 1, 2014 until maturity or prior redemption, and
will be caleulated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The definitive Bonds will be initially registered and delivered only to
Cede & Co., the nomines of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC”) pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein, Beneficial ownership of
the Bonds may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within & maturity. No physical delivery of the Bonds will be made
to the awners thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will
make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. See "The
Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Book-Entry-Only System” herein. The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company N.A., Dallas, Texas (sec "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Paying Agent/Registrar").

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . . . The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas, (the "State”) including
particularly Texas Government Code, Chapter 1331, as amended, the City's Home Rule Charter, and an election held in the City of Bedford, Texas (the
"City"), on November 5, 2013 and passed by a majority of the participating voters, and are direct ohligations of the City, payable from a continuing ad
valorem tax levied on all taxable property within the City, within the Lmits prescribed by law, as provided in the ordinance authorizing the Bonds (the
"Bond Ordinance”} (sec "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Anthority for Issuancs” and "-Security and Source of Payment™),

PURPOSE . ., Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for (i) permanent public improvements and public purposes, to wit: park improvements
(Beys Ranch Lake improvements, trail improvernents, channel improvements, recreation facilities, and reiated improvements at Boys Ranch Park); and (ii)
payment of the cosis associated with the issuance of the Bonds.

MATURITY SCHEDULE CUSIP Prefix: 076465
Principal ~ Maturity  Interest  Initial  CUSIP Principal ~ Meaturity  Interest Initial  CUSIP
Amount  Februaryl _ Rate  _ Yield  Suffix® Amount  Februaryl _ Rate  _Yield  Suffix®
$105000 2015 $160,000 2025
110000 2016 165,000 2026
115000 2017 175000 2027
120000 2018 180,000 2028
125000 2019 185000 2029
130,000 2020 195000 2030
135000 2021 200,000 2031
140,000 2022 210,000 . 2032
145000 2023 220,000 2033
155000 2024 230,000 2034

(1) CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Asgociation. CUSIP dats herein s provided by CUSIP Service Bureau, managed by
Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC on behalf of the American Bankers Association. This data is not infended to creatc a database and does not
serve in auy way as a substitute for the CUSIP services. The City, the Financial Advisor and the nitial Purchaser of the Bonds {defined herein) take no
responsibility for the accuracy of such pumbers. This data is not intended to create a database and does not sefve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP
Services.

OFTIONAL REDEMPTION . . . The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after February 1, 2025, in whole or
in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on February I, 2024, or any date thereafler, at the par value thereof plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption (se2 "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Optional Redemption™).

SEPARATE ISSUES . . . The Bonds are being offered by the City concurrently with the "City of Bedford, Texas, Public Property Finance Contractual
Obligations, Series 2014 (the "Contractual Obligations"), under a common Official Statement, and such Bonds and Contractual Obligations are hereinafter
sometimes referred to collectively as the "Obligations.” The Bonds and Contractual Obligations are separate and distinct securities offerings being issued
and sold independently except for the common Official Statement, and, while they share certain common attributes, each issue is separate from the other
and should be reviewed and analyzed independently, including the type of obligation being offered, its terms for payment, the security for its payment, the
rights of the holders, and other features.

LEGALITY .. . The Bonds are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and received by the initial purchaser(s) (the "Initial Purchaser of the Bonds") and
subject to the approving opinion of the Attorney General of Texas and the opinion of Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, a membet of Norton Rose Fulbright,
Bond Counsel, Dallas, Texas (see Appendix C, "Forms of Bond Counsel's Opinion”).

DELIVERY . .. It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through The Depository Trust Company on April 29, 2014 ("Delivery Date®).

BIDS DUE TUESDAY, MARCH 25,2014, AT 11:00 AM, CDT
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Eirﬂs_DUthv—veJSt PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT Ratings:
(86 “Coctiming Discl of T S&P: "AA"

Dated March 13, 2014 (See "Other Information -
NEW ISSUE - Book-Entry-Only Ratings™ herein)

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Contractual Obligations will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposss
under existing law, subject to the matters described under "Tax Matters — Tax Exemption” herein, including the alternative mininmm tax on

corporations,

THE CONTRAC

$2,300,000
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS
(Tarrant County)
PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, SERIES 2014

Dated Date: March 15, 2014 Due: February 1, as shown below

PAYMENT TERMS . . . Interest on the $2,300,000 City of Bedford, Texas, Public Property Finance Contractual Cbligations, Series 2014 (the
"Contractual Obligations") will accrue from March 15, 2014 (the "Dated Date"), will be payable August 1 and February 1 of each year
commencing August 1, 2014, until maturity, and wilt be celculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The
definitive Contractual Obligations will be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depesitory Trast Company
("DTC™) pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Beneficial ownership of the Contractual Obligations may be acquired in
denominations of $5,000 or integral mmltiples thereof within a maturity. No physical delivery of the Contractual Obligations will be made to
the owners thereof, Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Contractual Obligations will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to
Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial
owners of the Contractual Obligations. See "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Book-Entry-Only System" hercin. The initial Paying
Agent/Registrar is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A,, Dallas, Texas (see "The Bonds and Contraciual Obligations - Paying
Agent/Registrar").

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . . . The Contractual Obligations are issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas (the
"State"), including particularly Subchapter A of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code {the Public Property Finance Act), the City's Home
Rule Charter, and constitute direct obligations of the City of Redford, Texas (the "City™), payable from & continving &d valorem tax levied on all
taxable property within the City, within the limits prescribed by law, as provided in the crdinance authorizing the Contractual Obligations (the
"Contractual Obligation Ordinance”) (see "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Authority for Issuance” and "-Security and Source of
Payment™),

PURPOSE . . . Proceeds fiom the sale of the Contractual Obligations will be used for the purpose of paying coniractual obligations to be incurred
for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for (i) the purchase of a fire truck, (ii) the purchase of computer software, (jii) 2
system upgrade to the emergency services commumnication system; and (iv) professional services rendered in connection therewith,

MATURITY SCHEDULE CUSIP Prefix V: 076465
Principal Maturity Interest Initial CUSIP Principal Maturity Interest  Initial CUSIP
Amount  Februaryl  Rate  Yield Suffix” Amount Februaryl  Rate  Yield  Suffix®
$210,000 2015 $230,000 2020
215,000 2016 235,000 2021
220,000 2017 240,000 2022
220,000 2018 250,000 2023
225,000 2019 255,000 2024

(Accrned Interest from March 15, 2014 to be added)

(1) CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP data hergin is provided by CUSIP Service Bureau, managed
by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC on behalf of the American Bankers Association. This data is not intended o create a database and
does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP services. The City, the Financial Advisor and the Initial Purchaser of the Contractual
Obligations {defined herein) take no responsibility for the accuracy of such mmbers. This data is not intended to create a database and does not
serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP Services.

OPTIONAL REDEMETION . . . The Contractual Obligations are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

SEPARATE ISSUES . . . The Contractual Obligations are being offered by the City concwrrently with the "City of Bedford, Texas, General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2014" (thc "Bonds"), under a common Official Staterment, and such Bonds and Contractual Obligations are hereinafter
sometimes referred 1o collectively as the "Obligations." The Bonds and Contractual Obligations are separate and distinct securities offerings
being issued and sold independently except for the commeon Official Statement, and, while they share certain common attributes, each issue is
sepatate from the other and should be reviewed and analyzed independently, including the type of obligation being offered, its terms for payment,
the security for its payment, the rights of the holders, and other featores.

LEGALITY . . . The Contractual Obligations are offered for delivery when, as and if issued and received by the initial purchaser(s), {the "Initizl
Purchaser of the Contractual Obligations*) and subject to the approving opinion of the Attorney General of Texas and the opinion of Fulbright &
Jaworski LLP, a membex of Norton Rose Fulbright, Bond Counsel, Dallas, Texas (see Appendix C, "Forms of Bond Counsel's Opinicn™).

DELIVERY .. . It is expected that the Contractual Obligations will be available for delivery throngh DTC on April 29, 2014 ("Delivery Date"),

BIDS DUE TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014, AT 11:00 AM, CDT
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COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the Appendices hereto, does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation
of an offer to buy in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation, or sale.

No dealer, broker, salesperson, or other person has been authorized 1o give information or to make any representation other than those
contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon.

For purposes of compliance with Rule 15¢ 2-12 of the Securities and Fxchange Commission (the "Rule”), this document comstitutes an
Official Statement of the City with respect to the that has been "deemed final" by the City as of its date except for the omission of no
more than the information permitted by the Rule.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources believed to be religble, but such information is not
guaranieed as to accuracy or completeness and is not to be construed as the representation, promise, or guarantee of the Financial
Advisor. Any information and expressions of opinion herein contained are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of
this Qfficial Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
change in the qffairs of the City or other matters described herein since the date hereof See "Other Information - Continuing
Disclosure of Information” for a description of the City's undertaking to provide certain information on a con tinuing basis.

Neither the City nor its Financial Advisor make any representation as to the accuracy, completeness, or adequacy of the information
supplied by The Depository Trust Company for use in this Official Statement,

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT CONTAINS "FORWARD-LOOKING" STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 21E OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED. SUCH STATEMENTS MAY INVOLVE KNOWN AND UNENOWN
RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES, AND OTHER FACTORS WHICH MAY CAUSE THE ACTUAL RESULTS, PERFORMANCE, AND
ACHIEVEMENTS TO BE DIFFERENT FROM FUTURE RESULTS, PERFORMANCE, AND ACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED BY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE ACTUAL RESULTS
COULD DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE SET FORTH IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS,

THE OBLIGATIONS ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AND
CONSEQUENTLY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED THEREWITH, THE REGISTRATION, QUALIFICATION, OR EXEMPTION OF
THE OBLIGATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW PROVISIONS OF THE JURISDICTION IN WHICH
THE OBLIGATIONS HAVE BEEN REGISTERED, QUALIFIED OR EXEMPTED SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS A
RECOMMENDATION THEREOF.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY

This summary is subject in all respects to the more complete information and definitions contained or incorporated in this
Official Statement. The offering of the Bonds and Contractual Obligations to potential investors {s made only by means of this
entire Official Statement. No person is authorized to detach this summary from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it
without the entire Official Statement.

THE CITY ..cuvieenenne The Citv of Bedford, Texas (the "City™) is a political subdivision and municipal corporation
of the State, located in Tarrant County, Texas. The City covers approximately 10.1 square
miles (see "Introduction - Description of the City").

THE BONDS o.oooooeeooooosessneeoennnns The Bonds are issued as $3,200,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014. The Bonds are
issued as serial bonds maturing February 1, 2015 through February 1, 2034, unless the
purchaser designates one or mote maturities as one or more Term Bonds (see "The Bonds and
Contractual Obligations - Description of the Bonds and Contractual Obligations”).

THE CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS.......coooieeroeennr. ' The Contractual Obligations are issued as $2,300,000 Public Property Finance Contractual
Obligations, Series 2014. The Contractual Obligations are to mature on February 1 in each of
the years 2015 through 2024, unless the purchaser designates one or more maturities as Term
Contractual Obligations (see "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Description of the
Bonds and Contractual Obligations™).

PAYMENT OF INTEREST .............. Interest on the Bonds and Contractual Obligations accrues from March 15, 2014, and is
payable August 1, 2014, and each February | and August 1 thereafter until mamrity or, with
respect to the Bonds, prior redemption (see "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations -
Description of the Bonds and Coniractual Obligations” and "The Bonds and Contractual
Obligations - Optional Redemption").

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE.......... The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State, including
particularly Texas Government Code, Chapter 1331, the City's Home Rule Charter, and an
election held in the City on November 5, 2013 and passed by a majority of the participating
voters, and the Bond Ordinance passed by the City Council of the City {see¢ "The Bonds and
Contractual Obligations - Authority for [ssuance”).

The Contractual Obligations are issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the
State, including particularly Subchapter A of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code
(the Public Property Finance Act), the City's Home Rule Charter, and the Contractual
Obligation Ordinance passed by the City Council of the City (see "The Bonds and Contractual
Obligations - Authority for Issuance").

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS AND
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS. The Bonda and Contractual Obligations constitute direct obligations of the City, payable from
the Jevy and collection of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax, within the limits prescribed
by law, on all taxable property located within the City (see "The Bonds and Contractual
Obligations - Security and Source of Payment”).
QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT
OBLIGATIONS....covcvmsinisarinssrrssrnnas The City will designate the Bonds and Contractual Obligations as "Qualified Tax-Exempt
Obligations" for financial institutions (see "Tax Matters - Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations
for Financial Institutions").

REDEMPTION ...0cececeeeemssssissasssnnn The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and
after February 1, 2025, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral
multiple thereof, on February 1, 2024, or any date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus
accrued interest to the date of redemption (see "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations -
Optional Redemption”).

The Contractual Obligations are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

TAX EXEMPTION. .ccoccaarsrrserernsorenss In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the interest on the Bonds and Contractual Obligations will be
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing law, subject to
the matters described under "Tax Matters” herein, including the alternative minimum tax on
corporations.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

AGENDA

........ Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used for (i) permanent public improvements and

public purposes, to wit: park improvements (Boys Ranch Lake improvements, trail
improvements, channel improvements, recreation facilities, and related improvements at Boys
Ranch Park); and (ii) payment of the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds.

Proceeds from the sale of the Contractual Obligations will be used for the purpose of paying
contractual obligations to be incurred for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be
incurred for (i) the purchase of g fire truck, (ii) the purchase of computer software, (iii} a
system upgrade to the emergency services communication system; and (iv) professional
services rendered in connection therewith.

........ The Bonds and Contractual Obligations are rated "AA" by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a

Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC business ("S&P") (see "Other Information -
Ratings"). The City also has outstanding debt that is rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
("Moody's™).

...... The definitive Bonds and Contractual Obligations will be initially registered and delivered

only to Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described
herein. Beneficial ownership of the Bonds and Contractyal Obligations may be acquired in
denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within a maturity. No physical delivery
of the Bonds and Contractual Obligations will be made to the beneficial owners thereof.
Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and Contractual Obligations will be
payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the
amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the
beneficial owners of the Bonds and Contractual Obligations {(see "The Bonds and Contractual
Obligations - Book-Entry-Only System™),

PAYMENT RECORD..................... The City has never defaulted on the payment of its bonded indebtedness.
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Ratio Tax
Per Supported
Fiscal Per Capita Tax Capita Debt
Year Estimated Taxable Taxable Supported Tax to Taxable % of
Ended City Assessed Assessed Debt at Supported Assessed Total Tax
9/30 Population Valuation Valuation End of Year Debt Valuation Collections
2010 4697900  $2,802,441,727  $59,653 $ 54,440,000 $1,159 1.94% 99.27%
2011 46,9802 2,877,028,431 61,239 61,170,000 1,302 2.13% 99.97%
2012 46,990 2,965,988,327 63,120 55,365,000 1,178 1.87% 99.54%
2013 47,3102 2,961,094,384 62,589 56,075,000 1,185 1.89% 99.15%
2014 48,7210 3,021,847335 9 62,004 55,450,000 ¥ 1,138 1.83% 90.69% ©

(1) Source: U.S. Census Bureau.

(2) Source: North Central Texas Council of Governments.
(3) Source: Demographicsnow.com.

(4) As reported by the Tarrant Appraisal District on City's annual State Property Tax Reports; subject to change during the

ensuing year.

(3) Preliminary, includes the Bonds and Contractual Obligations.
(6) Collections for partial year only, through February 1, 2014.

For additional information regarding the City, please contact:

Beverly Griffith David K. Medanich

Clifford Blackwell Laura Alexander

City of Bedford or Nick Bulaich

2000 Forest Ridge Drive First Southwest Company

Bedford, Texas 76021 777 Main Street, Suite 1200

(817)952-2164 Fort Worth, Texas 76102
(817) 332-9710
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CITY OFFICIALS, STAFF AND CONSULTANTS
ELECTED OFFICIALS
Length of Term
City Council Service Expires Oceupation
Jim Griffin 10 Years May, 2015 Senior Consultant
Mayor
Michael Boyter 2 Years May, 2015 Medical Sales
Councilmember
Place 1
Jim Davisson 2 Years May, 2015 Education
Councilmember
Place 2
Ray Champney 5 Years May, 2016 Marketing
Councilmember
Place 3
Patricia Nolan 2 Years May, 2014 Marketing
Councilmember
Place 4
Roy Tumer 7 Years May, 2016 Physician
Councilmember
Place 5
Chris Brown 6 Years May, 2014 Student
Councilmember
Place 6
SELECTED ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF
Length of Length of
Service Government
Name Position with City Service
Beverly Griffith City Manager 19 Years 36 Years
Clifford Blackwell Director of Administrative Services 4 Years 18 Years
Michael Wells City Secretary 7 Years 13 Years
Stan Lowry City Attorney 19 Years 24 Years
CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS
AUJHEUOTS oo vtesectsessmressressasssssessssvstossssasnsenssses asasamsasement a4t sb0esbhs ot IR SREPRRLR LTS8 HEAE LS FEA LR LSRR RS RS PR TR SRR R n b amten e e e b e b Eebe AT T e S e T e R e BKD, LL.P
Dallas, Texas
BODA COUNSEL ...ceceeecerev vt ae s sesas e ss s s s e e nn s s e e b bR SRR AR AR AR AR AR R R e e e e e SR 0P80 Fulbright & Jaworski LLP
Dallas, Texas

Financial Advisor .........

... First Southwest Company
Fort Worth, Texas
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT
RELATING TO

$3,200,000 $2,300,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2014 PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, SERIES 2014

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the Appendices hereto, provides certain information regarding the issuance of
$3,200,000 City of Bedford, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014 (the "Bonds") and $2,300,000 City of Bedford,
Texas, Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2014 (the "Contractual Obligations", and collectively with the
Bonds, the "Obligations"). The Obligations are separate and distinct securities offerings being authorized for issuance under
separate ordinances (the "Bond Ordinance” and the "Contractual Obligation Ordinance") adopted by the City Council of the City,
but are being offered and sold pursuant to a common Official Statement, and while the Obligations share certain common
attributes, each issue is separate and apart from the other and should be reviewed and analyzed independently, including the kind
and type of obligation being issued, its terms of payment, the security for its payment, the rights of the holders, and the
covenants and agreements made with respect thereto. Capitalized terms used in this Official Statement have the same meanings
assigned to such terms in the Bond Ordinance and Contractual Obligation Ordinance to be adopted on the date of sale of the
Bonds and Contractual Obligations (collectively, the "Ondinances"), which will authorize the issuance of the Obligations, except
as otherwise indicated herein.

There follows in this Official Statement descriptions of the Obligations and cettain information regarding the City and its
finances. All descriptions of documents contained herein are only summaries and are qualified in their entirety by reference to
each such document. Copies of such documents may be obtained from the City's Financial Advisor, FirstSouthwest, Fort Worth,
Texas.

DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY . . . The City is a political subdivision and municipal corporation of the State, duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State, including the City's Home Rule Charter. The City was incorporated in 1953, and first
adopted its Home Rule Charter in 1966. The City operates under a Council/Manager form of government with a City Council
comprised of the Mayor and six Councilmembers, with their term of office as three years. The City Manager is the chief
administrative officer for the City. Some of the services that the City provides are public safety (police and fire protection),
highways and streets, water and sanitary sewer utilities, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and
general administrative services. The 2010 Census population for the City was 46,979, while the 2014 estimated population is
48,721. The City covers approximately 10.1 square miles.

THE BONDS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

DESCRIFTION OF THE BONDS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS . . . The Obligations are dated March 15, 2014 (the "Dated
Date"), and mature on February 1 in each of the years and in the amounts shown on the cover page and page 3 hereof. Interest
will acerue from the Dated Date, will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, and will be payable
on August 1 and February 1, commencing August 1, 2014, until maturity or, with respect to the Bonds, prior redemption. The
definitive Obligations will be issued only in fully registered form in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and will
be initially registered and delivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") pursuant to the
Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Ne physical delivery of the Obligations will be made to the owners thereof,
Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Obligations will be payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Cede & Co.,
which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the
beneficial owners of the Obligations. See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein.

Interest on the Obligations shall be paid to the registered owners appearing on the registration books of the Paying
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date (hereinafter defined), and such interest shall be paid (i) by check sent
United States Mail, first class postage prepaid to the address of the registered owner recorded in the registration books of the
Paying Agent/Registrar or (ii) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar requested by, and at the risk and
cxpense of, the registered owner. Principal of the Obligations will be paid to the registered owner at their stated maturity or, with
respect to the Bonds, upon earlier redemption upon presentation to the designated paymentfiransfer office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar; provided, however, that so long as Cede & Co. (or other DTC nominee) is the registered owmer of the
Obligations, all payments will be made as described under "The Bonds and Contractual Obligations - Book-Entry-Only System"
herein. If the date for any payment on the Obligations shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday or a day when banking
institutions in the city where the designated payment/transfer office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized to
close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a day, and payment on such date shall
have the same force and effect as if made on the date payment was due.
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AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . ..The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State,
particularly Chapter 1331, Texas Government Code, as amended, the City's Home Rule Charter, and an election held in the City
on November 5, 2013 and passed by a majority of the participating voters, and by the Bond Ordinance passed by the City
Council.

The Contractual Obligations are being issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State, particularly Subchapter
A of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code (the Public Property Finance Act), the City's Home Rule Charter, and the
Contractual Obligation Ordinance passed by the City Council of the City.

SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT . . . The principal of and interest on the Obligations is payable from a direct and continuing
annual ad valorem tax levied by the City, within the limits prescribed by law, upon all taxable property in the City.

Tax RATE LIMITATION . . . All taxable property within the City is subject to the assessment, levy and collection by the City of a
continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal of and interest on all ad valorem tax
debt within the limit prescribed by law. Article XI, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution is applicable to the City, and provides
for a maximum ad valorem tax rate of $2.50 per $100 Taxable Assessed Valuation for all City purposes. The Home Rule
Charter of the City authorizes a maximum tax rate of $1.50 per $100 Taxable Assessed Valuation. Administratively, the
Attorney General of the State of Texas will permit ailocation of $1.50 of the $2.50 maximum tax rate for all general obligation
debt service, as calculated at the time of issuance and based on a 90% collection rate.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION . . . The City reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Bonds having stated maturities on and after
February 1, 2025, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on February 1, 2024, or any
date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. If less than all of the Bonds are to be
redeemed, the City may select the maturities of Bonds to be redeemed. If less than all the Bonds of any maturity are to be
redeemed, the Paying Agent'Registrar (or DTC while the Bonds are in Book-Entry-Only form) shall determine by lot the Bonds,
or portions thereof, within such maturity to be redeemed. If a Bond (or any portion of the principal sum thereof) shall have been
called for redemption and notice of such redemption shall have been given, such Bond (or the principal amount thereof to be
redeemed) shall become due and payable on such redemption date and interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the
redemption date, provided funds for the payment of the redemption price and accrued interest thereon are held by the Paying
Ageni/Registrar on the redemption date,

The Contractual Obligations are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION . . . Not less than 30 days prior to a redemption date for the Bonds, the City shail cause a notice of
redemption to be sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, in
whole or in part, at the address of the registered owner appearing on the registration books of the Paying AgentRegistrar at the
close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice. ANY NOTICE SO MAILED SHALL BE
CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED TO HAVE BEEN DULY GIVEN, WHETHER OR NOT THE REGISTERED OWNER
RECEIVES SUCH NOTICE. NOTICE HAVING BEEN SO GIVEN, THE BONDS CALLED FOR REDEMPTION SHALL
BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE ON THE SPECIFIED REDEMPTION DATE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THAT ANY
BOND OR PORTION THEREOF HAS NOT BEEN SURRENDERED FOR PAYMENT, INTEREST ON SUCH BOND OR
PORTION THEREOF SHALL CEASE TO ACCRUE.

With respect to any optional redemption of the Bonds, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying AgentRegistrar prior to the giving of such notice of
redemption, such notice may state that said redemption may, at the option of the City, be conditional upon the receipt of such
moneys by the Paying Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon the satisfaction of any
prerequisites set forth in such notice of redemption; and, if sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force
and effect, the City shall not redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the manner in which the
notice of redemption was given, to the effect that the Bonds have not been redeemed.

AMENDMENTS . . . The City, may, without the consent of or notice to any registered owners, from time to time and at any time,
amend the Ordinances in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the registered owners, including the curing of any
ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission therein. In addition, the City may, with the written consent of holders of
a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds or Contractual Obligations, as the case may be, then outstanding, amend,
add 1o, or rescind any of the provisions of the Ordinances; provided that, without the consent of the registered owners of all of
the Bonds or Contractual Obligations, as the case may be, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the time or
times of pavment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any Bond or Contractual Obligation, reduce the principal
amount thereof, the redemption price (with respect to the Bonds), or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the
terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds or Contractual Obligations, (2) give any
preference to any Bond or Contractual Obligation over any other Bond or Contractual Obligation, as the casc may be, or (3)
reduce the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds or Contractual Obligations, as the case may be, required to be held by the
owners of the Bonds or Contractual Obligations, as the case may be, for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission.
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BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM . .. This section describes how ownerskip of the Obligations is to be transferred and how the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Obligations are to be paid to and credited by The Depository Trust Company
("DTC"}), New York, New York, while the Obligations are registered in its nominee name. The information in this section
concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been provided by DTC for use in disclosure documents such as this
Official Statement. The City believes the source of such information to be reliable, but takes no responsibility for the accuracy
or completeness thereof:

The City cannot and does not give any assurance that (1) DTC will distribute payments of debt service on the Obligations, or
redemption or other notices, to DTC Participants, (2) DTC Participants or others will distribute debt service payments paid to
DTC or its nominee (as the registered owner of the Obligations), or redemption or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or
that they will do so on a timely basis, or (3) DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The
current rules applicable to DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the current procedures of DTC to
be followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Obligations. The Obligations will be issued as fully-registered securities registered
in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative
of DTC. One fully-registered obligation certificate will be issued for each maturity and series of the Obligations, each in the
aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New Yotk Banking Law, a
"banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing
corporation"” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million
issues of U.8. and non-1J.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100
countries) that DTC’s participants ("Direct Participants®) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement
among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the nced for physical movement of
securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, frust companies,
clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income
Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.
Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, and clearing companies that clear through or maintain 2 custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either
directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants™). DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of "AA+". The DTC Rules applicable to its
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at
www.dtce.com.

Purchases of Obligations under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for
the Obligations on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Obligation ("Beneficial Owner") is
in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation
from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, cxpected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Obligations are to be accomplished by entries made
on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive
certificates representing their ownership interests in Cbligations, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the
Obligations is discontinue.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Obligations deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC’s
partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC, The deposit
of Obligations with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change
in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Obligations; DTC’s records reflect only
the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Obligations are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants,
and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject
to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Obligations may wish to
take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with tespect to the Obligations, such as
redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Obligation documents, For example, Beneficial Owners of
Obligations may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Obligations for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit
notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the
register and request that copics of the notices be provided directly to them.
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Redemption notices for the Bonds shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity and series are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nomines) will consent or vote with respect to Obligations unless authorized by
a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City
as soon as possible after the record date. The Ommibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct
Participants to whose accounts Obligations are credited on the record date (identificd in a listing aitached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the Obligations will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by
an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and
comresponding detail information from the City or the Paying Agent'Registrar of each series, on the payable date in accordance
with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or
tegistered in "street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Paying
Agent/Registrar of each series, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. Payment of redemption proceeds, principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an
authotized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or Paying Agent/Registrar of each series, disbursement of such
payments 1o Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners
will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to one or both series of the Obligations at any time by
giving reasonable notice to the City or the respective Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor depository is not obtained, Obligation certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue the use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor depository).
In that event, Obligation certificates will be printed and delivered.

Use of Certain Terms in Other Sections of this Official Statement . ..In reading this Official Statement it should be
understood that while the Obligations are in the Book-Entry-Only System, references in other sections of this Official Statement
to registered owners should be read to include the person for which the Participant acquires an interest in the Obligations, but (i)
all rights of ownership must be exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System, and (ii) except as described above,
notices that are to be given to registered owners under the Ordinances will be given only to DTC.

Information concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System has been obiained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to

accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a representation by the City, the Financial Advisor, or the Initial
Purchasers.

Effect of Termination of Book-Entry-Only System . ..In the event that the Book-Entry-Only System of the Obligations is
discontinued, printed certificates will be issued to the DTC Participants or the holder, as the case may be, and such Obligations
will be subject to transfer, exchange and registration provisions as set forth in the Ordinances and summarized under "The Bonds
and Contractual Obligations - Transfer, Exchange and Registration” below.

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR . . . The initial Paying Agent'Registrar is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
Dallas, Texas. In the Ordinances, the City retains the right to replace the Paying AgentRegistrar. The City covenants to
maintain and provide a Paying Apent'Registrar at all times until the Bonds or Contractual Obligations are duly paid and any
successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank or trust company organized under the laws of the State of Texas or
other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as and perform the duties and services of Paying Agent-Registrar for
the Bonds and Contractual Obligations. Upon amy change in the Paying Agent'Registrar for the Bonds or Contractual
Obligations, the City agrees to promptly cause a writien notice thereof to be sent to each registered owner of the Bonds and
Contractual Obligations affected by the changes by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, which notice shall also give
the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.

TRANSFER, EXCHANGE AND REGISTRATION . . . In the event the Book-Entry-Only System should be discontinued, with respect
to the Bonds or the Contractual Obligations, Bonds or Contractual Obligations, as the case may be, will be printed and delivered
to the registered owners thereof and thereafter may be transferred and exchanged on the registration books of the Paying
Agent/Registrar only upon presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar and such transfer or exchange shall be
without expense or service charge to the registered owner, except for any tax or other governmental charges required to be paid
with respect to such registration, exchange and transfer. Bonds and Contractual Obligations may be assigned by the execution of
an assignment form on the respective Bonds and Contractual Obligations or by other instrument of transfer and assignment
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. New Bonds and Contractual Obligations will be delivered by the Paying
Agent/Registrar, in lieu of the Bonds and Contractual Obligations being wransfarred or exchanged, at the designated office of the
Paying Agent/Registrar, or sent by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the new registered owner or his designee.
To the extent possible, new Bonds and Contractual Obligations issued in an exchange or transfer of Bonds and Contractual
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Obligations will be delivered to the registered owner or assignee of the registered owner in not more than three business days
after the receipt of the Bonds and Contractual Obligations to be canceled, and the written instrument of transfer or request for
exchange duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.
New Bonds and Contractual Obligations registered and delivered in an exchange or transfer ghall be in any integral multiple of
$5,000 for any one maturity and for a like aggregate principal emount and series as the Bonds and Contractual Obligations
surrendered for exchange or transfer. See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein for a description of the system to be utilized
initially in regard to ownership and transferability of the Obligations. Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be
required to transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 days of the date fixed for
redemption; provided, however, such limitation on transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the
uncalled balance of a Bond.

RECORD DATE FOR INTEREST PAYMENT . . . The record date ("Record Date™) for the interest payable on the Bonds and
Contractual Obligations on any interest payment date means the close of business on fifteenth day of the month next preceding
such interest payment date.

In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such
interest payment (a "Special Record Date") will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment
of such interest have been received from the City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the
past due interest (“Special Payment Date”, which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five
business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder of
a Bond or Contractual Obligation appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on
the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

OBLIGATIONHOLDFRS' REMEDIES . . . The Ordinances do not specify payments of default. If the City defaults in the payment of
principal of or interest on the Obligations when due, or if it fails to make payments into any fund or fiunds created in the
Ordinances, or defaults in the observation or performance of any other covenants, conditions or obligations set forth in the
Ordinance, the registered owners may seek a writ of mandamus to compel City officials to carry out their legally imposed duties
with respect to the Obligations if there is no other available remedy at law to compel performance of the Obligations or the
Ordinances and the City’s obligations are not uncertain or disputed. The issuance of a writ of mandamus may be sought if there
is no other available remedy at law to compel performance of the Obligations or Ordinances and the City*s obligations are not
uncertain or disputed. The issuance of a writ of mandamus is controlled by equitable principles and rests with the discretion of
the court, but may not be arbitrarily refused. There is no acceleration of maturity of the Obligations in the event of default and,
consequently, the remedy of mandamus may have to be relied upon from year to year. The Ordinances does not provide for the
appointment of a trustee to represent the interest of the holders of the Obligations upon any failure of the City to perform in
accordance with the terms of the Ordinance, or upon any other condition and accordingly all legal actions to enforce such
remedies would have to be undertaken at the initiative of, and be financed by, the registered owners. The Texas Supreme Court
ruled in Tooke v. City of Mexia, 197 8.W.3d 325 (Tex. 2006) that a waiver of sovereign immunity in a contractual dispute must
be provided for by statute in "clear and unambiguous” language. Because it is unclear whether the Texas legislature has
effectively waived the City's sovereign immunity from a suit for money damages, Obligationholders may not be able to bring
such a suit against the City for breach of the Obligations or Ordinances covenants in the absence of City action. Even if &
Jjudgment against the City could be obtained, it could not be enforced by direct levy and execution against the City's property.
Further, the registered owners cannot themselves foreclose on property within the City or sell property within the City to enforce
the tax lien on taxable property to pay the principal of and intercst on the Obligations. Furthermore, the City is eligible to seek
relief from its creditors under Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code ("Chapter 9"}, Aithough Chapter 9 provides for the
recognition of a security interest represented by a specifically pledged source of revenues, the pledge of ad valorem taxes in
support of a gencral obiigation of a bankrupt entity is not specifically recognized as a security interest under Chapter 9. Chapter
9 also includes an avtomatic stay provision that would prohibit, without Bankruptey Court approval, the prosecution of any other
legal action by creditors or Obligationholders of an entity which has sought protection under Chapter 9. Therefore, should the
City avail itself of Chapter 9 protection from creditors, the ability to enforce would be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy
Court (which could require that the action be heard in Bankruptcy Court instead of other federal or state court); and the
Bankruptcy Code provides for broad discretionary powers of a Bankruptcy Court in administering any proceeding brought before
it. The opinion of Bond Counsel will note that all opinions relative to the enforceability of the Obligations are qualified with
respect to the customary rights of debtors relative to their ereditors and by general principles of equity which permit the exercise
of judicial discretion.

Initially, the only registered owner of the Obligations will be Cede & Co., as DTC's nominee. See "The Bonds and Contractual
Obligations - Book-Entry-Only System" herein.

DEFEASANCE . . . The Ordinances provide for the defeasance of the CObligations when the payment of the principal of and
premium, if any, on the Obligations plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity,
redemption or otherwise), is provided by irrevocably depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar or other authorized Escrow
Agent, in trust (1) money sufficient to make such payment or (2) Government Securities, maturing as to principal and interest in
such amounts and at such times to insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to make such payment, and
all necessary and proper fees, compensation, and expenses of the paying agent for the Obligations being defeased. The
Ordinances provides that "Government Securities" means () direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of America,

13



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (b) noncallable obligations of an
agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured
by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date of acquisition or purchase thereof, are rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, (c) noncallable obligations of a state or an
agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date of the
acquisition or purchase thereof, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than
AAA or its equivalent and (d) any other then authorized securities or obligations that may be used to defease obligations such as
the Obligations under the then applicable laws of the State of Texas. The City additionally has the right, subject to satisfying the
requirements of (1) and (2) above, to substitute other Government Securities for the Government Securities originally deposited,
10 reinvest the uninvested monevs on deposit for such defeasance and o withdraw for the benefit of the City moncys in excess of
the amount required for such defeasance. There is no assurance that the current law will not be changed in a manner which
would permit investments other than those described above to be made with amounts deposited to defease the Obligations.
Because the Ordinances does not contractually limit such investments, registered owners will be deemed to have consented to
defeasance with such other investments, notwithstanding the fact that such investments may not be of the same investment
quality as those currently permitted under State law.

Upon making such deposit in the manner described, such Obligations shall no longer be deemed outstanding obligations secured
by the Ordinance, but will be payable only from the funds and Government Securities deposited in escrow and will not be
considered debt of the City for purposes of taxation or applying any limitation on the City’s ability to issue debt or for any other
purpose. There is no assurance that the ratings for U.S. Treasury securities used for defeasance purposes or that for any other
Government Securitics will be maintained at any particular rating category. Furthermore, all rights of the City to initiate
proceedings to call the Obligations for redemption or take any other action amending the terms of the Obligations are
extinguished; provided, however, that the right to call the Obligations for redemption is not extinguished if the City: (i) in the
proceedings providing for the firm banking and financial arrangements, expressly reserves the right to call the Obligations for
redemption; (ii) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the owners of the Obligations immediately following the making
of the firm banking and financial arrangements; and (iif} directs that notice of the reservation be included in any redemption
notices that it authorizes.

AMENDMENTS . . . The City may amend the Ordinances without the consent of or notice to any registered owners of the
Qbligations in any manner not detrimental to the interests of such registered owners, including the curing of any ambiguity,
inconsistency, or formal defect or omission therein. In addition, the City may, with the consent of the registered owners of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Obligations then Outstanding, amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of
the Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of all registered owners of all Outstanding Obligations, no such amendment,
addition, or rescission may (1) extend the time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the
Obligations, reduce the principal amount, the redemption price, or the rute of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the
terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Obligations, (2) give any preference to any Obligation
over any other Obligation, or (3) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Obligations required to be held by registered owners
of such Obligations for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission under the Ordinance.
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TAX INFORMATION

AD VALOREM TAX LAW . . . The appraisal of property within the City is the responsibility of the Tarrant Appraisal District (the
"Appraisal District"). Excluding agricultural and open-space land, which may be taxed on the basis of productive capacity, the Appraisal
DistrictisrequiredlmdertheTmsPropertyTaxCodehappmiseaﬂmupaﬂu&ﬂﬁnﬂwAppmisalDistictmthebasisoflOO%ofiw
market value and are prohibited from applying any assessment ratios. In determining the market value of property, different methods of
appraisalmaybeused,includingﬂ)eoostmeﬂzodofapprajsal,ﬂleincomcmcﬂxodofappmisalandthcmadcetdalncomparisonmetlmdof
appraisal, and the method considered most appropriate by the chief appraiser is to be used. State law requires the appraised value of a
residence homesiead to be based solely on the property’s value as a residence homestead, regardless of whether residential use is
considered to be the highest and best use of the property.

Statelawﬁ.u‘tl'lerlimitstheappraisedva]ueofar&sidenoel'nmmteadforamywtoanamountnotmexceedﬂwlesserof(l)ﬂmmmket
valueofthepropertyﬁ)rthemostrecenttaxyearthatthemarketvaluewasdetmnjmdbytheappmisdofﬁceor&)ﬂwsumof(a)IO%of
the property’s appraised value the preceding year phis {b) the property’s appraised value in the preceding year plus (c) the market value of
all new improvements to the property. ThevahwphcedumnpmpmtywdmmmeApmaisalDiskidissubjmtmwﬁewbymAppmism
ReviewBoard,oonsistingofmanbe;sappointedbyﬂleBoardofDirectorsoftheAppmisajDistricL The Appraisal District is required to
mviewﬂlevalueofpmpmywiﬂmmeAppmisa]Disﬁctatleastwayﬂneeyeam The City may require annual review at its own
expense, and is em:iﬂedtochallmgethedeterminm:ionofamaisedvalueofpropertywiﬂlinﬂleCitybypeﬁtionﬁledwimﬂwAppmisal
Review Board,

Reference is made to Title I of the Texas Tax Code (the "Property Tax Code") for identification of property subject to taxation; property
exempt or which may be exempted from taxation, if claimed; the appraisal of property for ad valorem taxation purposes; and the
Pprocedures end limitations applicable to the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes.

Article VIII of the State Constitution ("Article VIII") and State law provide for certain exemptions from property taxes, the valuation of
agricultural and open-space lands at productivity value and the exemption of certain personal property from ad valorem taxation,

Under Section 1-b, Article VIII, and State law, the governing body of a political subdivision, at its option, may grant an exemption of not
less than $3,000 of the market value of the residence homestead of persons 65 years of age or older and the disabled from all ad valorem
taxes thereafter levied by the political subdivision. Once anthorized, such exemption may be repealed or decreased or increased in
amount (i} by the goveming body of the political subxivision or (ii) by a favarable vote of a majority of the qualified voters at an election
called by the governing body of the political subdivision, which election must be called upon receipt of a petition signed by at least 20%
of the mumber of qualified voters who voted in the preceding election of the political subdivision. In the case of a decrease, the amount of
the exemption may not be reduced to less than $3,000 of the market valye.

Thesurvivingspouseofanindividunlwhoqualiﬂesfortheforegoingexemﬁonforthemsidmcehamesbeadofapmonﬁorolder(bm
notthedisabled)isenﬁtledtoana(emptionforfhesamepmpertymanmnountequaltomatofﬂreexanptionforwhichthedeceased
spouse qualified if (i) the deceased spouse died in a year in which the deceased spouse qualified for the exemption, (i) the surviving
spouse was at least 55 years of age at the time of the death of the individual’s spouse and (iii) the property was the residence homestead of
thesurvivingspousewhmmedemsedspouwdiedmdmamsmeresidmwmmdofmesuMthspom

In addition to any other exemptions provided by the Property Tax Code, the governing body of a political subdivision, at its option, may
grant an exemption of up to 20% of the market value of residence homesteads, with a minimum exemption of $5,000.

In the case of residence homestead exemptions granted under Section 1-b, Article VIIL, ad valorem taxes may continue to be levied
against the value of homesteads exempted where ad valorem taxes have previously been pledged for the payment of debt if cessation of
the Jevy would impair the obligation of the contract by which the debt was created.

As of January 1,2004,underArﬁcleV1IIandSmtelaw,ﬂlegovemingbodyofaemmty,municipalityorjunioreollegedishictmay
provideﬁ)raﬁmontomlamountofadvaloremleviedonﬂ:ueresidenoehomeﬂeadofadisabledpusonorpms 65 years of age or
older above the amoumt of tax imposed in the year such residence qualified for such exemption, Also, upon receipt of a petition signed by
five percent of the registered voters of the county, municipality or junior college district, an election must be held to determine by majority
vote whether to establish such a limitation on taxes paid on residence homesteads of persans 65 years of age or who are disabled. Upon
providing for such exemption, such freeze on ad valorem taxes is transferable to a different residence homestesd, Also, a surviving
spouscofataxpayerwhoqualiﬁforﬂ:eﬁ'eeaeonadvalmuntzxesismﬁtledtoﬂ]esameexenmﬁmsolongasthepmpa'tywasthe
rmidmcehom@steadofthesurvivingspousewhmthedeceasedspouscdiedmdmains&emsidmcehom&steadofﬂlemvivﬁlgspouse
and the spouse was at least 55 years of age at the time of the death of the individual’s spouse. If improvements (other than repairs or
improvements required to comply with govermmental requirements) are made to the property, the value of the improvements is taxed at
ﬂlethmculrenttaxmte,andﬂ:emtalmnountoftaxesimposedisinereasedbreﬂectﬂlenewimpmwments“d&nhenewamouutoftax&
then serving as the ceiling on taxes for the following years. Once established such freeze cannot be repealed or rescinded.

State law and Section 2, Article VIII, mandatemaddiﬁonalpmpatyhxmempﬁonfordisabledveﬁeransmtheswﬁvingspousem
children of a deceased veteran who died while on active duty in the armed forces; the exemption applies to either real or personal property
with the amount of assessed valuation exempted ranging from $5,000 to 2 maximum of $12,000; provided, however, that beginning in the
2009 tax year, a disabled veteran who receives from the from the United States Department of Veterans Affairs or its successor 100
percent disability compensation due to a service-connected disability and a rating of 100 percent disabled or of individual unemployability
is entitled to an exemption from taxation of the total appraised value of the veteran’s residence homestead. Furthermore, effective January
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1, 2012, surviving spouses of a deceased veteran who had received a disability rating of 100% are entitled to receive a residential
homestead exemption equal to the exemption received by the deceased spouse until such surviving spouse remaries.

Article VIII provides that eligible owners of both agricultural iand (Section 1-d) and open-space land (Section 1-d-1), including open-
space land devoted to farm or ranch purposes or open-space land devoted to timber production, may elect to have such property appraised
for property taxation on the basis of its productive capacity. The same land may not be qualified under both Sections 1-d and 1-d-1.

Nonbusiness personal property, such as automobiles or light trucks, are exempt from ad valorem taxation unless the goveming body of a
political subdivision elects to tax this property. Boats owned as nonbusiness property are exempt from ad valorem taxation.

Article VIIL, Section 1-j, provides for "freeport property™ to be exempted from ad valorem taxation. Freeport property is defined as goods
detained in Texas for 175 days or less for the purpose of assembly, sworage, manufacturing, processing or fabrication. Notwithstanding
such exemption, counties, school districts, junior college districts and cities may tax such tangible personal property provided official
action to tax the same was taken before April 1, 1990. Decisions o continue to tax may be reversed in the future; decisions to exempt
freeport property are not subject to reversal.

Under Section 11.253 of the Texas Tax Code, "Goods-in-Transit" are exempt fromn taxation unless a taxing unit opts out of the exemption.
Goods-in-Transit are defined as tangible personal property that: (i} is acquired in or imported info the state to be forwarded tw another
Iocation in the state or outside the state; (if) is detained at a location in the state in which the owner of the property does not have a direct
or indirect ownership interest for assembling, storing, manufacturing, processing, or fabricating purposes by the person who acquired or
imported the property; {iii) is transported to another location in the state or outside the state not later than 175 days after the date the
person acquired the property in or tnporied the property info the state; and (iv) does not include oil, natural gas, petroleum products,
aircraft, dealer’s motor vehicle inventory, dealer’s vessel and outboard motor inventory, dealer’s heavy equipment inventory, or retail
manufactured housing inventory. A taxpayer may receive only one of the freeport exemptions or the goods-in-transit exemptions for
items of personal property,

The City may create one or more tax increment financing districts ("TIF"} within the City and freeze the taxable values of property in the
TIF at the value at the time of its creation. Other overlapping taxing units levying taxes in the TIF may agree to contribute all or part of
future ad valorem taxes levied and collected against the value of property in the TIF in excess of the "frozen values” to pay or finance the
costs of certain public improvements in the TIF. Taxes levied by the City against the values of real property in the TIF in excess of the
“frozen" value are not available for general city use but are restricted to paying or financing "project costs” within the TIF. The City also
may enter into tax abatement agteements to encourage economic development. Under tax abatement agreement, a property owner
typically agrees to construct certain improvements o its property. The City in turn agrees not to levy a tax on all or part of the increased
value attributable to the improvements until the expiration of the agreement. The abatement agreement could last for a period of up to 10
years.

Municipalities are also anthorized, pursuant 1o Chapter 380, Texas Local Govemnment Code, as amended ("Chapter 380"), 10 establish
programs or promote state or local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the city. In accordance
with a program established pursuant to Chapter 380, a city may make loans or grants of public funds for economic development purposes,
however, no obligations secured by ad valorem taxes may be issned for such purposes unless approved by voters of the city.

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE AND ROLLBACK Tax RATE . .. Section 26.05 of the Property Tax Code provides that the governing body
of a taxing unit is required 1o adopt the annual tax rate for the unit before the later of September 30 or the 60" day after the date
the certified appraisal roll is received by the taxing unit, and a failure to adopt a tax rate by such required date will result in the
tax rate for the taxing unit for the tax year to be the lower of the effective tax rate calculated for that tax year or the tax rate
adopted by the taxing unit for the preceding tax year. Furthermore, Section 26.05 provides the City Council may not adopt a tax
tate that exceeds the lower of the roliback tax rate or the effective tax rate until two public hearings are held on the proposed tax
rate following a notice of such public hearings (including the requirement that notice be posted on the City’s website if the City
owns, operates or controls an internet website and public notice be given by television if the City has free access to a television
channel) and the City Council has otherwise complied with the legal requirements for the adoption of such tax rate. The tax rate
consists of two components: (1} a rate for funding of maintenance and operation expenditures, and (2} a rate for debt service.

Under the Property Tax Code, the City must annually calculate and publicize its "effective tax rate” and "rollback tax rate". If
the adopted tax rate exceeds the rollback tax rate the qualified voters of the City by petition may require that an election be held
to determine whether or not to reduce the tax rate adopted for the current year to the rollback tax rate.

"Effective tax rate” means the rate that will produce last vear's total tax levy (adjusted) from this year's total taxable values
(adjusted). "Adjusted” means lost values are not included in the calculation of last year's taxes and new values are not included
in this vear's taxable values.

"Rollback tax rate” means the rate that will produce last vear's maintenance and operation tax levy (adjusted) from this year's
values (adjusted) multiplied by 1.08 plus a rate that will produce this year's debt service from this year's values (unadjusted)
divided by the anticipated tax collection rate.

The Property Tax Cede provides that certain cities and counties in the State may submit a proposition to the voters to authorize
an additional one-half cent sales tax on retail sales of taxable items. If the additional tax is levied, the effective tax rate and the
rollback tax rate calculations are required o be offset by the revenue that will be generated by the sales tax in the current year.
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Reference is made to the Property Tax Code for definitive requirements for the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes and the
calculation of the various defined tax rates.

PROPERTY ASSESSMENT AND TAX PAYMENT . . . Property within the City is generally assessed as of January 1 of each year.
Business inventory may, at the option of the taxpayer, be assessed as of February 1. Oil and gas reserves are assessed on the
basis of a valuation process which uses an average of the daily price of oil and gas for the prior year. Taxes become due October
1 of the same year, and become delinquent on February 1 of the following year. Taxpayers 65 years old or older are permitted
by State law to pay taxes on homesteads in four installments with the first due on February 1 of each year and the final
installment due on August 1.

PENALTIES AND INTEREST . , . Charges for penalty and interest on the unpaid balance of delinquent taxes are made as follows:

Cumulative Cumulative

Month Penalty Interest Total
February 6% 1% 7%
March 7 2 9
April 8 3 11
May 9 4 13
June 10 5 15
Tuly 12 6 18

After July, the penalty remains at 12%, and interest accrues at a rate of one percent (1%) for each month or portion of a month
the tax remains unpaid. A delinquent tax continues to accrue interest as long as the tax remains unpaid, regardless of whether a
judgment for the delinquent tax has been rendered. The purpose of imposing such interest is to compensate the taxing unit for
revenue lost because of the delinquency. In addition the taxing unit may contract with an attorney for the collection of
delinquent taxes and the amount of compensation as set forth in such contract may not provide for a fee that exceeds 20% of the
amount of delinquent tax, penalty, and interest collected, and such fee may be added to the total tax penalty and interest charged
to the taxpayer. Under certain circumstances, taxes whick become delinquent on the homestead of a taxpayer 65 years old or
older incur a penalty of 8% per annum with no additional penalties or interest assessed. In general, property subject to the City's
lien may be sold, in whole or in parcels, pursuant to court order to collect the amounts due, Federal law does not allow for the
collection of penalty and interest against an estate in bankruptcy. Federal bankruptcy law provides that an automatic stay of
action by creditors and other entities, including governmental units, goes into effect with the filing of any petition in bankruptcy.
The automatic stay prevents governmental units from foreclosing on property and prevents liens for post-petition taxes from
attaching to property and obtaining secured eredlitor status unless, in either case, an order lifting the stay is obtained from the
bankruptcy court. In many cases post-petition taxes are paid as an administrative expense of the estate in bankruptcy or by order
of the bankruptcy court.

CITY APPLICATION OF PROPERTY TAX CODE . . . The City grants an exemption to the market value of the residence homestead
of persons 65 years of age or older of $50,000.

The City has not granted an additional exemption of 20% of the market value of residence homesteads.

The City has established a freeze on the taxes on residence homesteads of persons 65 years of age or who are disabled.

See Table 1 for a listing of the amounts of the exemptions described above.

Ad valorem taxes are not levied by the City against the exempt value of residence homesteads for the payment of debt.

The City does not tax nonbusiness personal property and Tarrant County collects taxes for the City.

The City does permit split payments, and discounts are allowed.

The City does not tax freeport property.

The City does collect the additional one-half cent sales tax for reduction of ad valorem taxes,

The City has adopted a tax abatement policy.

The City does not tax goods in transit.

Tax ABATEMENT POLICY . . . The City has established a tax abatement program to encourage ¢conomic development. In order
to be considered for tax abatement, a project must meet certain criteria pertaining to property value enhancement and amount
expended on the proposed project. Projects may be eligible for a tax abatement of up to 100% of the incremental value and may

be for a period of ten years. The City has granted several tax abatements for several projects, with an estimated maximum of $3
million in tax and permit revenues abated over 10 years beginning in tax year 2013.
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TABLE 1 - VALUATION, EXEMPTIONS AND GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT

201314 Market Valuation Established by Tarrant Appraisal District £3,109,412,591
{excluding totally exempt property)

Less Exemptions/Reductions at 100% Market Value:

Over 65 $ 169,339,659

Disabled Veterans Exemption 9,281,583

Poliution Control Exemption 10,503

Lost to Nominal Values 499.00

Solar/Wind 1

Prorated Absclute 147,102

Agricultural Land Use Reductions 188,851 178,968,198
2013/14 Taxable Assessed Valuation $2,930.444,393
Plus Net Taxable Value in Arbitration and Incomplete 91,402,942
2013714 Taxable Assessed Valuation $3,021,847,335

Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes (as of 2-1-14)

General Obligation Indebtedness $ 49.950,000
The Contractual Obligations 2,300,000
The Bonds 3,200,000
Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes § 55,450,000

Self Supporting General Obligation Debt: m

Economic Development Corporation Sales Tax Revenues @ $ 5,070,000

Tourism Development Fund (Hotel'Motel Tax) @ 285,000

Stormwater Utility System Revenues 3,030,000

Waterworks and Sewer System Revenues 14,305,000 22,690,000
Net Funded Debt Payable From Ad Valorem Taxes 8§ 32,760,000
Interest and Sinking Fund as of 2-1-14 3 1,664,598
Ratio Tax Supported Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation . ...............00 e irieeaaas 1.83%
Ratio Net Tax Supported Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation.............ooveiiininiiaaan 1.08%

2014 Estimated Population - 48,721
Per Capita Taxable Assessed Valuation - $62,024
Per Capita Funded Debt - 31,138
Per Capita Net Funded Debt - 5672

(1) General obligarion debt in the amounts shown for which repayment is provided from revenue sources other than ad valorem
tax receipts, as shown in Table 10. It is the City's current policy to provide for the payment of the general obligation debt
shown from these revenue sources. This policy is subject to change in the future. See also "Table 8 - General Obligation
Debt Service Requirements”.

{(2) See "Table 14 - Municipal Sales Tax History" herein for a description of the arrangement between the City and the City of
Bedford Street Improvement Economic Development Corporation for payment of the general obligation debt shown from
sales tax revenues collected on behalf of the Corporation. See also "Table 8 — General Obligation Debt Service
Requirements”.

(3) It is the City’s current policy to provide for the payment of the general obligation debt shown from these revenue sources.
This policy is subject to change in the future. See also "Table 8 — General Obligation Debt Service Requirements”
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TABLE 2 - TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUATIONS BY CATEGORY

AGENDA

Taxable Appraised Value for Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2014 2013 2012
% of % of % of
Category Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
Real, Residential Single Family $2,028,917,442 6525%  $2,003,195,685 64.86% 31,987,715,627 68.27%
Real, Residential Multi-Family 437,125,222 14.06% 414,960,572 13.44% 291,145,940 10.00%
Real, Vacant Lots/Tracts 18,925,264 0.61% 21,033,457 0.68% 19,067,285 0.65%
Real, Acreage (Land Only) 6,611,643 021% 7,229,190 0.23% 7,285,333 0.25%
Real, Commercial 492 091,153 15.83% 509,355,990 16.49% 477,887,650 16.41%
Real, Industrial 4,488,555 0.14% 5,090,000 0.16% 5,466,619 0.19%
Real and Tangible Personal, Utilities 30,180,823 0.97% 32,879,841 1.06% 35,847,781 1.23%
Tangible Personal, Commercial 88,429,959 2.84% 92,293,917 2.99% 83,871,850 2.88%
Tangible Personal, Industrial 1,348,270 0.06% 1,930,078 0.06% 2,545,540 0.09%
Tangible Persenal, Other - 0.00% . 0.00% . 0.00%
Real Property, Inventory 794,260 0.03% 479,360 0.02% 900,800 0.03%
Total Appraised Value Before Exemptions $3,100,412,591  10000% $3,088448,090 100.00% $2911,734425  100.00%
Net Taxable Value in Arbitration and Incomplete 91,402,942 65,142,631 195,494,153
Adjustments - (12,407,985) 22,836,689
Less: Total Exemptions/Reductions (178,968,198) {180,088,352) (164,076,940}
Taxable Assessed Value $3,021,847,335 $2,961,004,384 $2,965,988,327
Taxable Appraised Value for
Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2011 2010
% of % of
Category Amgunt Total Amount Total

Real, Residential Single Family $1,986,597,091 65.31% $1,958,971,240 63.42%
Real, Residential Multi-Family 340,719.435 11.20% 373,223,462 12.08%
Real, Vacant Lots/Tracts 22,230,002 0.73% 20,434,968 0.66%
Real, Acreage (Land QOnly) 8,044,972 0.26% 8,003,716 0.26%
Real, Commercial 520,601,155 17.11% 548,077,190 17.74%
Real, Industrial 5,266,619 0.17% 5,284,583 0.17%
Real and Tangible Personal, Utilities 37,043,385 1.22% 37,076,425 1.20%
Tangible Personal, Commercial 117,497,878 3.36% 131,111,715 4.24%
Tangible Personal, Industrial 2,828,276 0.09% 2,779,123 0.09%
Tangible Personal, Other - 0.00% - 0.00%
Real Property, Inventory 1,145,840 0.04% 4,147,983 0.13%
Total Appraised Value Before Exemptions $3,041,974,653 100.00% $3,089,110,405  100.00%
Net Taxable Value in Arbitration and Incomplete B -
Adjustments . (132,673,554)
Less: Total Exemptions/Reductions (164,946,222) {153,995,124)
Taxable Assessed Value $2,877,028,431 $2,802,441,727

NOTE: Valuations shown are certified taxable assessed values reported by the Tarrant Appraisal District to the State
Comptroller of Public Accounts. Certified values are subject to change throughout the year as contested values are resolved and

the Appraisal District updates records,

The City is approximately 97% built out and currently cannot annex additional tefritory as it is surrounded by other political

subdivisions.
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TABLE 3 - VALUATION AND GENERAL OBLIGATION DERT HISTORY

Tax Ratio of Tax Tax
Fiscal Taxable Supported Supported Debt  Suppeorted
Year Taxable Assessed Debt to Taxable Debt
Ended Estimated Assessed Valuation  QOutstanding at Assessed Per
9/30 Population Valuation Per Capita End of Year Valuation Capita
2010 46,979 $2.802,441,727 $59,653 $ 54,440,000 1.94% $ 1159
2011 46,9802 2.877,028,431 61,239 61,170,000 2.13% 1,302
2012 46,9902 2,965,988,327 63,120 55,365,000 1.87% 1,178
2013 47,310 @ 2,961,094,384 62,589 56,075,000 1.89% 1,185
2014 48,721 3,021,847,335 9 62,024 55,450,000 © 1.83% 1,138

(1} Source: U.S. Census Bureau.

(2) Source: North Central Texas Council of Governments.
(3) Source: Demographicsnow.com.
(4) As reported by the Tarrant Appraisal District on City's annual State Property Tax Board Reports; subject to change during

the ensuing year.
(5) Preliminary, includes the Bonds and Contractual Obligations.

TABLE 4 - TaX RATE, LEVY AND COLLECTION HISTORY

Fiscal % of Current % of Total
Year Distribution Tax Tax
Ended Tax General Interest and Collections Collections
9/30 Rate Fund Sinking Fund Tax Levy to Tax Levy to Tax Levy
2010 $0.463348 $0.299096 § 0.164252 513,688,110 99.09% 99.27%
2011 0.491609 0.309075 0.182534 13,897,299 99.29% 99.97%
2012 0.504329 0.311257 0.193072 14,374,422 99.10% 99.54%
2013 0.499115 0.306043 0.193072 14,437,257 98.79% 99.15%
2014 0.494830 0.303214 0.191616 14,524,393 90.62% Y 90.69% ¥
(1) Collections for partial year only, through February 1, 2014.
TABLES - TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
2013/14 % of Total
Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Property Valuation Valuation
CMF 15 Portoflio LLC Real Estate/Retail § 73,470,000 243%
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust Retail 26,927,484 0.89%
Oncor Electric Delivery Electric Utility 20,504,250 0.68%
Pem 121 Airport Centre IT Lp Office Space 18,678,384 0.62%
Parc Plaza Homes LP Multi Family 17,115,295 0.57%
Paramount Villages LLC Multi Family 15,033,000 0.50%
WDOP SUB I LP Apartments 14,881,240 0.49%
ARC Rrbdfix001 LLC Real Estate/Medical 13,655,895 0.45%
CrpTbg Harwood Hills LP Property Management 13,323,820 0.44%
State National Isurance Co., Inc. Insurance 13,165,257 0.44%
§ 226,754,625 7.50%

AGENDA

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT LIMITATION . . . No general obligation debt limitation is imposed on the City under current State
law or the City's Home Rule Charter (see "The Certificates — Tax Rate Limitation”).
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TABLE 6 - TAX ADEQUACY'V

2014 Principal and Interest Requirements
$0.1736 Tax Rate at 99% Collection Produces

Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements, 2014 - 2033
$0.0748 Tax Rate at 99% Collection Produces

Maximum Principal and Interest Requirements, 2015
$0.1863 Tax Rate at 99% Collection Produces

(1) Less revenue supported general obligation debt.

TABLE 7 - ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT

-]

AGENDA

5,192,324
5,193,468

2,235,235
2,237,738

5,572,764
5,573,405

Expenditures of the various taxing entities within the territory of the City are paid out of ad valorem taxes levied by such entities
on properties within the City. Such entities are independent of the City and may incur borrowings to finance their expenditures.
This statermnent of direct and estimated overlapping ad valorem tax debt ("Tax Debt") was developed from information contained
in "Texas Municipal Reports" published by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas. Except for the amounts relating to the
City, the City has not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of such information, and no person should rely upon
such information as being accurate or complete. Furthermore, certain of the entities listed may have issued additional Tax Debt
since the date hereof, and such entities may have programs requiring the issuance of substantial amounts of additional Tax Debt,
the amount of which cannot be determined. The following table reflects the estimated share of overlapping Tax Debt of the City.

2013/14 ‘Total
Taxable 2013/14 Tax
Assessed Tax Supported
Taxing Jurisdiction Value Rate Debt
City of Bedford $ 3,021,847335 50494830 $ 32,760,000
Hurst-Euless-Bedford Independent School District 8,941,327,326 1407500 302,122,934
Tarrant County 126,858,702,396 0.264000 336,635,000
Tarrant County College District 127,454,200,572 0.149500 15,485,000
Tarrant County Hosgpital District 127.015,707,711 0.227897 25,375,000

Total Direct and Overapping Tax Supported Debt
Ratio of Direct and Overlapping Tax Supported Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation

Per Capita Overlapping Tax Supported Debt

(1) Less revenue supported general obligation debt.
(2) Reflects remaining authorization after the issuance of the Bonds.
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City's
Overlapping
Tax Authorized
Estimated Supported But Unissued
% Debt Debt As Of
Applicable  As of 2-1-14 2-1-14
100.00% § 32,760,000 Y § 10,725,000 @
31.62% 95,531,272 -
2.36% 7,944,586 96,520,000
2.36% 365,446
2.36% 598,850
$137,200,154
4.54%
5 2,816.04
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TABLE 9 - INTEREST AND SINKING FUND BUDGET PrOTECTION Y

Projected Tax Supported Debt Service Requirements, Fiscal Year Ending 9-30-14. .. ... ... ...... $6,551,187 @
Interest and Sinking Fund, 9-30-13 .. ... ..oviiiiiiiiie et $1,128,797

Budget Interest and Sinking Fond Tax Levy . ... ... oouvtie et ee e oo 5,154,966

Transfor oM EDC . ... .. eee ettt ettt et e e 1,377,875

Estimated Investment Income . ... .. .. ..ouvei it e e, 9,000 7,670,638
Estimated Balance, 9-30-14 . ... .. ... ..o $1,119.451

(1) Source: City's Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/14; includes fiscal agent charges and does not include debi service on
the Obligations.
(2) Does not include self-supporting general obligation debt payable from the City's Waterworks and Sewer System.

TABLE 10 - COMPUTATION OF SELF-SUPPORTING DEBT

Stormwater System

Net Revenue from Stormwater System, Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-13 .. ... .. o\vvesr oo e § 415204
Less: Stormwater System Revenue Bond Requirements, 2014 Fiscal Year. . . .........ooveven oonennn.. 245,800
Balance . ... ... =i $ 169,404
cO ic Development Corporation

Revenue Available from Economic Development Corporation Sale Tax, Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-13 . .. ... ... $1,790,676
Economic Development Corporation Sales Tax General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2014 Fiscal Year..... 1,377,875
Balance ............ B L o r = S e A S . § 412801
Tourism Development

Tourism Development Fund Balance, Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-13 . ... ....oovoonnon. ... T T $ 252365
Tourism Development Fund General Obiigation Bond Requirements, 2014 Fiscal Year................. 102,210
Balance .. .........ii i e s e e e ST $ 150,155

W rks an er §

Revenue Available for Debt from Waterworks and Sewer System Fund, Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-13 ... ....... $4,050,377
Less: Revenue Bond Requirements, 2014 Fiscal Year. .. ... ....vvuuneersrneeseeie oo -
Balance Available for Other PUIPOSES . . . v v v tviit e e ae et e e e e e e $4,050,377
Waterworks and Sewer System Fund General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2014 Fiscal Year .. _......... 1,262,851
BalanCE . ot e $2,787,526
[ ——————— |
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TABLE 11 - AGTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Amount Amount
Date Amount Previously Being Unissued
Purpose Authorized  Authorized Issued Issued Balance
Police Facility Improvements 91271995 $ 6,625,000 §$ 6295000 § - $ 330,000
Street Improvements and Drainage 9/12/1995 13,200,000 12,675,000 525,000
Drainage Improvements 11/6:2001 5,895,000 1,800,000 4,095,000
City Building Improvements 11/6:2001 1,075,000 885,000 190,000
Animal Control 11/6/2001 240,000 - . 240,000
Public Safety Improvements 11:6/2001 4,060,000 2,885,000 - 1,175,000
Sweet Improvements {Thoroughfares and Traffic Signalization)  11/62001 5,430,000 3,265,000 2,165,000
Street Improvements (Residential Street Improvements}) 11:6/2001 3,730,000 1,725,000 . 2,005,000
Park Improvements 11/5:2013 3,200,000 - 3,200,000 -

$43,455,000 $29,530,000 %3,200,000 $10,725,000

ANTICIPATED ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT...The City does not anticipate the issuance of
additional general obligation debt within the next 6 months.

TABLE 12 — OTHER OBLIGATIONS
The City has no unfunded debt outstanding as of February 1, 2014.

PENSION FUND . . . The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement
System ("TMRS™), a State-wide administered pension plan. The City makes annual contributions to the plan equal to the
amounts accrued for pension expense.

Plan Description . . . The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-
emplover public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options
available in the governing state statutes of TMRS., TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS: the report also provides detailed
explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System.

Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year
2013 2012 2011 2010

Employee deposit rate 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2w01 201 2tol 2wl
Years required for vesting 5 5 5 5
Service retirement eligibility 60/5, 0:20 60'5, 0:20 60:5, 0:20 60:5, 0/20
(expressed as age vears of service)
Updated Service Credit 0% 0% 0% 0%
Annutiy Increase (to retirees) 0% of CP1 0% of CPI 0% of CP1 0% of CP1

Contriburions . . . Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary,
nsing the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service
cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate
finances the portion of an active member’s projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the
unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period for that city. Both the normal cost and prior service
contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits
and Annuity Increases, The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the
City make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is
a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into
effect.

Net
Anmual Interest on Adjustment Annyal Actual Pension
Fiscal Required Net Pension to the Pension Contribution Percentage Obligation/
Year Contribution Obligation ARC Cost (APC) Made of APC (Asset)
2010 $1,024,167 $ . $ - $1,024,167 $1,024,167 100.00% $ .
2011 1,282,457 - 1,282,457 1,282,457 100.00%
2012 1,262,583 . - 1,262,583 1,262,583 100.00%
2013 844,310 : 844,310 844,310 100.00%
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Only two years of data are available for the City’s caloulation of annual pension costs and net pension obligation because the
City only began participating in TMRS in fiscal year 2010,

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2011 were determined as part of the December 31, 2009 and 2010 actuarial

valuations, Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2012, also follows:

12/31/2009 12312010 @ 12312010 @ 12/31/2011 12/31/2012
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Prgjected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit
Amortization Method Level Percent of Pryroll Leve] Percent of Payroll Level Parcant of Payroll Level Percent of Payrall Level Percant of Payroll
GASB 25 Equivalent Single 25.1 yeam - 24,0 years - 24.1 years - 23.1 years - 23.1 years -
Amortization Period closed period closed period closed pesiod closed period closed period
Amontization Period for New Gains/Losses 25 years 25 years 25 years 25 years 25 years
Asset Valnation Method 10-yesr Smocthed Market [ (-year Smoothed Market 10-year Smoolved Market  10-year Smoothed Market 10-year Smoothed Market
Investment Rate of Return® 7.5% 7.5% 70% 7.0% T.0%
Projected Salary Increases* Varies by age and service  Varies by age and service Varies by age and service Varies by age and sexvice  Varies by age and service
* Includes Inflation at 0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
Cost-of-Living Adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
(1) Prior to restructuring.
(2) Restructured.
Funded Status and Funding Progress . . . In June 2011, SB 350 was enacted by the Texas Legislature, resulting in a restructure of

the TMRS funds. This legislation provided for the actuarial valuation to be completed, as if restructuring had occurred on
December 31, 2010. In addition, the actuarial assumptions were updated for the new fund structure, based on an actuarial
experience study that was adopted by the TMRS Board at their May 2011 meeting (the review compared actual to expected
experience for the four-year period of January 1, 2006 throngh December 31, 2009). For a complete desctiption of the combined
impact of the legislation and new actuarial assumptions, including the effects on TMRS City rates and finding ratios, please sec
the December 31, 2012 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

The funded status as of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows;

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/2009 12312010 12312010 @ 12/31/2011 12/31/2012
Actuarial Value of Asscts $ 320,805 $ 2,378,268 $ 2,424,829 $ 4,713,345 $ 6,694,752
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $8,653,917 $11,372,548 $12,872,080 $15,748,320 $17,582,830
Percentage Funded 3.7% 20.9% 17.5% 29.9% 38.1%

Unfunded Acturial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $8,333,114 $ 8,994,280 $11,447,251 $11,034,975 $10,888,078
Annual Covered Payroll $2,866,929 $18,787,516 $18,787,516 $18,649,701 $18,597,171
UAAL as percentage of Cover Payroll 290.7% 47.9% 60.9% 59.2% 58.5%

(1) Actuarial valuation performed under the original fund structure.
{2) Actuarial valuation performed under the new fund structure.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS . . . In addition to pension benefits, the City provides certain other post-employment
benefits for retired employees ("OPEB"). The costs of these benefits are recognized as expenditures on a modified accrual basis
when the underlying claims are paid. Commencing in fiscal year 2009, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 43
"Financial Reporting For Post-Employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans,” and in fiscal year 2009, GASB Statement
No. 45 "Accounting And Financial Reporting By Employers For Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions." In
connection with such implementation, an actuarial study has been performed which calculated an Actuarial Accrued Liability of
$2,467,613. City Staff has recently made significant modifications to the City’s active employee health insurance program and
to the retiree health benefit plan. In addition, the City has established an OPEB Trust through ICMA RC and funded it with
contributions based upon the tiered structure in accordance with the City's revised Retires Health Policy.
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TABLE 13 - CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Funds & Contributions
General Revenues
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Other
Total Revenues

Expenses:
General Government and Administration
Community Services
Public Services
Public Safety
Leisure Services
Interest Expense
Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets - October 1

Restated

Net Assets - September 30

AGENDA
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
§ 5,187,054 $ 5,985,730 $ 6,183,407 § 5,179,961 $ 4,966,348
610,603 599,111 711,749 3,092,938 735473
- 44,102 1,695,184 - 35973
14,488,399 13,735,255 13,968,871 13,714,212 13,486,685
13,869,690 13,564,826 13,340,659 13,589,736 13,422,780
2,983,446 2,997,838 2,999,220 3,584,984 2,917,679
$37,139,192 $36,926,862 $38,899,050 $39,161,851 $35,564,938
$ 4,688,432 $ 4,796,677 $ 3,906,050 $ 4,117,515 § 4184723
2,017,611 1,986,123 1,848,795 1,883,752 2,270,248
3,486,148 8,354,007 8,876,104 9,038,955 8,185,269
22,828,761 17,292,190 18,358,228 18,500,766 19,499,698
3,765,867 3,690,814 4,754,190 4,100,548 4,191,990
1,724,511 2,169,120 2,213,384 2,140,046 2,254,217
$38,510,730 $38,288,931 $39,956,751 $39,781,582 $40,586,145
$(1,371.538)  $(1,362,069)  $(1,057.661) § (619,731) 5 (5,021,207)
25,156,412 26,518,481 29,740,453 30,360,134 35,381,391
(1,056,318) - (2,164,311) - -
$22,728,556 525,156,412 $26,518,481 $29,740,453 $30,360,184

e ——— ————— S —— ——
_————— e e —
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TABLE 13-A - GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURE HISTORY

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

Revenues 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Taxes, Penalty and Interest $19,890,570 §19,371,190 $19,202,290 $19,489,620 $19,257,302
Licenses/Permits 456,761 863,709 521,463 710,722 614,126
Charges for Services 2,731,965 2,494,185 2,505,240 2,232,194 2,398,459
Fines/Forfeitures 1,239,093 1,595,887 1,451,436 1,201,247 978,079
Other Governmental 538,583 517,289 545,572 536,328 839,366
Interest Income 9,437 6,783 20,434 55,695 184,145
Miscellaneous 505,907 399,578 414,904 195,871 261,633
Total Revenues $25,372,316 $25,248,621 $24,661,339 $24,421,677 $24,533,110
Expenditures
General Government $ 4,591,046 $ 4,705,742 $ 6,199,598 § 6,648,389 $ 6,500,264
Public Safety 16,797,850 16,126,751 16,349,974 16,522,429 16,675,173
Culture/Recteation 3,744,074 3,649,483 3,768,063 3,636,902 3,585,827
Public Works 2,424,332 2,425,856 2418811 1,408,113 1,656,476
Debt Service 102,019
Totel Expenditures $27,659,321 $26,907,832 $ 28,736,446 $28,215,833 $28,817,740
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $(2,287,005) $(1,659.211) § (4,075,107)  $(3,794,156) § (4,284,630)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from the Sales of Capital Assets  § 77 $ 219723 $ 44,797 $ 38,152 $ 5,265

Lease Purchase Proceeds 228,370 339,011 . - .

Insurance Proceeds 45,073 41,100 10,288 55,023 99,735

Transfers In 2,564,921 2,431,760 2431,528 2,214,949 2,534,113

Tremsfers Out - - - (201,200) (349,562)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 2,838,441 $ 3,031,594 $ 2,486,613 $ 2,106,924 $ 2,289,551
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 551436 $ 1,372,383 $(1,588494) $(1,687232) § (1,995,079)
Beginning Fund Balance 5,786,323 4,413,940 6,002,434 7,689,696 9,670,500
Prior Period Adjustment - - - - 14,275
Ending Fund Balance $ 6,337,759 $ 5,786,323 $ 4413940 $ 6,002,464 $ 7.689,696

TABLE 14 - MUNICIPAL SALES TAX HISTORY

The City has adopted the Municipal Sales and Use Tax Act, Texas Tax Code, Chapter 321, which grants the City the power to
impose and levy a 1% Local Sales and Use Tax within the City; the proceeds are credited to the General Fund and are not pledged to
the payment of the Certificates. Collections and enforcements are effected through the offices of the Comptroller of Public Accounts,
State of Texas, who remits the proceeds of the tax, after deduction of a 2% service fee, to the City monthly.

Fiscal Year % of Equivalent of

Ended 2% Total Ad Valorem Ad Valorem Per

9/30 Collected " Tax Levy Tax Rate Capita
2010 $9,531,017 69.63% $0.3401 $ 203
2011 9,060,295 65.19% 0.3149 193
2012 9,363,047 65.14% 0.3157 199
2013 9,629,427 66.70% 03252 204
2014 4,139,492 9 28.50% 0.1370 85

(1) Includes the ¥ cent sales tax for property tax reduction and % cent 4B sales tax described below,
(2) Collections through February 1, 2014.
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On November 4, 1997, the voters of the City approved the imposition of an additionat sales and use tax of one-half of one percent -
of 1%) for economic development. Collection for the additional tax went into effect on April 1, 1998, The sales tax for economic
development is collected solely for the benefit of the City of Bedford Street Improvement Economic Development Corporation (the
*Corporation™), and may be pledged to secure payment of sales tax revenue bonds issued by the Corporation. On January 21, 1995,
the voters of the City approved the imposition of an additional sales and use tax of one-half of one percent (% of 1%, for property tax
reduction. Collection for the additional tax went into effect on October 1, 1995.

Fiscal Property
Year Tax 4B
Ended Reduction Sales Tax
9/30 Collected Collected
2010 $2,382,754 $2,382,754
2011 2,265,074 2,265,074
2012 2,340,762 2,340,762
2013 2,407,357 2407357
2014 1,034873 Y 1,034,873

(1) Collections through February 1, 2014.

The sales tax breakdown for the City is as follows:

Cents
Property Tax Relief 172
Economic and Community Development 12
City Sales and Use Tax 1
State Sales and Use Tax " 61/4
Total 814

FINANCIAL POLICIES

Basis of Accounting . . . The City's accounting records of the governmental fiund revenues and expenditures are recognized on the
modified accrual basis. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are available and measurable. Expenditures
are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability occurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest on general
long-term debt and on special assessment indebtedness secured by interest-bearing special assessment levies, longevity and certain
other employees' benefits are recognized when due.

Proprietary Fund revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in
which they are eamed and become measurable. Expenses are recognized in the accounting period incurred.

Fiduciary Fund revenues and expenses or expenditures are recognized on the modified acerual basis.

Transfers are recognized in the accounting period in which the interfund receivable and payable arise (see Appendix B - "Excerpts
from The Citv of Bedford, Texas, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30, 2013™).

Reportting Entity . . . Generally accepted accounting principles require that financial statements present the City (the primary
government) and its component units. Component units are organizations for which the City is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes,
management has considered all potential component units. Based on these criteria, the following blended component unit is included
in the accompanying financial statements. Blended component wnits, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
City's operations.

The City of Bedford Street Improvement Economic Development Corporation (the "EDC"} is governed by a seven-member board
appointed by the City Council. Although it is legally separate from the City, the EDC is reported as a Special Revenue Fund as if it
were part of the primary govemment because its sole purpose is to operate, maintain, and finance the costs of the City's street
improvements using taxes collected under Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 1979,

Government-Wide Financial Statements . . . The government wide financial statements (i.c., the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) prepared under GASB 34 report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary govemment.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which primarily rely on fees and charges for support. Fiduciary funds are also excluded from the
government-wide financial statemenis.
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The government-wide statements ere prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,
This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fimd financial statements but differs from the manner in which
governmental fund financial statements are preparexd, Therefore, govemmental find financial statements include reconciliation with
brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental
funds. The primary effect of intemal activity has been eliminated from the sovernment-wide financial statements.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a compatison between expenses, both direct and indirect, and program
revenues for each scgment of the business-type activities of the City and for each governmental program. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with & service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Progtam revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues.

Net assets should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by creditors (such as
through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. The net assets restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds and tile restrictions
on their net asset use,

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements,

Fund Financial Statements . . . Fund financial statements prepared under GASB 34 report detailed information about the City. The
focus of govemmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major
fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

Governmental Funds . . . All governmental finds are accounted for using modified acerual basis of accounting and the current
financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incuired, if measurable,
"Measurable" means that the amount of the transaction can be determined, and "avaiiable" means collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers property taxes, ambulance fees and
municipal court fines and fees as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, fines, interest and charges
for services. Permits are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The General Fund is the primary operating fond of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fimd.

Special Revenue Funds: The Special Revenue Funds arc used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The blended component unit is reported here.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of general long-
term debt principal, interest and related costs,

Street Capital Projects Fund: The Street Capital Projects Fund is used to account for construction of improvements to streets, street
related drainage and sidewalks.

Series 2002 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2002 Capital Projects Fund is used to account for construction authorized for the
General Obligation Series 2002 bond issue.

Series 2003 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2003 Capital Projects Fund is used to account for construction authorized for the
General Obligation Series 2003 bond issue.

Series 2004 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2004 Capital Projects Fund is used to account for construction projects authorized
for the General Obligation Series 2004 refunding and improvement bond issue.

Series 2005 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2005 Capital Projects Fund is used to account for construction projects authorized
for the Tax Note Series 2005 bond issue,

Series 2007 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2007 Capital Projects Fund issued to account for construction projects authorized
for the General Obligation Series 2007 and Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2007 bond issues.
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Series 2010 Capital Projccts Fund: The Series 2010 Capital Projects Fund issued to account for construction projects authorized
for the General Obligation Series 2010 and Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2010 bond issues.

Series 2011 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2011 Capital Projects Fund issued to account for construction projects authorized
for the General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2011 and Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of
Obligation Series 2011 bond issues.

Series 2012 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2012 Capital Projects Fund issusd to account for construction projects authorized
for the Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2012 and Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of
Obligation Series 2012A bond issues.

Series 2013 Capital Projects Fund: The Series 2013 Capital Projects Fund issued to account for construction projects authorized
for the General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2013 bond issue.

Proptietarv Funds . . . All proprietary funds are accounted for under GASB 34 using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds
account for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The economic resource focus concerns determining costs as a
means of maintaining the capital investment and management control. Revenues are recognized when ¢arned and expenses arc
recognized when incurred. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprictary funds. Unbilled utility service
receivables are recorded at each year-end.

Propriety funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Opetating revenucs and expenses generally
result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The City's policy is to apply all Financial
Accounting Standards Board standards issued after November 30, 1989 to its proprictary finds unless they conflict with GASB
guidance.

The City's proprietary funds are:
Water and Sewer Fund: To account for providing water and sewer services to residential and commercial users in the City.

Stormwater Utility Fund: To account for the storm drainage runoff service provided to the residential and commercial users of the
City.

Agency Funds... Agency funds are used under GASB 34 to account for assets held in a wrustee capacity as an agent for other funds
within the City and individuals. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations.

General Fund Balance . . . The City's policy is to maintain surplus and unencumbered funds equal 1o 25% of the next fiscal yeat's
operating budget.

Use of Bond Proceeds. Grants, etc . . . The City's policy is to use bond and certificate proceeds, grants, revenue sharing or other
non-recurring revenues for capital expenditures only. Such revenues are never to be used to fund City operations.

Budgetary Procedures . . . The City Charter establishes the fiscal year as the twelve-month period beginning October 1. The
departments submit to the City Manager a budget of estimated expenditures for the ensuing fiscal year by the middle of May. The
City Manager subsequently submits a budget of estimated expenditures and revenues to the City Council by August 15, The City
Council shall hold a public hearing on the budget after giving at least 10 days notice of the hearing in the official newspaper of the
City. The Council shall then make any changes in the budget as it deems advisable and shall adopt a budget prior to October 1. If
the Council fails to adopt a budget then the budget proposed by the City Manager shall deem to have been adopted.

During the fiscal year, strict budgetary control is maintained by various methods, including the review of departmental appropriation
balances with purchase requisitions prior to their release to vendors.

Departmental appropriations that have not been expended lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Therefore, fimds that were budgeted and
not used by the departments during the fiscal year are not available for their use unless appropriated in the cnsuing fiscal year's
budget.

Fund Investments . . . The City's investment policy parallels state law which governs investment of public funds. The City currently
utilizes State of Texas Investment Pools for the bulk of its investments. The Pool investments are restricted to direct obligations of
the U.S. Government and its agencies.
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INVESTMENTS

The City invests its investable funds in investments authorized by Texas law and in accordance with investment policies approved by
the City Council. Both state law and the City’s investment policies are subject to change,

LEGAL INVESTMENTS . ., Under Texas law, including specifically the Public Funds Investment Act Texas Government Code,
Chapter 2256, as amended, (the "PFIA"), the City is authorized to invest in (1) obligations, including letters of credit, of the United
States or its agencies and instrumentalities, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities, (3)
collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security
for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States, (4) other obligations, the principal and interest of which
are unconditionally guaranteed, insured, or backed by the full faith and credit of the State of Texas or the United States or their
respective agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Cotporation or by the explicit full faith and credit of the United States; (5) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other
political subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or
its cquivalent, (6) bonds issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the State of Israel, (7) certificates of deposit and share certificates (i)
issued by a depository institation that has its main office or a branch office in the State of Texas, that are guaranteed or insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, its successor, or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund, or are secured as to
principal by obligations described in clauses (1) through (6) or in any other manner and amount provided by law for City deposits, or
(i) where (a) the funds are invested by an investing entity through a broker that has its main office or a branch office in the State of
Texas and is selected from a list adopted by the City as required by the PFIA or a depository institution that has its main office or a
branch office in the State of Texas that is selected by the City; (b) the broker or the depository institution selected by the City
arranges for the deposit of the funds in certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository institutions, wherever
located, for the account of the City; (c) the full amount of the principal znd accrued interest of each of the certificates of deposit is
insured by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States, and (d) the investing entity appoints the depository institution
selected under subdivision (a), a custodian as described by Texas Government Code, Section 2257.041(d), or a ¢learing broker-dealer
registered with the Securities and Bxchange Commission and operating pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢3-
3 (17 CF.R. Section 240.15¢3-3); (8) fully collateralized repurchase agreements that have a defined termination date, are fully
secured by a combination of cash and obligations described in clause (1) above which are pledged to the City, held in the City’s
name, and deposited at the time the investment is made with the City or with a third party selected and approved by the City and are
placed through a primary government securities dealer or a financial institution doing business in the State of Texas, (9) bankers’
acceptances with a stated maturity of 270 days or less from the date of its issuance, if the short-term obligations of the accepting bank
or its parent are rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by at least one nationally recognized credit rating agency, (10) commercial
paper that is rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by either (a) two nationally recognized credit rating agencies or (b) one
nationally recognized credit rating agency if the paper is fully secured by an irevocable letter of credit issued by a U.S. or state bank,
{11) no-load money market mutual funds registered with and regulated by the Securities and BExchange Commission that have a
dollar weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less and include in their investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net
asset value of $1 for each share, (12} no-load mutual funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission that have an
average weighted maturity of less than two years, invest exclusively in obligations described in the preceding clauses, and are
continuously rated as to investment quality by at least one nationally recognized investment rating firm of not less than AAA or its
equivalent, and (13) public funds investment pools mecting the requirements of the PFIA and are continuously rated as to investment
quality by at least onc nationally recognized investment rating firm of not less than AAA or AAA-m or at an equivalent rating.
Texas law also permits the City to invest bond proceeds in a guaranteed investment contract, subject to limitations as set forth in the
PFiA,

A political subdivision such as the City may enter into securities lending programs if (i) the securities loaned under the program are
100% collateralized, a loan made under the program allows for termination at any time and 2 loan made under the program is either
secured by (a) obligations that are described in clauses (1) through (6) above, (b) irrevocable letters of credit issued by a state or
national bank that is continuously rated by a nationally recognized investment rating firm at not less than A or its equivalent or (c)
cash invested in obligations deseribed in clauses (1) through (6} above, clauses (10} through (12) above, or an authorized investment
pool; (if) securities held as collateral under a loan are pledged to the City, held in the City’s name and deposited at the time the
investment is made with the City or a third party designated by the City; (iif) a Joan made under the program through either a primary
government securities dealer or a financial institution doing business in the State of Texas; and (iv) the agreement to lend securities
has a term of one year or less.

The City may invest in such obligations directly or through government investment pools that invest solely in such obligations
providedﬂlatthepoolsareratednolowerthanAAAorAAAmoranequivalentbyatleastonenaﬁona]]yreoogﬁzedmﬁngservice.
The City is specifically prohibited from investing in (1) obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the
outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and pays no principal {2) obligations whose
payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security and bears no intcrest @
collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity of greater than 10 years, and {(4) collateralized mortgage
obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index.
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INVESTMENT POLICIES . . . Under Texas law, the City is required to invest its funds under written investment policies that primarily
emphasize safety of principal and liquidity; that address investment diversification, yield, maturity, and the quality and capability of
investment management; and that includes a list of authorized investments for City funds, maximum allowable stated maturity of any
individual investment, the maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed for pooled fund groups, methods to monitor the
market price of investments acquired with public funds, a requirement for settlement of all transactions, except investment pool funds
and mutual funds, on a delivery versus payment basis, and procedures to monitor rating changes in investments acquired with public
funds and the liquidation of such investments consistent with the PFIA. All City funds must be invested consistent with a formally
adopted "Investment Strategy Statement” that specifically addresses each fund's investment. Each Investment Strategy Statement
will describe its objectives concerning: (1) suitability of investment type, (2) preservation and safety of principal, (3) liquidity, (4}
marketability of each investment, (5) diversification of the pertfolio, and (6) yield.

Under Texas law, City investments must be made "with judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of
prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for specuiation, but for
investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived.” At least quarterly the investment
officers of the City shall submit an investment report detailing: (1} the investment position of the City, (2) that all investment officers
jointly prepared and signed the report, (3) the beginning market value, the ending market value and the fully accrued interest during
the reporting period of each pooled fund group, (4) the book value and market value of cach separately listed asset at the end of the
reporting period, (5) the maturity date of each separately invested asset, (6) the account or fund or pooled fund group for which each
individual investment was acquired, and (7) the compliance of the investment portfolio as it relates to: (a} adopted investment
strategy statements and (b) state law. No petson may invest City funds without express written authority from the City Council.

Under State law, the City is additionally required to: (1) annually review its adopted policies and strategies; (2) adopt a rule, order,
ordinance or resolution stating that it has reviewed its investment policy and investment strategies and records any changes made to
either its investment policy or investment strategy in the respective rule, order, ordinance or resolution; (3) require any investment
officers with personal business relationships or relatives with firms seeking to sell securities to the City to disclose the relationship
and file a statement with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City Council; (4) require the qualified representative of firms offering
to engage in an investment transaction with the City to: (a) receive and review the City’s investment policy, (b) acknowledge that
reasonable controls and procedures have been implemented to preclude investment transactions conducted between the City and the
business organization that are not authorized by the City’s investment policy {except to the extent that this authorization is dependent
on an analysis of the makeup of the City’s entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective investment standards), and (c)
deliver a written statement in a form accepiable to the City and the business organization attesting to these requirements; (5) perform
an annual andit of the management controls on investments and adherence to the City’s investment policy; (6) provide specific
investmen training for ihe Treasurer, chief financial officer and investment officers; (7) restrict reverse repurchase agreements o not
more than 90 days and restrict the investment of reverse repurchase agreement funds to no greater than the term of the reverse
purchase agreement; (8) restrict the investment in no-load mumual funds in the aggregate to no mote than 15% of the City’s monthly
average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds and reserves and other funds held for debt service; (9) require local government
investment pools to conform to the new disclosure, rating, net asset value, yield calculation, and advisory beard requirements; and
{10) at least annually review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified brokers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with
the City.

TABLE 15 - CURRENT INVESTMENTS

As of February 1, 2014, the City's investable funds were invested in the following categories:

Description Percent Market Value
Banks/CDARS/Money Market 24.84% $ 5,354,490
TexSTAR Investment Pool 30.49% 6,573,917
Texas Daily Investment Pool 3.74% 807,004
Certificate of Deposit 39.60% 8,536,467
MBIA 0.94% 202,003
LSIP Lig ~ 0.39% 83,753

$21,557,634
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TAX MATTERS

TAX EXEMPTION . . . The delivery of the Obligations is subject to the opinions of Bond Counsel to the effect that interest on the
Obligations for federal income tax purposes (1) will be excludable from gross income, as defined i section 61 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date of such opinions {the "Code"), pursuant to section 103 of the Code and existing
regulations, published rulings, and court decisions, and (2) will not be included in computing the alternative minimum taxable
income of the owners thereof who are individuals or, except as hereinafter described, corporations. Forms of Bond Counsel's
opinions are reproduced in Appendix C. The statutes, regulations, rulings, and court decisions on which such opinions are based
are subject to change.

Interest on the Obligations owned by a corporation will be included in such corporation's adjusted current earnings for purposes
of calculating the alternative minimum taxable income of such corporation, other than an S corporation, a qualified mutual fund,
a real estate investment trust, a real estate morigage investment conduit, or a financial asset securitization investment trust
(FASIT). A corporetion's alternative minimum taxable income is the basis on which the alternative minimum tax imposed by
Section 55 of the Code will be computed.

In rendering the foregoing opinions, Bond Counsel will rely upon representations and certifications of the City made in a
certificate dated the date of delivery of the Obligations pertaining to the use, expenditure, and investment of the proceeds of the
Obligations and wilt assume continuing compliance by the City with the provisions of the Ordinances subsequent to the issuance
of the Obligations. The Ordinances contain covenants by the City with respect to, among other matters, the use of the proceeds
of the Cbligations and the facilities financed therewith by persons other than state or local governmental units, the manner in
which the proceeds of the Obligations are to be invested, the periodic calculation and payment to the United States Treasury of
arbitrage "profits” from the investment of proceeds, and the reporting of certain information to the United States Treasury.
Failure to comply with any of these covenants may cause interest on the Obligations to be includable in the gross income of the
owners thereof from the date of the issuance of the Obligations.

Bond Counsel’s opinions are not guarantees of a result, but represent its legal judgment based upen its review of existing statutes,
regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the representations and covenants of the City described above, No ruling has
been sought from the Tnternal Revenue Service (the "IRS™) with respect to the matters addressed in the opinions of Bond Counsel,
and Bond Counsel’s opinjons are not binding on the IRS. The IRS has an ongoing program of auditing the tax-exempt status of the
interest on tax-exempt obligations. If an awdit of the Obligations is commenced, under current procedures the IRS is likely to treat
the City as the "taxpayer," and the owners of the Obligations would have no right to participate in the audit process. In responding to
or defending an audit of the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Obligations, the City may have different or conflicting interests
from the owners of the Obligations. Public awareness of any future audit of the Obligations could adversely affect the value and
liquidity of the Obligations during the pendency of the andit, regardless of its ultimate outcome.

Except as described above, Bond Counsel expresses no other opinion with respect to any other federal, state or local tax
consequences under present law, or proposed legislation, resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on, or the acquisition or
disposition of, the Obligations. Prospective purchasers of the Obligations should be aware that the ownership of tax-exempt
obligations such as the Obligations may result in collateral federal tax consequences to, among others, financial institutions, life
insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, certain foreign corporations doing business in the United
States, S corporations with subchapter C earnings and profits, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement
benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for the eammed income tax credit, owners of an interest in a FASIT, and taxpayers who
may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carty, or who have paid or incurred certain expenses
allocable o, tax-cxempt obligations. Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax advisors as to the applicability of these
consequences to their particular ¢ircumstances.

Existing law may change to reduce or eliminate the benefit to bondholders of the exclusion of interest on the Obligations from
gross income for federal income tax purposes. Any proposed legislation or administrative action, whether or not taken, could
also affect the value and marketability of the Obligations. Prospective purchasers of the Obligations should consult with their
own tax advisors with respect to any proposed or future changes in tax law.

TAX ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF DISCOUNT AND PREMIUM ON CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS . . ., The initial public offering price of
certain Obligations (the "Discount Obligations") may be less than the amount payable on such Obligations at maturity. An
amount equal to the difference between the initial public offering price of a Discount Obligation {assuming that a substantial
amount of the Discount Cbligations of that maturity are sold to the public at such price) and the amount payable at maturity
constitutes original issue discount to the initial purchaser of such Discount Obligation. A portion of such original issue discount
allocable to the holding period of such Discount Obligation by the initial purchaser will, upen the disposition of such Discount
Obligation (including by reason of its payment at maturity), he treated as interest excludable from gross income, rather than as
taxable gain, for federal income tax purposes, on the same terms and conditions as those for other interest on the Obligations
described above under "Tax Exemption.” Such interest is considered to be accrued actuarially in accordance with the constant
interest method over the life of a Discount Obligation, taking into account the semiannual compounding of accrued interest, at
the yield to maturity on such Discount Obligation and generally will be allocated to an initial purchaser in a different amount
from the amount of the payment denominated as interest actually received by the initial purchaser during the tax year.
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However, such intersst may be required to be taken into account in determining the alternative minimum taxable income of a
cotporation, for purposes of calculating a corporation's alterative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Code, and the
amount of the branch profits tax applicable to certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States, even though there
will not be a corresponding cash payment. In addition, the accrual of such interest may result in certain other collateral federal
income tax consequences to, among others, financial institutions, life insurance companies, property and casualty insurance
companies, S corporations with "subchapter C* carnings and profits, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad
Retirement benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for eamed income tax credit, owners of an interest in a FASIT, and
taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or catry, or who have paid or incurred
certain expenses allocable to, tax-exempt obligations. Moreover, in the event of the redemption, sale or other taxable disposition
of a Discount Obligation by the initial owner prior to maturity, the amount realized by such owner in excess of the basis of such
Discount Obligation in the hands of such owner (adjusted upward by the portion of the original issue discount allocable to the
period for which such Discount Obligation was held) is includable in gross income.

Owners of Discount Obligations should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the determination of accrued original
issue discount on Discount Obligations for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences
of owning and disposing of Discount Obligations. It is possible that, under applicable provisions governing determination of
state and local income taxes, accrued interest on Discount Obligations may be deemed to be received in the year of accrual even
though there will not be a corresponding cash payment.

The initial public offering price of certain Obligations (the "Premium Obligations") may be greater than the amount payable on
such Obligations at maturity. An amouni equal to the difference between the initial public offering price of a Premium
Obligation (assuming that a substantial amount of the Premium Obligations of that maturity are sold to the public at such price)
and the amount payable at maturity constitutes premium to the initial purchaser of such Premium Obligations. The basis for
federal income tax purposes of a Premium Obligation in the hands of such initial purchaser must be reduced each year by the
amortizable bond premium, although no federal income tax deduction is allowed as a result of such teduction in basis for
amortizable bond premium. Such reduction in basis will increase the amount of any gain (or decrease the amount of any loss) to
be recognized for federal income tax purposes upen a sale or other taxable disposition of a Premium Obligation. The amount of
premium which is amortizable each year by an initial purchaser is determined by using such purchaser’s yield to maturity.

Purchasers of the Premium Obligations should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the determination of
amortizable bond premium on Premium Obligations for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax
consequences of owning and disposing of Premium Obligations.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS . . . Section 265 of the Code provides, in general, that
interest expense tn acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations is not deductible from the gross income of the owner of such
obligations. In addition, section 265 of the Code generally disallows 100% of any deduction for interest expense which is
incurred by "financial institutions" described in such section and is allocable, as computed in such section, to tax-exempt interest
on obligations acquired afier August 7, 1986. Section 265(b) of the Code provides an exception to this interest disallowance rule
for interest expense allocable to tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds that are not qualified 501(c)(3) bonds)
which are designated by an issuer as "qualified tax-exempt obligations." An issuer may designate obligations as "qualified tax-
excmpt obligations’ only if the amount of the issue of which they are a part, when added to the amount of all other tax-exempt
obligations (other than private activity bonds thar are not qualified 501(c)(3) obligations and other than certain refunding bonds)
issued or reasonably anticipated to be issued by the issuer during the same calendar year, does not exceed $10,000,000.

The City will designate the Obligations as "qualified tax-exempt obligations” and will certify its expectation that the above-
described $10,000,000 ceiling will not be exceeded. Accordingly, it is anticipated that financial institutions which purchase the
Obligations will not be subject to the 100% disallowance of interest expense allocable to interest on the Obligations under
section 265(b) of the Code. However, the deduction for interest expense incurred by a financial institution which is allocable to
the interest on the Obligations will be reduced by 20% pursuant to section 291 of the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION
RATINGS

The Obligations are rated "AA" by S&P. An explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained from the company
furnishing the rating. The rating reflects only the respective view of the organization and the City makes no representation as to
the appropriateness of the rating. There is no assurance that the rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will
not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the company, if in the judgment of company, circumstances so warrant. Any
such downward revision or withdrawal of the rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Obligations. The City
has submitted applications to municipal bond insurance companies to have the payment of the principal and interest on the
Obligations insured by a municipal bond insurance policy.

LITIGATION

1t is the opinion of the City Attorney and City Staff that there is no pending litigation against the City that would have a material
adverse financial impact upon the City or its operations,

REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION OF QBLIGATIONS FOR SALE

The sale of the Obligations has not been registered under the Federal Securitics Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon the
exemption provided thereunder by Section 3(a)(2); and the Obligations have not been qualified under the Securities Act of Texas
in reliance upon various exemptions contained therein; nor have the Obligations been qualified under the securities acts of any
jurisdiction. The City assumes no responsibility for qualification of the Obligations under the securities laws of any jurisdiction
in which the Obligations may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred. This disclaimer of
responsibility for qualification for sale or other disposition of the Obligations shall not be construed as an interpretation of any
kind with regard to the availability of any exemption from securities registration provisions.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS AND ELIGIBILITY TO SECURE PUBLIC FUNDS IN TEXAS

Section 1201.041 of the Public Security Procedures Act (Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended) provides that the
Obligations are negotiable instruments, investment securities governed by Chepter 8, Texas Business and Commerce Code, and
are legal and authorized investments for insurance companics, fiduciaries, and trustees, and for the sinking funds of
municipalities or other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State of Texas. With respect to investment in the
Obligations by municipalities or other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State of Texas, the Public Funds
Investment Act (PFIA), Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, requires that the Obligations be assigned & rating of at least "A"
or its equivalent as fo investment quality by a national rating agency. See "Other Information - Ratings" herein. In addition,
various provisions of the Texas Finance Code provide that, subject to a Pprudent investor standard, the Obligations are legal
investments for state banks, savings banks, trust companies with capital of one million dollars or more, and savings and loan
associations. The Obligations are eligible to secure deposits of any public funds of the State, its agencies, and its political
subdivisions, and are legal security for those deposits to the extent of their market value. No review by the City has been made
of the laws in other states to determine whether the QObligations are legal investments for various institutions in those states,

LEGAL OPINIONS AND NO-LITIGATION CERTIFICATE

The City will fumish complete transcripts of proceedings had incident to the anthorization and issuance of the Obligations,
including the unqualified approving legal opinions of the Attorney General of Texas approving the Initial Bond and the Initial
Contractual Obligation and to the effect that the Obligations are valid and legally binding obligations of the City, and based upon
examination of such transcripts of proceedings, the approving legal opinions of Bond Counsel, to like effect and to the effect that
the interest on the Obligations will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) of the
Code, subject to the matters described under "Tax Matters” herein, including the alternative minimum tax on corporations. The
customary closing papers, including a certificate to the effect that no litigation of any nature has been filed or is then pending to
restrain the issuance and delivery of the Obligations, or which would affect the provision made for their payment or security, or
in any manner questioning the validity of said Obligations will also be furnished. Bond Counsel was not requested to participate,
and did not take part, in the preparation of the Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions, the Official Bid Form and the Official
Statement, and such firm has not assumed amy responsibility with respect thereto or undertaken independently to verify any of
the information contained therein, except that, in its capacity as Bond Counsel, such firm has reviewed the information
describing the Obligations in the Official Statement to verify that such description conforms to the provisions of the Ordinances,
The legal fee to be paid Bond Counsel for services rendered in connection with the issuance of the Obligations is contingent on
the sale and delivery of the Obligations. The legal opinions will accompany the Obligations deposited with DTC or will be
printed on the Obligations in the event of the discontinuance of the Book-Entry-Only System.
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AUTHENTICITY OF FINANCIAL DATA AND OTHER INFORMATION

The financial data and other information contained herein have been obtained from City records, audited financial statements and
other sources which are believed to be reliable. There is no guarantee that any of the assumptions or estimates contained herein
will be realized. All of the summaries of the statutes, documents and resolutions contained in this Official Statement are made
subject to all of the provisions of such statutes, documents and resolutions. These summaries do not purport to be complete
statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents for further information. Reference is made to original
documents in all respects.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Ordinances the City has made the following agreement for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the
Obligations. The City is required to observe the agreement while it remains obligated to advance funds to pay such Obligations.
Under the agreement, the City will be obligated to provide certain updated financial information and operating data annually,
and the timely notice of specified events, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB"). This information will be
available free of charge from the MSRB via the Elcctronic Municipal Market Access ("EMMA"™) system at
www.emma.msrb.org.

ANNUAL REPORTS . . . The City will provide certain updated financial information and operating data to the MSRB annually.
The information to be updated includes all quantitative financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the
general type included in this Official Statement under Tables numbered 1 through 6 and 8 through 15 and in Appendix B, The
City will update and provide this information within six months afier the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2014,

The financial information and operating data to be provided may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be
included by specific reference to any document available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Web site or filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") as permitted by SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (the "Rule"). The updated information
will include audited financial statements, if the City commissions an audit and it is completed by the required time. If audited
financial statements are not available by the required time, the City will provide unaudited financial information of the type
described in the preceding paragraph by the required time and audited financial statements when and if such audited financial
statements become available. Any such financial statements will be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
described in Appendix B or such other accounting prineiples as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant
to State law or regulation.

The City’s current fiscal vear end is September 30. Accordingly, it must provide updated information by March 31 in each vear,
unless the City changes its fiscal year. If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change.

NOTICE OF CERTAIN EVENTS . . . The City will also provide timely notices of certain events to the MSRB. The City will provide
notice of any of the following events with respect w the Obligations to the MSRB in a timely manner (but not in excess of ten
business days after the occurrence of the event): (1) principal and interest pavment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related
defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on
credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
{6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices
of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the
Obligations, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Obligations; (7) modifications to rights of holders of the
Obligations, if material; (8) Obligation calls, if material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of
property securing repayment of the Obligations, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or
similar event of the City, which shall occur as described below; (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving the City or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into of
a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other
than pursuant to its terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material. In addition, the City will provide timely notice of any failure by the City to provide annual financial
information in accordance with their agreement described above under "Annual Reports".

For these purposes, any event described in (12) in the immediately preceding paragraph is considered to occur when any of the
following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United
States Bankruptey Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or
governmental autherity, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City.

AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION . . . The City has agreed to provide the foregoing information only as described above.
Investors will be able to access continuing disclosure information filed with the MSRB free of charge at www.emma.msrb.org.
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LIMITATIONS AND AMENDMENTS The City has agreed to update information and to provide notices of certain specified
events only as described above. The City has not agreed to provide other information that may be relevant or material to a
complete presentation of its financial results of operations, condition, or prospects or agreed to update any information that is
provided, except as described above. The City makes no representation or warranty concerning such information or concerning
its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Obligations at any future date. The City disclaims any contractual or tort liability
for damages resulting in whole or in part from any breach of its continuing disclosure agreement or from any statement made
pursuant to its agreement, although holders of Obligations may seek a writ of mandamus to compel the City to comply with its

agreement,

The City's continuing disclosure agreements for the Obligations may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or & change in the identity, nature, status,
or type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the provisions, as so amended, would have permitted an underwtiter to purchase
or gell the Obligations in the primary offering of such Obligations in complinnce with the Rule, taking into account any
amendments or interpretations of the Rule since such offering as well as such changed circumstances and (2) cither (a) the
registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required by any other provision of the
Ordinance that anthorizes such an amendment) of the outstanding Obligations consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is
unaffiligted with the City (such as nationally recognized Bond Counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially
impair the interest of the registered owners and beneficial owners of such Obligations. The City may also amend or repeal the
provisions of the continuing disclosure agreements if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the Rule or a court
of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions
of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling the Obligations in the primary offering of
such Obligations. If the City amends its agreements, it must include with the next financial information and operating data
provided in accordance with its agreement described above under "Annual Reports" an explanation, in narrative form, of the
reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of information and data provided.

COMPLIANCE WITH PRIOR UNDERTAKINGS . . . During the last five years, the City has complied in ail material respects with all
continuing disclosure agreements made by it in accordance with the Rule.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

FirstSouthwest is employed as Financial Advisor to the City in connection with the issuance of the Obligations. The Financial
Advisor's fee for services rendered with respect to the sale of the Obligations is contingent upon the issuance and delivery of the
Obligations. FirstSouthwest, in its capacity as Financial Advisor, does not assume any responsibility for the information,
covenants and representations contained in any of the legal documents with respect to the federal income tax status of the
Obligations, or the possible impact of any present, pending or future actions taken by any legislative or judicial bodies.

The Financial Advisor to the City has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statcment. The Financial
Advisor has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to the City
and, as applicable, to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but
the Financial Advisor does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

INITIAL PURCHASER

After requesting competitive bids for the Bonds, the City accepted the bid of (the "Initial Purchaser of
the Bonds") to purchase the Bonds at the interest rates shown on the cover page of the Official Statement at a price of par plus a cash
premium of § . TheInitialPurchaserofmeBondscangivenoassumncethatanytradingma:ketwi]lbedevelopedfor
the Bonds after their sale by the City to the Initial Purchaser of the Bonds. The City has no control aver the price at which the Bonds
are subsequently sold and the initial yields at which the Bonds will be priced and reoffered will be established by and will be the
responsibility of the Initial Purchaser of the Bonds.

After requesting competitive bids for the Contractual Obligation, the City accepted the bid of (the
“Initial Purchaser”) of the Contractual Obligations” and, together with the Tnitial Purchaser of the Bonds, the "Initial Purchaser™)

to purchase the Contractual Obligations at the interest rates shown on the page 3 of the Official Statement at a price of par plus a cash
premium of $ . The Initial Purchascr of the Contractual Obligations can give no assurance that any trading market will
be developed for the Contractual Obligations after their sale by the City to the Initial Purchaser of the Contractual Obligations. The
City has no control over the price at which the Contractual Obligations are subsequently sold and the initial yields at which the
Contractual Obligations will be priced and reoffered will be established by and will be the responsibility of the Tnitial Purchaser of
the Contractual Obligations,
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS DISCLAIMER

The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other information provided by the City, that are not purely
historical, are forward-looking statements, including statements regarding the City's expeciations, hopes, intentions, or strategies
regarding the future, Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
included in this Official Statement are based on information available to the City on the date hereof, and the City assumes no
obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. The City's actual results could differ materially from those discussed
in such forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements included hersin are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and are inherently
subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertainties relating to the possible invalidity of the underlying
assumptions and estimates and possible changes or developments in social, economic, business, industry, market, legal, and
regulatory circumstances and conditions and actions taken or omitted to be taken by third parties, including customers, suppliers,
business patiners and competitors, and legislative, judicial, and other govemmental authorities and officials, Assumptions
related to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive, and market
conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are
beyond the control of the City. Any of such assumptions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the
forward-looking statements included in this Official Statement will prove to be accurate.

CERTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

At the time of payment for and delivery of the Obligations, the City will furnish the Initial Purchaser a certificate, executed by an
authorized representative of the City, acting in such petson’s representative capacity, to the effect that to the best of such
person’s knowledge and belief: (a} the descriptions and statements of or pertaining to the City contained in the Official
Statement, and any addenda, suppiement or amendment thereto, on the date of the Official Statement, on the date of sale of the
Obligations and the acceptance of the best bid therefor, and on the date of the delivery, were and are true and correct in all
material respects; (b) insofar as the City and its affairs, including its financial affairs, are caoncerned, the Official Statement did
not and does not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (c) insofar
as the descriptions and statements, including financial data, of or pertaining to entities, other than the City, and their activities
contained in the Official Statement are concerned, such statements and data have been obtained from sources which the City
believes to be reliable and the City has no reason to believe that they are untrue in any material respect; and (d) there has been no
material adverse change in the financial condition of the City since the date of the last audited financial statements of the City.

The Ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Obligations will also approve the form and content of this Official Statement, and
any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, and authorize its further use in the reoffering of the Obligations by the Initial
Purchaser.

JIM GRIFFIN
Mayor
City of Bedford, Texas
ATTEST:

MICHAEL WELLS
City Secretary
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LOCATION AND HISTORY . .. The City of Bedford, Texas (the "City") is located in northeast Tarrant County, encompassing
approximately 10.1 square miles with 366 employess. The City is approximately 10 miles northeast of downtown Fort Worth and 25
miles northwest of downtown Dallas, It is a part of the mid-cities area of North Central Texas (the "Metroplex™, which includes the
Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth with a total population exceeding 4 million.

The City was incorporated in 1953 under the general laws of the State of Texas and the current charter was approved by the voters in
1966. The City is a home rule city and operates under the Council’Manager form of government, The Council is composed of a
mayor and six councilmembers elected at large. All City residents vote for all seven places. The members are elected for three-year
staggered terms and elections are held annually,

Policy-making and oversight functions are the responsibility of, and are vested in, the City Council. The City Council is required by
the charter to appoint a City Manager to serve as the chief administrative and executive officer of the City. The duties of the City
Manager include the appointment of City department heads and the daily conduct of City affairs.

POFULATION . .. The City has grown steadily since the mid-1950's when it was a small bedroom community,

Population history is as follows:

Year Population Year Population
1980 20,821 1998 48,300
1981 25,500 1999 48,800
1982 25,750 2000 47,152
1983 28,850 2001 47,309
1984 36,750 2002 47,500
1985 39316 2003 47,7150
1986 40,150 2004 47,850
1987 42,550 2005 48,050
1988 45,000 2006 48,050
1989 45,700 2007 48,600
1990 43,762 2008 45,118
1991 43,875 2009 46,039
1992 44,135 2010 46,979
1993 44,500 2011 46,980
1994 45,300 2012 46,990
1995 45,700 2013 47,310
1996 46,500 2014 48,721
1997 47,850

EcoNoMICs . . . The City's location in the middle of the Fort Worth/Dallas Metroplex provides access to approximately 4 million
people - the sixth largest market in the United States, Bedfond's proximity to the D/FW International Airport allows local businesses
to capitalize on trade opportunities gained through the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA).

MUNICIPAL SERVICES . . . With active involvement by the Mayor, a six member City Council and 14 citizen boards, commissions and
committees, the City is assured proper and effective representation. Low crime statistics are maintained by a police force consisting
of 76 police officers. The City has three professionally staffed fire stations which are fully equipped to handle most emergencics; the
City utilizes its own mobsile intensive care ambulance system, staffed with highly trained paramedics.

EDUCATION

Education for the citizens of the City is provided by the Hurst-Euless-Bedford Independent School District. The District conducts
programs for K-12 and is fully accredited by the Southern Association of Colleges and the Texas Education Agency and operates on
a middte school structure, i.e. Pre-kindergarten-5, 6-8, and 9-12.

Physical facilities inclade:
3 high schools Administration complex Computer service center
5 junior high schools Transportation complex Annex/materials center
20 elementary schools Stadiuom
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The City’s proximity to Dallas and Fort Worth gives its residents ready access to a number of fine colleges and universities.

Seven major colleges and universities are in the Hurst-Euless-Bedford area or nearby:

Texas Christian University
University of Texas at Arlington
University of North Texas
Texas Women's University

Texas Wesleyan College

Southern Methodist University
University of Texas at Dallas

Tarrant County College

18 miles
10 miles
30 miles
30 miles
12 miles
20 miles
18 miles

2 miles

AGENDA

PARKS AND RECREATION . . . There are 9 parks, 2 public swimming pools, 4 theaters, 6 tennis courts, 8C restaurants, and 8
hotels‘motels in the City. The City is close to Six Flags Over Texas, Ripley's Believe It or Not! Wax Museum, Texas Stadium

and the Texas Rangers Baseball Stadium.

TRANSPORTATION . . . The City has prime positioning for easy access to major local, regional and national markets. Being just 7.5
miles from the DallasFort Worth International Airport and 9 miles from the Fort Worth Alliance Airport, the Ciry is located in the
hub of business activity and is an integral part of the rapidly growing Northcast Tarrant County Area.

The City is strategically positioned on or near five major Interstate Highways. Using Interstate Loop 820, easy access is gained to
Intersiate 35 (north to Oklahoma and south to Austin, San Antonio and Laredo), Interstate 45 (north to Tulsa and south to Houston),
Interstate 20 (west to Midland and El Paso and east to Tyler and Shreveport), and Interstate 30 (east to Texarkana, Little Rock and
Memphis). The accessibility factor also includes five rail lines in the Fort Worth arca, one of which - $t. Louis Southwestern - is

located in the City.

HiSTORICAL EMPLOYMENT DATA

Bedford:
Civilian Labor Force
Unemployed
Percent of Unemploved

Dallas Fort Worth/Arlington MSA
Civilian Labor Force
Unemployed
Percent of Unemployed

Tarrant County
Civilian Labor Force
Unemployed
Percent of Unemployed

Average Average Average Average
December Annual Annual Annual Annual
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

30,548 29,940 29,309 28 952 30,103
1,485 1,711 2,031 2,207 2,011
4.8% 5.7% 6.9% 7.6% 6.7%
3,433,868 3,339,582 3,286,633 3,242,289 3,157,788
186,017 222,748 256,529 265,611 246,095
5.4% 6.7% 7.8% 8.2% 7.8%
982,304 953,692 934,168 920,160 896,009
52,334 62,667 73.065 75,882 68,846
5.3% 6.6% 7.8% 8.2% 7.7%

Source: Texas Employment Commission, Austin, Texas.

Change in calculation methodology by the Texas Employment Commission. Employment figures are computed based on a statewide
workforce and is based on local population as a percentage of statewide population.



Source: City Records.
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MAIOR EMPLOYERS IN THE CITY
Estimated
Number of
Company Type of Business Employees
Hurst-Euless-Bedford Independent School District School District 2,500
Harris Methodist Hospital HEB Hospital 1,600
Carter BloodCare/Blood Systems, Inc. Blood Testing/Distribution Center 1,100
Wal-Mart Supercenter Retail Sales 435
Warrantech Equipment Warranty Company 415
Beryl Companies Call Center 400
State National Insurance Financial 400
City of Bedford City Government 366
Transamerica Insurance Financial 300
Aystar Television Network Religious Institution 200
Grubbs Nissan Auto Dealer 155
Heartland Nursing Home Health Care 110
Kroger Retail Grocery 105
BUILDING PERMIT INFORMATION
Commercial Construction Residential Construction
Fiscal Number of Number of Total
Year Units Value Units Value Value
2009 8 $ 8,502,000 5 $ 1,287,430 $ 9,789,430
2010 198 21,674,929 77 4,470,777 26,145,706
2011 57 7,408,944 53 1,903,085 9,312,029
2012 239 37,676,880 624 5,816,034 43,492,914
2013 178 10,440,187 502 9,789,265 20,229,452
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APPENDIX B

EXCERPTS FROM THE
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013
The information contained in this Appendix consists of excerpts from the City of Bedford,
Texas Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30, 2013, and is not intended

to be a complete statement of the City's financial condition. Reference is made to the
complete Report for further information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Mayor and City Council
City of Bedford, Texas
Bedford, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fiund information of the
City of Bedford, Texas (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
staternents listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

.
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The Mayor and City Council
City of Bedford, Texas
Page 2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financia! statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2013,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note I to the financial statements, in 2013 the City adopted new accounting
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board statement No. 65, Irems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Prior Year Comparative Information

The financial statements include summarized prior-year comparative information. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the government’s financial statements for the year
ended September 30, 2012, from which the summarized information was derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary and pension information listed in the table
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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The Mayor and City Council
City of Bedford, Texas
Page 3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining fund statements and
schedules listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying information in the introductory and statistical sections as listed in the
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

BED L

Dallas, Texas
February 21, 2014
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City of Bedford

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
September 30, 2013

The discussion and analysis of the City of Bedford’s (the City) financial performance provides
an overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.
Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter and the City’s basic
financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$354,743,996 (net position). Of this amount, $10,787,362 (unrestricted net position} may be used
to meet ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City’s net position decreased $2,688,147 or 4.68%. The decrease is primarily due to a
14.69% decreasc in capital assets, net of depreciation for governmental activities. In the prior
year, the governmental activities added $1,903,983 in capital assets that were offset by an S8
million depreciation expense. This fiscal year, the capital asset addition is merely $855,180,
which is a decrease of 55.08%, offset by another $8 million depreciation expense, thus declining
the City’s net position overall.

As of September 30, 2013, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $15,421,695, an increase of $2,500,894 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Of
this amount, $5,751,658, or 37.3% of the total amount is unassigned.

As of September 30, 2013, the fund balance for the General Fund increased by $551,436. Total
General Fund balance was $6,337,789. The increase in the General Fund balance was the result
of 5.48% increase in the operating transfers in the fund, coupled with the proceeds of a lease
purchase that has yet to be expensed. In addition, the operating revenues increased slightly by
0.83%, but were offset by a 2.79% increase in operating expenditures. Therefore, the outliers
that mostly contributed to the increase in fund balances are the transfers and lease proceeds.

The City’s total debt of $56,553,872 increased by $849,861 during the 2012/2013 fiscal year due
to the following reasons: the City issued $4,900,000 in certificates of obligation early in the
2012/2013 fiscal year, refunded $3,700,000 in redeemable obligations and issued $1,675,000 in
new general obligation bonds at the end of year. This totals $10,725,000 being added to the total
debt, which is offset by $9,653,509 in obligations being retired. Moreover, the City entered into
a lease purchase agreement for $228,370, which is added to the outstanding debt total by the end
of the fiscal year, thus increasing debt from the $55,704,411 reported in fiscal year 2011/2012.

Using This Annual Report

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements.

The statement of net position and statement of activities provide information about the activities
of the City as a whole and presents a long-term view of the City’s finances.



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

The next section is the fund financial statements. For governmental activities, these statements
tell how these services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements report the City’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most financially
significant funds.

This report also includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Reporting the City as a Whole

One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole
better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The statement of net position and the
statement of activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a
way that helps answer this question. These statements include assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies. Accrual of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the
City’s net position (the difference between assets and deferred outflows, what the citizens own
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, what the citizens owe) as one way to measure
the City’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s
net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You
will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the City’s property
tax base, and the condition of the City’s capital assets (roads, buildings, water and sewer lines) to
assess the overall health of the City.

In the statement of net position and the statement of activities, the City is divided into two kinds
of activities:
* Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the

police, fire, street maintenance, parks and recreation and general administration. Property
taxes, sales taxes, charges for services and fines/forfeitures finance most of these activities.

* Business-type Activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides. The City’s water and sewer system, and stormwater
facilities are reported here,

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not
the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. However, the City
Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular
purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain revenues.

The City’s two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approaches.
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Governmental Funds

Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps
one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the relationship (of differences) between
governmental activities (reported in the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
and governmental funds in reconciliations.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. Generally speaking, a city maintains two different types of
proprietary funds to record charges for the full cost of the services it provides whether to outside
customers or to other units of the city. These services are reported in either Enterprise Funds or
Internal Service Funds.

o Enterprise Funds — Are used to report the same function presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses Enterprise Funds to
account for its water and sewer and stormwater operations.

e Internal Service Funds — Are an accounting device used to accumulate costs internally
among various functions of the City. The City currently has no operations that qualify as an
Internal Service Fund.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources would not be available to support the City’s own programs. The City
currently has no fiduciary funds.

Major Governmental Funds

As noted elsewhere in this report, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements. The focus of governmental funds is to
provide information on inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Information such
as unassigned fund balance serves as a useful measure of the City’s ability to finance unforeseen
upcoming obligations. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, year ending unassigned
fund balance of $5,751,658 represents 20.25% (approximately 74 days) of next year’s budgeted
expenditures.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $1,060,593, all of which is reserved for the
payment of debt. There was, however, a decrease in fund balance of $48,076 during the current

year, due to tax assessment income levels not reaching total debt service expended from the
fund.
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The Street Bond Capital Project Fund has a total fund balance of $1,832,971, all of which is
reserved for street projects. There was an increase in fund balance of $8,947 during the current
year, due to interest income,

The Economic Development 4B Fund has a total fund balance of $1,903,735, all of which is
reserved for street infrastructure improvements and maintenance. There was an increase in fund
balance of $402,260 during the current year.

The City as a Whole

The City’s combined net position changed from a year ago, decreasing from $57,432,143 to
$54,743,996. Looking at the net position and net expenses of governmental and business-type
activities separately, different stories emerge. Our analysis below focuses on the net position
(Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the City’s governmental and business-type
activities.

Net position of the City’s govemnmental activities decreased from $25,156,412, last fiscal year, to
$22,728,556 as of September 30, 2013, or 9.65%. In the business-type activities, the net position
also decreased from $32,275,731 to $32,015,440, or .81%. The unrestricted net position of the
City’s governmental activities (the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day
operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal
requirements) decreased to a negative $1,057,886. The primary reason for the decrease was due
to the implementation of the GASB 65 pronouncement. As stated in “Note I: New
Pronouncements,” the City no longer has to record debt issuance cost as a deferred debt expense,
which is capitalized and amortized over the life of the debt. As a result, a prior period
adjustment was made to remove bond issuance costs of $1,056,318, resulting in a change in
beginning net position. The unrestricted net position of the business-type activities increased
from $7,136,012 to $11,845,248 as of September 30, 2013, or 65.99%. The primary reason for
the increase is in the unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds. The water and sewer fund
increased $4,423,307 or 69.24% and the stormwater fund increased $285,929 or 38.25% in their
unrestricted net positions.

Restricted net position, those restricted mainly for capital projects and debt service increased
from $5,213,292 to $8,426,186 or 61.63%.

The largest portion of the City’s net position (64.9%) reflects its investment in capital assets, less
any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future spending.
Resources needed to repay debt associated with acquisition of these assets must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used for this purpose.
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City of Bedford’s Net Position

(in thousands)
Governmental Activities Businessﬂe Activities Totals
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current $ 18,400 S 16,722 $ 15,153 g 14,283 3§ 33,553 § 31,005
Other noncurrent assets 300 1,357 (300) (300) - 1,057
Capital assets 48,371 55,359 38,581 36,142 86,052 91,501
Total assets 67,071 73,438 53,434 50,125 120,505 123,563
Deferred outflows of resources 118 - 47 - 165 -
Current liabilities 8,530 8,991 3,790 4,028 12,320 13,019
Long-term liabilities 35,931 35,291 17,676 13,821 53.607 53,112
Total liabilities 44,461 48,282 21,456 17,849 65,927 66,131
Net position
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 14,323 18,908 20,170 25,140 34,493 44,0448
Restricted 8,426 5213 - - 8,425 5,213
Unrestricted (21) 1,035 11,845 7,136 11,824 8,171
Tozal net position & 22,728 $ 25,156 § 32,015 $ 32,276 S 54,743 3 57,432

» Governmental Activities — Net position for Governmental Activities decreased by
$2.427,856. Due to a recent change in accounting principle (GASB 65), the net position is
significantly impacted by the removal of the deferred bond issuance costs. In addition, a
primary use of revenues (59.26%) relate directly to covering public safety functions. During
the year, organizational changes were made that expanded the public safety function to
include code compliance and inspections. Public safety (police, fire and EMS) program
revenues less direct expenses totaled $18,871,914 of total governmental activities.

o Business-type Activities — Revenues of the City’s business-type activities totaled
$19,257,971 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. Expenses for these activities were
$16,901,386, resulting in a net gain of $2,356,585 from operations before transfers. The net
position, after interfund transfers, of the business-type activities decreased by $260,291. This
is due primarily to implementation of GASB 65 and increased operating expenses in the
Water and Sewer Fund by 11.94% coupled with a 4.74% decline in water and sewer
operating revenues.
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City of Bedford’s Changes in Net Position

{In thousande)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 5,187 $ 5,986 $ 19,199 $ 20,207 $ 24,386 $ 26,193
Operating grant and contributions 611 599 - - 611 599
Capital grants and contributions - A4 - 147 - 191
General revenue
Property taxes 14,488 13,735 - - 14,488 13,735
Other taxes 13,870 13,565 - - 13,870 13,565
Interest and investment earings 34 26 47 21 81 47
Other general revenues 535 595 11 4 546 599
Total revermes 34,725 34,550 19,257 20,379 53,982 54,929
Expenses
Public safety 22,329 17,292 - - 22 829 17,292
Leisure services 3,766 3,691 - - 3,766 3,691
Community services 2017 1,986 - 2,017 1,986
General government/administration 4,688 4,797 . - 4,688 4,797
Public services 3,486 8,354 - - 3,486 8,354
Interest on long-term debt 1,725 2,169 - - 1,725 2,169
‘Water and sewer - . 15,646 15,112 15,646 15,112
Stormwater - - 1,256 1,336 1,256 1,336
Total expenses 38.511 38,289 16,902 16,448 55,413 54,737
Increase in Net Position Before Transfers (3.786) (3,739) 2,355 3931 {1,431 192
Transfers 2414 2377 (2,414) (2,377) - -
Change in Net Position (1,372) (1,362) (59} 1,554 (1,431) 192
Net Puosition, As Previously Reported* 25156 26,518 32,276 30,722 57,432 57,240
Change in Accounting Principle (1,056) - {202) - (1,258} -
Net Position, Beginning of Year 24,100 26.518 32,074 30,722 56,174 57,240
Net Position, End of Year $ 22,728 $ 25,156 $ 32,015 $ 32,275 $ 54,743 $ 57,432

*Net position as of September 1, 2012 has been restated for the effects of adopting GASB No. 65, The impact of this statement on 2012 is not shown,
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Actual revenues exceeded budgetary expectations by $1,030,205 and actual expenditures were
$243,170 less than budgetary projections. This combination of these instances resulted in a
positive variance of $787,035, which has helped contribute to the increase in fund balance. This
is primarily related to tax revenues, along with other major revenue categories, exceeding
budgetary expectations. Therefore, because of the positive variance, the General Fund finished
the fiscal year with a $551,436 net increase in fund balance.



COMMUNIQUE

The City’s Funds

AGENDA

The following tables present a summary of General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt

Service Fund revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, and the
amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to the prior year:

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total

General government
Community services
Public services

Administrative services

Public safety
Leisure services
Captial outlay
Debt service

Total

General Revenues

(in thousands)

2013 Increase Percent
Percent of {Decrease) Increase
2012 2013 Total from 2012 {Decrease)
S 27,951 $ 28279 82% S 328 1%
864 457 1% 407 -47%
2,822 3,097 9% 275 10%
2,079 1,503 4% (576) -28%
655 661 2% 6 1%
26 34 0% 8 31%
558 623 2% 65 12%
3 34,955 3 34,654 100% $ (301) -20%
General Expenditures
(in thousands)
2013 Increase Percent
Percent of (Decrease) Increase
2012 2013 Total from 2012 (Decrease)

b} 1,578 $ 1,628 5% $ 53 3%
1,913 1,953 5% 40 2%
2,708 2,458 T% (250) 5%
2,082 1,947 5% (135) -6%
16,127 16,798 46% 671 4%
3,662 3,752 1”4 90 2%
2,281 1,244 3% {1,037 45%
7,108 6,829 19% (279) -4%
S 37,456 S 36,609 100% $ (847) =53%

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2013, the City had $253,346,734 invested in capital assets including police
and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, water, sewer, and stormwater facilities. This
represents net increase of $4,869,116 or 1.96% over last year. Capital assets net of depreciation
decreased by approximately $4,548,941 or 4.97%.

10



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

The City’s capital plans for fiscal year 2014/2015 call for expenditures of approximately $2.8
million for capital projects, primarily in the following categories: street improvements, drainage,
and water and sewer distribution system and facilities. The estimated capital expenditure for
street improvements is no more than $50,000 to complete road and ramp improvements at
several intersections throughout the City. The most significant capital improvement project tied
to strects is a mill and overlay project for Bedford Road. However, this project will not take
effect until the following year. The drainage projects are estimated at $1,000,000 for channel
improvements and erosion control throughout areas of the City in need of major enhancements to
improve downstream water flow. Finally, the estimated capital improvement for water and
sewer projects is $1,775,000. The most notable of these projects are water main replacements
for both Shady Brook and FM 157 totaling $650,000. On the sewer side, the most notable
projects include replacing trunk sewer lines along Pipeline Road and Bear Creek, totaling
$850,000. Additional information on capital asset activity can be found in Note 7 of this report.

Capital Assets at Year-and
{in thousands)
Govemmental Activities Buslness-type Activities Totals
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 7,261 8 7511 $ 160 5 103 $ 7.361 $ 7,614
Buildings and structures 25,256 25,256 519 519 25,715 25,775
Other improvements 122,956 122,852 - - 122,956 122,852
Equipment 26,419 25,668 3,307 3,204 29,726 28,872
Utility distribution - - 61,462 59,851 61,462 59,851
Construction in progress 603 350 5,464 3,164 6,067 3,514
Total $ 182,495 3 181,637 $ 70‘852 $ 66,841 § 253,347 $ 248,478
Debt

At year-end, the City had $56,553,872 in General Obligation Bonds, Combination Tax and
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, and capital lease obligations compared to $55,704.011 at the
end of the prior fiscal year, an increase of 1.53%. The City issued debt in fiscal year 2012/2013,
partially offset by the retirement of such debt as well, thus rendering a slight increase in
outstanding debt when compared to fiscal year ending 2011/2012.

Outstanding Debt at Year-end

{in thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activitios Totals
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
General obligations s 37,800 $ 41,023 $ - $ - b 37,800 $ 41,023
Certificates of obligation . 18,275 14,342 18,275 14,342
Tax notes - - - - - -
Capital lease 479 339 - - 479 339

Total 5 38.279 8 41,362 $ 18,275 $ 14,342 $ 56,554 b 55,704

11
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Standard and Poor’s (S&P) affirmed the City of Bedford’s “AA” rating in conjunction with the
City’s issuance of the Series 2013 Refunding and Improvement General Obligation bonds. The
City’s rating outlook from S&P’s is “Stable.” S&P’s rating reflects their view of the City’s
strong wealth and income levels, its historically strong financial performance and reserves, and
its moderate debt burden. The General Obligation bonds are secured by an ad valorem tax levied
against all taxable property within the City, within the limits prescribed by law. The Certificates
of Obligation are also secured by a limited pledge of net revenues of the City’s water and sewer
system. Additional information regarding the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Continued strength in sales tax collections and a moderate increase in property tax values
enabled the City Council to slightly reduce the property tax rate from the budget year of 2012 to
2014 at a rate of $0.499115 per $100 assessed valuation. The tax rate provides the City with the
ability to continue to provide the high level quality of services the citizens of Bedford deserve
and have come to expect, while providing for merit based increases to employee compensation
and benefits.

In budget year 2013, the City Council also was able to fund one-time capital purchases that
benefitted several departments. They funded a new medic unit, a vehicle lift, cargo van and a
battalion chief vehicle. In addition, the City Council was able to fund additional personnel in
marketing, fire inspections and the library, plus adding funds for a new code enforcement
initiative.

Moreover, staff evaluated the water and sewer infrastructure as well as the wholesale services
provided by the TRA and determined that an increase in rates was necessary. The primary
reason was to build up the utility fund’s working capital to functioning levels that will be used to
invest in the City’s water and sewer infrastructure without issuing additional debt. There will be
continued need to re-evaluate the rate structure as the City moves towards more conservation
measures to preserve its water resources.

Contacting The City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with
a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
the Finance Division at 2000 Forest Ridge Drive, Bedford, Texas 76021.

12
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COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

City of Bedford, Texas

Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)

Pritnary Government Totals
Govemmental Business-typs
Activities Activities 2013 2012
Assets
Current nssets
Cash snd cash equivalenis § 9,252,798 $ 7,852,119 $ 17,104917 3 12,825,600
Investments 5,132,091 - 5,132,0M 5,148,671
Receivables (het of allowance) 3,926,347 3,236,509 7,162 856 8,464,217
Internal balances (39.220) 39,220 - -
Due from other governments 99,423 - 99,423 76,593
Inventories and prepaid exp 29,164 : 29164 125,719
Restricted assets
Investments - 4,024,402 4,024 402 4,364,114
Total enrrent assets 18,400,603 15,152,250 33,552,853 31,004,914
Noncurrent assets
Internal balances 300,000 (300,000) - -
Bond issuance costs, net - - - 1,056,318
Capital assets, not being depreciated 7.864,404 5,564,180 13,428 584 11,166,215
Capital asscts, being depreciated, net 40,506,669 33,017,027 73,523,696 80,335,006
Total noncurrent assets 48,671,073 38,281,207 86,952,280 92,557,539
Total apscts 57,071 576 53.433.457 120,505,133 123,562 453
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding 117,977 47456 165,433 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 117,977 47,456 165,433 -
Liablllities
Current [iabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,646,433 1,936,868 3,583,301 4,023,689
Due to other governments 205,189 - 205,189 236,440
Escrow and unearned revenue 413,646 2,041 415,687 1,331,793
Customer deposits ‘ 251,164 851,164 28,669
Current pottion of compensated absenccs 843118 47,861 290,979 812,243
Current portion of long-term debt 5421370 951,993 6,373,363 5,785,583
Total current liabilities 8529756 3780927 12,319,683 13,018,417
Noncurrent ligbilities
Bonds payable 33,652,150 17,459,022 51,111,212 50,913,269
Capital leases 3585817 - 395,817 287,882
Compensated absences 1,686236 95,722 1,781 958 1,624,507
Cther postemployment benefits 197,098 120.802 317.%00 286.235
Total noncurrent lishilities 35931341 17,675,546 53,606,887 53,111,893
Total liabilitics 44,461,097 21465473 65,926,570 66,130,310
Net Position
Net investiment in capital assets 14,323,066 20,170,192 34,493,258 44,047,834
Restricted for
Capital acquisition end construction 3,863,289 . 3,863,289 1,373,283
Debt service 1,060,593 - 1,060,593 1,108,669
Economic development 1,903,735 - 1,903,735 1,501,475
Other putposes 1,073,199 - 1,073,199 866,207
Public safety 476 461 - 476,461 308,698
Parks end besutification 48,909 - 48,909 54,960
Unrestricted (20,696) 11,845,248 11,824,552 8.171,017
Total net position $ 22,728 556 $ 32015440 $ 54,743,996 $ 57.432,143

See Notes to Financial Statements 13
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City of Bedford, Texas

Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)

Program Revenues

Qpaerating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and
Functions/Programs Expences Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental activities
General government and administration s 4,688,432 $ 76,647 $ 6,254 %
Community services 2,017,011 158,167 - .
Public services 3,486,148 218,646 -
Public safety 22,828,761 3,374,638 582,209
Leisure services 3,765,867 1,158,956 22,140 -
Interest expense 1,724,511 - - -
Total governmental activities 38,510,730 3,187,054 610,603 -
Business-type activities
Water and sewer services 15,645,261 17,508,621 -
Stormwater collection and disposal 1,256,126 1,290,624 - -
Total business-type activities 16,901,387 19,199,245 - -
Total primaty government $ 55412117 $ 24386299 s 610.603 $ s
General Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes, penalty and interest
Sales
Franchise
Qccupancy
Other
[nvestment income (loss)
Gain on sale of assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues, special item and transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position, As Previously Reported
Change in Accounting Principle
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes fo Financial Statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes In Net Position

Primary Government Totals
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities 2013 2012

$  (4,605,531) 3 * $  (4,605,531) 3 (4,709,352)
(1,658,844) - (1,658,844) (1,333,747)
(3,267,502) . (3,267,502) (6,666,344)
(18,871,914} - (18,871,914) (14,298,821)
(2,584,771) - (2,584,771) (2.482,104)
{1,724,511) (1,724,511) (2,169,120)
{32,713,073) - (32,713.073) (31,659,988)

- 2,263,360 2,263,360 3,950,245
- 34,498 34,498 (44.510)

- 2,297,858 2,297,858 3,905,735

$_ (32,713 073) b 2,297,858 $ (30415215) $ (27.754.253)

$ 14,488,399 $ . § 14,483,399 $ 13,735,255
9,629,427 > 9,629,427 9,363,047
3,338,307 - 3,338,307 3,325,941

749,612 - 749,612 723,745
152,344 - 152,344 152,093
33,521 47,321 80,842 47,510

77 11,406 11,483 223,457

535,397 - 535,397 374,992
2,414,451 (2.414,451) - -
31,341,535 (2,355,724) 28,985,811 27,946,040
(1,371,538) (57,866) (1,429,404) 191,787
25,156,412 32,275,131 57,432,143 57,240,356
(1,056,318) (202,425) {1,258.743) -
24,100,094 32,073,306 56,173,400 57,240,356

b 22,7285556 $ 32015440 $ 54,743,996 $ 57432143
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City of Bedford, Texas

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)

Debt Street
General Service Bond
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,427,322 s 3,573 $ 844,243
Investments 1,650,176 1,068,242 1,402,553
Receivables
Taxes, less allowance for uncollectible 2,255,372 103,423
Accounts 420,815 .
Other 17,493 - 345,792
Due from other governments 99,423
Due from other funds 28,597
Inventories and prepaid expenditures 20,164
Advances to other funds 300,000 -
Total assets $ 8228362 $ 1,175,238 $ 2,592,595
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts and coniracts payable $ 1,407,107 8 17,853 s
Due to other funds 31,300 .
Escrow 59,739 413,646
Deferred revenue - - -
Total liabilities 1,498,146 17,853 413,646
Deferred inflows of resources 392,427 96,792 345,978
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Advances to other funds 328,597 -
Inventories and prepaids 26,164 ¥
Restricted for
Debt service - 1,060,593 -
Road improvements - - 1,832,971
Capital acquisition and construction - -
Economic development - -
Public safety 228,370 -
Parks and beautification -
Other -
Assigned - -
Unassigned 5,751,658 -
Total fund balances 6,337,789 1,060,593 1,832,971
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances $ 8,228,362 $ 1,175238 $ 2,592,595

See Noles to Financial Stalements

AGENDA
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Economic Nonmajor Totals
Development 4B Govemnment 2013 2012
$ 1,057,520 $ 3,920,135 $ 9252,798 5 6,631,904
502,906 508,212 5,132,091 5,148,671
415,157 43,612 2,817,564 2,860,570
294 421,109 1,201,525
- 496 363,781 455,438
- 99,423 76,593
= 200 28,797 1,367
- 29,164 58,917
- 300,000 300,000
$  1,975.877 5 4472655 $ 18,444,727 $ 16,734,985
$ 72,142 $ 149,331 § 1,646,433 $ 1,652,425
B 36,717 68,017 36,713
B . 473,385 413,646
- - 1,711,400
72,142 186,048 2,187,835 3,814,184
- 835,197
328,597 301,367
- 29,164 58,917
- 1,060,593 1,108,669
- - 1,832,971 1,824,024
- 3,274,169 3,274,169 1,830,699
1,903,735 . 1,903,735 1,501,475
- 248,091 476,461 308,698
- 48,909 48,909 54,960
715438 715,438 505,923
- - 661,539
- 5,751,658 4,764,530
1,903,735 4,286,607 15,421,695 12,920,801
$ 1975877 $ 4472655 § 18,444,727 $§ 16,734,985

AGENDA
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City of Bedford, Texas

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2013

Fund balances of governmental fands

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities
are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported as assets in
the governmental funds. Capital assets are reported in the government-wide
financial statements, net of accumulated depreciation.

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources,
therefore interest payable is not reported as a liability in the governmental
funds balance sheet.

Revenues earned but not available within 60 days of the year-end are not
recognized as revenue on the fund financial statements.

Receivables not measureable and available within 60 days of year-end,
and therefore are entirely deferred in the fund financial statements.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the fund financial statements.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

General obligation bonds
Premiums on bond debt
Deferred outflows of resources
Compensated absences

OPEB liability

Capital leases

Total net position of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

AGENDA

3 15,421,695

48,371,073

(205,189)

894,936

323,803
37,800,000
1,190,505
(117,977
2,529,354
197,098

478,872 (42,077,852)

$ 22,728,556
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Revenues
Taxes, penalty and interest
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

Support from governmental entities

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
General governmental
Community services
Public services
Administrative services
Public safety
Leisure services

Capital outlay

Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal agent fees
Bond issuance costs

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Other Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of debt
Premium on debt

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Lease purchase proceeds
Sale of capital assets
Insurance proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

AGENDA
City of Bedford, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)
Debt Street
General Service Bond
$ 19,890,570  § 5,231,317 $ -
456,761 : .
2,731.965 - -
1,239,093 - .
538,583 - :
9,437 5,237 8,947
505,907 38,059 -
25,372,316 5,274,613 8,947
1,624,114 -
1,072,592 -
1,731,604 .
1,894,340 o
16,797,850 . ;
3,744,074 . -
692,728 - =
38,509 4,978,379 :
13,510 1,676,105 -
- 72,818 -
27,659,321 6,727,302 -
(2,287,005) {1,452,689) 8,947
2,564,921 1,331,795 -
- 3,700,000 -
: 55,085 =
: (3,682,267) s
228,370 . -
77 -
45,073 - -
2,838,441 1,404,613 -
551,436 (48,076) 8,947
5,786,353 1,108,669 1,824,024
$ 6,337,789 $ 1,060,593 S 1832971

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Noles to Financial Statements
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COMMUNIQUE
Economic Nonmajor Totals
Davelopment 4B Governmental 2013 2012

$ 2,407,357 s 749,612 $ 28,278,856 $ 27,950,618
- - 456,761 863,709

- 365,472 3,097,437 2,822,239

- 263,644 1,502,737 2,078,895

- 122,830 661,413 654,732

4,291 5,609 33,521 26,459

- 78,853 622,819 557,599

2,411,648 1,586,020 34,653,544 34,954,251

- 3,820 1,627,934 1,574,751

- £80,822 1,953,414 1,912,686

464,140 262,204 2,457,948 2,708,419

- 52,193 1,946,533 2,081,900

- 16,797,850 16,126,751

- 7,514 3,751,588 3,661,546

156,832 394,291 1,243,851 2,281,440

- - 5,066,888 5,186,621

- - 1,689,615 1,921,115

- - 72,818 -

620,972 1,600,844 36,608,439 37,455,229
1,790,676 (14,824) (1,954 ,895) (2,500,978)

- - 3,896,716 3,863,681
(1,388,416) (93,849) (1,482,265) (1,487.017)

- 1,675,000 5,375,000 -

- 20,000 75,085 -

- - (3,682,267 -

- - 228370 339,011

. - 77 219,723

- - 45,073 41,100

(1,388,416) 1,601,151 4,455,789 2,976,498
402,260 1,586,327 2,500,894 475,520

1,501,475 2,700,280 12,920,801 12,445,281

$ 1,903,735 $ 4,286,607 $ 15421,695 $ 12,920,801
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City of Bedford, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $ 2,500,894

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the
current period. 1,243,851

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities but does
not require the use of current financial resources. Fherefore, depreciation expense is
not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (7,846,705)

Current year principal payments of long-term liabilities are shown as expenditures in
the fund financial statements, but shown as reductions in long-term liabilities in the
government-wide financial statements as follows:

General and certificates of obligation bonds 8,686,888

The issuance of long-term debt, such as bonds and capital leases, arc shown as
“Other Sources” and “Other Uses” in the governmental funds, but are shown
on the statement of net assets with related costs amortized over the life of the
bonds. Differences consist of the following:

Issuance of debt (5,375,000)

Premium on debt issuance (75,085)

Deferred loss on refunding 62,267

Capital lease (228,370)

Capital lease payments 37,380

Amortization of refunding loss (6,190)

Amortization of bond premium/discount 149,739 (5,435,259)

Current year change in long-term liability for compensated absences and OPEB liability
do not require the use of current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (190,004)

Current year changes in accrued interest payable do not require the use of current
financial resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 31,251

Certain revenues in the government-wide statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds,

This is the net change in these revenues for the year. (612,394)
Change in net position of governmental activities § (1,371,538)

See Notes to Financial Stalements 18
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City of Bedford, Texas
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)

Water and Stormwater Totals
Sewer Utiliy 2013 2012
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 6995912 $ 856,207 $ 72852119 H 6,193,696
Accounts receivable less allowance
for uncollectible of $313,127 3,040,514 195,995 3,236,509 3,487,168
Prepaids and inventories - - - 66,802
Due from other funds 40,591 - 40,591 35,346
Deferred charges - . . 135,623
Restricted assets — investments 3,396,147 628,255 4,024,402 4,364,114
Total current assets 13,473,164 1,680,457 15,153,621 14,282,749
Property, plant and equipment
Land 100,255 - 100,255 102,755
Buildings and improvements 518,600 - 518,600 518,600
Utility distribution 52,961,192 11,807,275 64,768,467 63,054,973
Construction in progress 2,821,368 2,642,557 5,463 925 3,164,263
Total property, plant and equipment 56,401,415 14,449,832 70,851,247 66,840,591
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (26,142,561) (6,127,479) (32,270,040) (30,698,689)
Total long-term assets 30,258,854 8,322,353 38,581,207 36,141,902
Total assets 43,732,018 10,002,810 53,734,828 50,424,651
Deferred Outflows of Resources 47,456 - 47,456 -
Liabilities
Cortent Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,617,750 319.118 1,936,868 2,371,264
Compensated absences 44 968 2,893 47,861 39,031
Defetred revenue - 2,01 2,041 2,041
Due to other fimds - 1,371 1,371 .
Advances from other funds - 300,000 300,000 300,000
Current maturities of bonds 816,993 135,000 951,993 786,558
Customer deposits 851,164 - 851,164 828 669
Total current liabilitics 3,330,875 760,423 4,091,298 4,327,563
Long-term liahilities
Compensated absences 89,0935 5,787 95,722 78,061
Bonds payable 14,383,701 3,075,321 17,459,022 13,634,527
Other post-employment benefits 104,951 15,851 120,802 108,769
Total long-term liabilities 14,578,587 3,096 959 17,675,546 13,821,357
Total liabilities 17,909,462 3,857,382 21,766,844 18,148,920
Net Posltlon
Net investment in capital assets 15,058,160 5,112,032 20,170,192 25,139,719
Unrestricted 10,811,852 1,033,396 11,845 248 7,136,012
Total net position $ 25,870,012 $ 65145,428 § 32,015.440 $ 32,275{1’31

See Nofes to Financial Stalements 19
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City of Bedford, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)

Operating Revenues
Water sales
Charges for sewer services
Stormwater charges
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Water supply and distribution
Wastewater collection and disposak
Billing and collection
Public services/engineering
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
(Gain on sale of capital asscts
Interest expense and fiscal agent charges
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income Before Transfers
Capital Contribations
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Change in Net Position
Total Net Position, As Previously Reported
Change in Accounting Principle

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year

Total Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

AGENDA

Water and Stormwater _ Totals

Sewer Utility 2013 2012
£ 11,739,641 s - S 11,739,641 8 12,185,112
5,930,354 - 5,930,354 5,995,840
- 1,260,624 1,260,624 1,261,856
238,626 30,000 268,626 764,183
17,908,621 1,290,624 19,199,245 20,206,991
8,116,217 - 8,116,217 7,914,658
3,960,054 - 3,960,034 3,837,162
1,218,968 880,496 2,099,464 2,133,813
605,250 - 605,250 566,978
1,309,435 261917 1,571,352 1,522 888
15,209,924 1,142 413 16,352,337 15,975,499
2,698,697 148,211 2,846,908 4,231,492
42,245 5,076 47,321 21,051
11,406 - 11,406 3,734
(435,337) (113,713) {549,050) (473,117)
(381,686) (108,637) (490,323) (448,332)
2,317,011 39,574 2,356,585 3,783,160
- - 147,360
237,470 237,470 112,945
(2,205,526} {446,395) (2,651,921) (2,489,609)
348,955 (406,821) (57,866) 1,553,856
25,656,680 6,619,051 32,275,731 30,721,875
(135,623) {66,802} (202,425) -
25,521,057 6,552,249 32,073,306 30,721,875
$ 25870,012 5 6145428 S 32,015,440 $ 32,275,731
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City of Bedford, Texas

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)

Operating Actlvities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from other funds
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities
Noncapital Financing Activities

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Repayment of debt
Proceeds from capital related debt
Interest and fiscal agent fees

Proceeds from sale of property
Additions to property and equipment

Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities

Imvesting Activities
Interest on investments
Purchase of investments
Maturity on investments
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

Stormwater Totals

— S—

Utliity 2013 2012

$ 18,174,071

1,298,328 $ 19,472,399 $ 20,426,049

35,346 (5,245) (35,346)
(650,585) (12,866,377) (10,970,572)
(267,739) (2,340,174) (2,393,446)

415,350 4,260,603 7,026,685
- 237,470 112,945
(445,024) (2,650,550 (2,489,609)
(445,024) (2,413,080) (2,376,664)
(81,858) (81,858) (523,757)
= 4,048,753 -
(113,713) (543,777) (473,113)
- 13,906
(199,393) (4,013,157) (2,789,633}
(394,964) (576,133) (3,786,503)
5,076 47321 21,051
- (3,580,114)

22,060 339,712 -

27,136 387,033 (3,559,063)
(397,502) 1,658,423 (2,695,545)
1,253,709 6,193,696 8,889,241

856,207 $ 7,852,119 $ 6,193,696
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City of Bedford, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds (Continued)
Year Ended September 30, 2013 (with Comparative Totals for 2012)

Water Stormwater Totals
and Sewer Utllity 2013 2012

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in} Operating Activities
Operating income $ 2,698,697 $ 148,211 $ 2,846,908 § 4,231,492
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities

Depreciation 1,300,435 261,917 1,571,352 1,522,888
Change in
Receivables 242,955 7,704 250,659 92,183
Due from other funds (40,591) 35,346 (5,245) (35,346)
Prepaids and inventory - - (44,952)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics (395,039) (39,357) (434,396) 1,219,505
Compensated absences 7,301 1,529 8,830 5,013
Customer deposits 22,495 - 22,495 35,902
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,845,253 $ 415,350 S 4,260,603 $ 7,026,685

See Nofes fo Financial Statements 22
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COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

City of Bedford, Texas

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Bedford, Texas (the City) Home Rule Charter was adopted September 24,
1966. The City operates under a Council/Manager form of government and provides the
following services by its charter: public safety, public works, health, culture, recreation,
community development, water and sewer utilities.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to state and local governments. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standards setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Management
uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with
GAAP. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues,
expenditures and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that are used.
Significant policies of the City are described below.

Financial Reporting Entity

Generally accepted accounting principles require that financial statements present the City
(the primary government) and its component units. Component units are organizations for
which the City is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the natre and
significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the
City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The accompanying general
purpose financial statements comply with the provisions of the GASB Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, in that the financial statements include all organizations,
activities, functions and component units for which the City (the primary government) is
financially accountable. In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting
purposes, management has considered all potential component units. Based on these
criteria, the following blended component unit is included in the accompanying financial
statements. Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in substance,
part of the City’s operations.

The City Street Improvement Economic Development Corporation (EDC) is governed by a
seven-member board appointed by the City Council. Although it is legally separate from
the City, the EDC is reporied as if it were part of the primary government because its sole
purpose is to operate, maintain, and finance the costs of the City’s street improvements
using taxes collected under Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 1979.
Separate financial statements are not available.
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City of Bedford, Texas

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary
government. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
primarily rely on fees and charges for support.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between expenses,
both direct and indirect, and program revenues for each segment of the business-type
activities of the City and for each governmental program. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a service, program or department and are therefore clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues.
The primary effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. However, interfund service provided and used is not eliminated in
the process of consolidation on the government-wide statement of activities.

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of
governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather than
reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column, Nonmajor
funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

* General Fund - is the City’s primary operating fund of the City. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

® Debt Service Fund — is used to account for the accumulation of resources for
the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

¢ Street Bond Capital Projects Fund — is used to account for construction of
improvements to streets, street related drainage and sidewalks.

» Economic Development 4B Fund — is used to account for revenues and
expenses associated with the operation, maintenance and financing of the costs of
the City’s street improvements. Primary revenue source is sales taxes, and a
small amount of interest,
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City of Bedford, Texas

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

All proprietary funds account for operations that are primarily financed by user charges.
The City reports the following proprietary funds:

¢ Water and Sewer Fund — accounts for providing water and sewer services to
residential and commercial users in the City.

e Stormwater Utility Fund — accounts for the storm drainage runoff service
provided to the residential and commercial users of the City.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The
basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the
financial statements.

The government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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City of Bedford, Texas

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Licenses and permits, charges for services (except
for sanitation services), fines and forfeits and rents and concessions are recorded as
revenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
received. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met,
including any time requirements and the amount is received during the period or within the
availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). Expenditure-
driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received
during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days
of year-end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash is received by the City.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers cash and cash equivalents
to be all unrestricted cash and certificates of deposit with an original maturity date of three
months or less.

Investments

Investments maturing within one year of date of purchase are reported at cost or amortized
cost; all other investments are reported at fair value except for positions in investment
pools. In accordance with state law, these pools operate in conformity with all of the
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) Rule 2a7 as
promulgated under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. Accordingly, the
pools qualify as a 2a7-like pool and are reported at the net asset value per share (which
approximates fair value) even though they are calculated using the amortized cost method.
The pools are subject to regulatory oversight by the State Comptroller of Public Accounts
although it is not registered with the SEC,
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from citizens for various services
provided by the City as well as property taxes and sales taxes receivable. Management
evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts based on a review of
individual accounts. The primary faciors considered in determining the amount of the
allowance are collection history, the aging of the accounts and other specific information
known to management that may affect collectibility.

Inventories

Inventories in the general and proprietary fund types are carried at cost (first-in, first-out
method). The City uses the consumption method for determining cost; inventories are
recognized as expenditures when consumed.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure such as roads,
bridges, drainage systems and lighting systems, are reported at historical cost. Contributed
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value as of the date received. Depreciation is
recorded on each class of depreciable property utilizing the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives of major categories of property

arc:
Buildings 20— 40 years
Infrastructure 20 — 30 years
Water and sewer system 50 years
Improvements 10 — 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 — 10 years

Interest expense is capitalized on contracts with durations over one-year in the proprietary
funds. The minimum capitalization threshold is any item with a total cost greater than
$5,000 and a useful life greater than one-year.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a

future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until
then.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a

future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
then,
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Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. There is no Liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City
does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service from the
City.

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the
governmental fund that will pay only if the compensated absences have matured with
unused reimbursable leave outstanding following an employee’s resignation or retirement.
Vested or accumulated vacation leave within proprietary funds is recorded as an expense
and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets and service
debt. There is no interest charged between funds for these advances.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows and liabilities
and deferred inflows. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for
the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets and adding back unspent
proceeds. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments,
The net position of the Tourism Development Fund and the Economic Development 4B
Fund are restricted by enabling legislation as indicated on the statement of net position.

The City’s policy is to use restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.
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Fund Balance Classification

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications
that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to
honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective
governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund
financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Nonspendable items are not
expected to be converted to cash or are not expected to be converted to cash
within the next year.

Restricted — This classification includes amounts for which constraints have
been placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments,
or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — This classification includes amounts that can be used only for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by ordinance of the City
Council, the City’s highest level of decision making authority. These amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Council removes or changes
the specified use by taking the same type of action that was employed when the
funds were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual
obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned — This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the
City’s intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor
committed. This intent can be expressed by the City Council.

Unassigned — This classification includes the residual fund balance for the
General Fund. The unassigned classification also includes negative residual
fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by
offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the City considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts
to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds and finally
unassigned funds.
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Prior Year Comparative Information

The basic financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the City’s financial statements as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2012, from which the summarized information was derived. The City’s
2012 net position has not been restated for the effects of adopting GASB No. 65.

New Pronouncementis

During the current year ending September 30, 2013, the City has implemented GASB
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides financial reporting
guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. This
statement introduces and defines those elements as a consumption of net assets by the
government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets
by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period. This statement amends
the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Local Governments, and other
pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by
renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets.

Additionally, the City has implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This statement redefines certain financial elements
previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources. In addition, the statement changes the method of reporting debt issuance costs.
Prior to implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, the City reported debt issuance costs,
including costs related to bond insurance, as deferred debt expense which was capitalized
and amortized over the life of the debt. Deferred debt expense was reported as an asset on
the statement of net position. In GASB Statement No. 65, bond issuance costs, excluding
bond insurance costs, which should never be treated as a prepaid asset, are to be
recognized in the period of the debt issue. Implementation of GASB Statement No. 65
resulted in a restatement of previously reported net position.

During the year ending September 30, 2015, the City will implement GASB Statements
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27. This statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing
liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources, and
expense/expenditures. The effects of implementing this statement is unknown, but is
expected to have a material effect on net position.
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Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 financial statements to conform to the
2013 financial statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on change in
net position/fund balance.

Note 2: Deposits and Investments

The deposit and investment policies of the City are governed by State Statutes and the
adopted City Investment Policy. City policies governing bank deposits require
depositories to be FDIC-insured institutions, and depositories must fully collateralize all
deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits.

Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency
securities, repurchase agreements and municipal pools.

The City utilizes a pooled investment concept for all its funds to maximize its investment
program. Investment income from this internal pooling is allocated to the respective funds
based upon the sources of funds invested.

During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City invested in TexCLASS, TexStar,
Texas DAILY and Lone Star, which are investment pools authorized by the Texas
Legislature. The Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company is the trustee and is a
limited purpose trust company authorized pursuant to Texas Government Code. The pools
operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. The pools use amortized cost rather than market value to report net assets to
compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the position in the pools is the same
as the value of the pools shares.

Investments at year-end are shown below:

Weighted-

Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity
TexCLASS § 201,939 1 day
TexStar 7,026,535 1 day
Texas DAILY 1,185,989 1 day
Lone Star investment public pool 83,739 1 day
Money market funds 630,000 1 day

Total $ 9,128,202
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The City’s investments at September 30, 2013, are held by the following investment pools:

Standard &
Poor's Credit
Investment Type Ratlng
TexCLASS AAAmM
TexStar AAAm
Texas DAILY AAAmM
Lone Star investment public pool AAAmM

 Interest Rate Risk — In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its
exposure to declines in fair market values by investing operating funds primarily in
short-term securities, money market mutual funds or similar investment pools.
Furthermore, unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not directly invest in
securities maturing more than three years from the date of purchase.

® Credit Risk — It is the City’s policy to follow statutes, which authorize the City to
invest in obligations of the U. S. Treasury agencies and instrumentalities, obligations
of the state of Texas and related agencies, obligations of states, agencies, counties,
cities and other political subdivisions of any state rated “A” or above by Standard &
Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s, repurchase agreements and designated investment
pools. The City’s assets in investment pools meet this requirement as noted above.

¢ Custodial Credit Risk — Investments — In accordance with its investment policy, the
City minimizes custodial credit risk by limiting investments to the safest types of
investment vehicles, prequalifying the financial institutions, brokers/dealers,
intermediaries and advisors with which the City will do business and diversifying the
investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual investments will be
minimized. Currently, all investments are registered in the City’s name.

* Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits — The City’s deposits do not have any exposure to
credit risk because all deposits in financial institutions are fully collateralized by U.S.
government obligations or obligations of the state of Texas and its agencies that have a
value of not less than the principal amount of the deposits. The collateral is held bya
third party custodial bank as the City’s agent.

* Concentration of Credit Risk — The City limits investments to avoid concentration in
securities from a specific issuer or business sector (where appropriate). As noted
above, the City’s investments are distributed into a variety of allowable investment
vehicles. Management does not believe there is a significant risk of loss due to the
credit rating and nature of the investments.
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Summary of Deposit and Investment Balances

Following is a reconciliation of the City’s deposit and investment balances as of September

30, 13:
Totals
Investments b 9,128,202
Deposits and cash on hand 17,133.208
$ 26,261,410
Government-wide
Statement of
Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,104,917
Investments 5,132,091
Restricted Assets:
Investments 4,024,402

$ 26,261,410

Note 3: Receivables

Receivables as of September 30, 2013, for the City”s individual major funds and nonmajor
funds, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Gi | Funds: Entarpriss Funds
Debt Streat Foonomic Nonmajor Water Btormwater
Genaral Servica Bond Develop Govar tal and Sewer Litility Total
Receivables

Taxes

Delinquert property taxes 3 204,633 3 125,217 ¥ E ¥ 3 s 8 - 1 . k) 329,850

Sales raxes 1,245,472 - 415,157 - % - 1,660,629

Franchise 795,746 - - - - - 795,746

Other 45,080 - - - . - 45,080
Accounts 420,815 - - 294 43,612 3,423,733 195,995 4,084, 449
Orher 116916 - 345792 - 496 - - 463,204
Gross receivables 2,828,562 125,217 345,792 415,451 44,168 3,423,733 195,985 7,378,958
Less allowance for uncollectibles (35,559) {23,794) - - - {383,219% - {449,572

Net total receivables $ 2,795,103 5 103,423 5 345,752 £ 415,451 -3 44,108 $ 3040514 ¥ 195,995 5 65,938,386

Governmental funds report deferred outflows in connection with receivables for revenue
that is not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred outflows reported
in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable

Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 157,924
Delinquent property taxes receivable (Debt Service Fund) 96,792
Delinquent ambulance receivable (General Fund) 234,503
Street and drainage assessments receivable (Street Bond) 345,978

Total deferred outflows for governmental funds $ 835,197

Note 4: Property Tax

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The City’s
property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1
for all real property and personal business property located in the City. The assessed value
upon which the fiscal 2013 levy was based was $2,961,094,384. The appraisal function is
performed by the Tarrant County Appraisal District,

General property taxes are limited by the Texas Constitution to $2.50 per $100 of assessed
valuation and by Home Rule Charter to $1.50 per $100 of assessed valuation for general
governmental services and payment of principal and interest on long-term debt. The
combined tax rate to finance general governmental service and debt service for the year
ended September 30, 2013, was $.499115 per $100 of assessed valuation.

Taxes are due by January 31 following the levy date. Current tax collection for the year
ended September 30, 2013, was 99% of the tax levy.

Uncollected property taxes levied for the current fiscal year are recognized as receivables,
and are deemed collectible in full.
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Note 5: Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are payments between funds that are designed to cover various
operating and overhead expenses and to allocate charges for services performed by one
fund on behalf of another fund.

Individual fund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2013, were:

Transfer In
Debt Water
General Service and Sewer Total
Transfers out
Economic Development 4B $ - $ 1,331,795 b3 56,621 $ 1,388,416
Nonmajor governmental 80,000 . 13,849 93,849
‘Water and sewer 2,205,526 - - 2,205,526
Stormwater utility 279,395 - 167,000 446,393
Total transfers out $ 2,564,921 $ 1,331,795 § 237,470 $  4.134,186

Note 6: Interfund Assets/Liabilities

Interfund balances reflect payments made by one fund on behalf of another fund for which
cash settlement has not been made as of the end of the accounting period. Amounts due to
and from other funds will be settled within the next accounting period. Management has no
current intention of repaying the advance to the Stormwater Utility Fund in the immediate
future.

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 2013, were:

Advances
Advances to from Other
Other Funds Funds
Advances
General Fund $ 300,000 $ -
Stormwater Utility Fund - 300,000

3 300,000 $ 300,000

The advances between the General Fund and Stormwater Utility Fund are the result of the
General Fund lending funds to cover start-up operating costs to the Stormwater Utility
Fund.
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Note 7: Capital Assets
The following tables summarize changes in capital assets during the year ended September
30, 2013:
Beginning Ending
Balance Addltfons Retirements Reolassifications Balancs
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 7,511,343 3 - 3 (250,000) $ - ¥ 7,261,343
Construction in progress 349,782 _253.27% - - 603,061
Total assets not being depreciated 7,861,125 253,279 {250.000) - 7,864,404
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 25,255,790 - - 25,255,790
Equipment 25,667,787 751318 - 26,419,105
Improvemenis other than buildings 122 852,325 103,862 - - 122,956,187
Total capital assets being depreciated 173,775,902 855,180 - - 174,631,082
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (9,749,873) (827,947 - (10,577,820)
Equipment (21,259,805) {1,221,304) - . (22,481,109)
Tmprovement other than buildings (95,268,030 (5,797.454) - . (101,065,484
Total accumulated depraciation (126,277 708) (7.846.705) - - (134,124 413)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 47,498,194 (6,991,525) - - 40,506,669
Governmental activities capital assets, net § 55,358.319 H sﬁﬂSS&l $ (250000) - $ - 3 4813‘?11073
Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land M 102,755 $ - $ {2,500} $ - $ 100,255
Construction in progress 3,164,263 2477.672 - {178.010) 5,463,925
Total assets not being depreciated 3,267,018 2477672 (2,500) {178,010) 5,564,180
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 518,600 - - - 518,600
Equipment 3,203.710 102,861 - 3,306,571
Utility distributions 59,851,263 1432624 - 178,010 61,461,897
Total capital assets being degreciated 63,573,573 1,535,485 - 178,010 65,287 068
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (518,600) : - (518.600)
Equipment (2,941,231) (123,912) - (3,065,143)
Uhility distributions (27,238,858) {1,447 440} - - {28,686,298)
Total accumulated depreciation {30.698,689) (1,571,352) - - !32@70.041!
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 32,874 884 {35,867) - 178,010 33,017,027
Business-type activities capital assets, net ) 36i141!902 $ 2441805 § !%500! $ - $ 38581207
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities

General government $ 162,421
Community services 63,597
Public services 1,028,200
Public safety 5,626,664
Leisure services 951,544
Administrative services 14,279

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities S 7.846.705

Business-type Activities

Water and sewer S 1,309,435
Stormwater collection and disposal 261,917
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities § 1,571,352

Note 8: Long-term Liabilities

The following is a summary of the long-term liabilities of the City for the year ended

September 30, 2013:
Beginning Ending Amounts Due
Balance Additions Retirements Balance Within One-Year
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 41,023,379 $ 5,375,000 $ (8,398,379) $ 37,800,000 $ 5,185,000
Premium on debt 1,265,159 75,085 (149,739) 1,190,505 153,315
Deferred loss on refunding (61,900} (62,267 6,190 (117,977) (9,155)
Capital lease 339,011 228,370 (88,509) 478,872 83,055
Compensated absences 2,319,658 1,692,969 (1,483,273) 2,529,354 843,118
Other post-employment benefits 177,466 - 19,632 197,098 -
Governmental activities long-term liabilities $ 45,062,773 $ 7,309,157 $ (10,294,078) § 42,077,852 $ 6,255,333
Business-type Activities
Certificates of obligation $ 14,341.621 $ 4,900,000 ) (966,621) $ 18,275,000 $ 940,000
Premiums on debt 132,193 20,803 (16,981) 136,015 11,993
Deferred loss on refunding (52,7129) - 5,273 (47,456) (5,273)
Compensated absences 117,092 156,918 (130,427) 143,583 47,861
Other post-employment benefits 108,769 - 12,033 120,802 .
Business-type activities long-term liabilities S 14,646,946 $ 5,077,721 $  (1,096,723) $ 18,627,944 $ 994,581
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Governmental long-term debt consists of the following individual issues at September 30,

2013:
Criginal Interest Debt
Series Issue Rate OuistandinL
General Obligation Bonds
Series 2004 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 12,350,000 2.4%—5.0% $ 3,115,000
Series 2005 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 28,600,000 3.25%-5.0% 16,205,000
Series 2007 General Obligation Bonds 4,000,000 3.875%-5.0% 3,130,000
Series 2010 General Obligation Bonds 4,885,000 2.0%—-5.0% 4,535,000
Series 2011 General Obligation Refunding and
Improvement Bonds 8,185,000 2.0%—-4375% 3,320,000
Series 2011 General Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation 6,590,000 2.0% —4.375% 2,120,000
Series 2013 General Obligation Refunding and
Improvement Bonds 5,375,000 2.0%-4.0% 5,375,000
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 37,800,000

Business-type long-term debt consists of the following individual issues at September 30,

2013:
Originai Interest Debt
Series Issue Rate Outstanding_
Certificates of Obligation
Series 2007 Certificates of Obligation $ 4,975,000 3.875%—4.25% $ 3,895,000
Series 2010 Certificates of Obligation 2,035,000 3.0%—-4.125% 1,890,000
Series 2011 Certificates of Obligation
Refunding and Improvement Bonds 8,185,000 2.0%—4.375% 3,945,000
Series 2011 Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation 6,590,000 2.0%-4.375% 3,845,000
Series 2012 Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation 630,000 0.09% - 1.4% 600,000
Series 2012 Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation 4,270,000 1.0%—2.75% 4,100,000
Total Certificates of Obligation $ 18,275,000
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The annual debt service requirement to amortize the bonds, certificates of obligation, and
capital lease obligations outstanding at September 30, 2013, follows:

Governmental Activities:

General
Year Ending Obligation
September 30, Bonds Capital Lease Interest Total
2014 $ 5,185,000 3 83,055 $ 1,436,622 § 6,704,677
2015 5,375,000 85,675 1,204,041 6,664,716
2016 5,285,000 88,767 970,605 6,344,372
2017 5,185,000 91,973 740,268 6,017,241
2018 3,970,000 95,297 538,297 4,603,594
2019 — 2023 7,415,000 34,105 1,602,538 9,051,643
2024 - 2028 3,805,000 . 677,352 4,482,352
2029 —-2033 1,580,000 - 107,340 1,687,340
$ 37,800,000 3 478,872 s 7,277,063 § 45,555,935
Business-type Activities:
Year Ending Gertificate of
September 30, Obligations Interest Total
2014 $ 940,000 $ 568,651 $ 1,508,651
2015 955,000 546,313 1,501,313
2016 990,000 523,076 1,513,076
2017 1,020,000 496,438 1,516,488
2018 1,065,000 466,785 1,531,785
2019 - 2023 5,035,000 1,889,619 6,924,619
2024 - 2028 5,575,000 944,458 6,519,458
2029 —2033 2,695,000 153,950 2,848,950

$ 18,275,000 $ 5,589,340 $ 23,864,340

Current Refunding and New Bond Issuance

In October 2012 the City issued $4,900,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation Bonds, Series 2012 (Certificates), with interest rates ranging from 1.00% to
2.25%. The proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for the purpose of
paying various public improvements. The Certificates were issued at a premium of
£20,803 and incurred issuance cost of $63,655. The proceeds are kept in the Water and
Sewer Funds.
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Current Refunding and New Bond Issuance

In September 2013 the City issued $5,375,000 General Obligation Refunding and
Improvement Bonds, Series 2013 (Bonds), with interest rates from 2.50% to 4.00%. The
Bonds were issued at a premium of $75,250 and incurred issuance costs of $72,818.
$1,695,000 of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds will be used for the purpose of street
improvements. The remaining $3,682,432 of the proceeds was used to current refund a
portion of the City’s outstanding indebtedness for the purpose of achieving debt service
savings. The refunding portion of the Bonds refunded $3,620,000 of outstanding debt. As
a result of the current refunding, the City decreased total debt service requirements by
$329,878, which resulted in an accounting loss of $62,267 and an economic gain of
$281,729, or an 8.084% savings on the refunded bonds.

The General Fund and Tourism Fund have been used to liquidate the governmental fund
liability for compensated absences. This year, the government entered into a lease
agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of a self-contained breathing apparatus
valued at $228,370 of which $228,370 was financed. The equipment has a seven-year
estimated useful life. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting
purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of future minimum lease
payments as of the inception date.

Note 9: Retirement Plan
Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-
traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the statewide Texas Municipal
Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement
system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options
available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report
also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and
assumptions used by TMRS. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P. O. Box
149153, Austin, Texas 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is
available on TMRS’ website at www.TMRS.com.
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The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options
available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as

follows:
December 31,
2013 2012

Deposit rate 5.0% 5.0%
Matching ratio (City to employee) 2-1 2-1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility

{(expressed as age/years of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 0% 0%
Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI

Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each City is determined
annually by the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate
consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate,
which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year-to-year. The normal cost
contribution rate finances the portion of an active member’s projected benefit allocated
annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial
liability (asset) over the applicable period for that city. Both the normal cost and prior
service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating
benefits, such as updated service credits and annuity increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the
employees and the City make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its
contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the
actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate
goes into effect.

Annual Pension Cost

Contributions by the City were $938,027 or 4.88% of the covered payroll of $19,221,865
as required by the actuarial valuation.
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In June 2011, SB 350 was enacted by the Texas Legislature, resulting in a restructure of
the TMRS funds. This legislation provided for the actuarial valuation to be completed, as
if restructuring had occurred on December 31, 2010. In addition, the actuarial assumptions
were updated for the new fund structure, based on an actuarial experience study that was
adopted by the TMRS Board at their May 2011 meeting (the review compared actual to
expected experience for the four-year period of January 1, 2006 through December 31,
2009). For a complete description of the combined impact of the legislation and new
actuarial assumptions, inciuding the effects on TMRS city rates and funding ratios, please
see the December 31, 2012, TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

Actuarial valuations are based on long-term assumptions, and actual results in a specific
year can, and almost certainly will, differ as actual experience deviates from the
assumptions. The following table provides a detailed breakdown of changes in the
retirement portion of the City of Bedford’s contribution rate. This analysis reconciles the
change in the retirement portion the City’s contribution from 2013 to 2014, but will not
reflect any change in the cost of the supplemental death benefit. The City of Bedford does

not participate in that benefit.
Change in Full Retirement Rate

Full rate from December 31, 2011 valvation (PY 2013 rate) 4.38%
Benefit changes 0.00%
Return on actuarial value of assets (0.01)
Contribution lag 0.03
Payroll growth 0.11
Normal cost 0.38
Liability growth (0.08)

Total change 0.43%

Full rate from December 31, 2012 valuation (PY 2014 rate) 531%
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Annual City pension cost and related information for the last three years is as follows:
December 31,
2010 - Prior to 2010
2012 2011 Restructuring Restructured
Actuarial Information
Actuarial cost method Project Unit Project Unit Project Unit Project Unit
Credit Credit Credit Credit
Amortization method Level percent Level percent Level percent Level percent
of payroll of payroll of payroll of payroll
GASB 25 equivalent single 22.1 years-closed 23.] years-closed 24 years-closed 24.1 years-closed
amortization period period period period period
Amortization period for new
gains/losses 25 years 25 vears 25 vears 25 years
Asset valuation method 10-year 10-year 10-year 10-year
smoothed market smoothed market smoothed market smoothed marker
Actuarial Assumptions
Invesunent rate of return 7.0% 7.0% 7.5% 7.0%
Varies by age Varies by age Varies by age Varies by age
Projected salary increases and services and services and services and services
Inflation 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
Cost of living adjustment 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
City specific assumptions
Payroll growth assumption 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Schedule of Funding Information
Actuarial valuation date 12/31/2012 12/31:2011 12:31/2010 12/31/2010
Acwarial value of assets $ 6,694,752 $ 4,713,345 § 2378268 $ 2,424,829
Actuarial accrued liability $ 17,582,830 $ 15,748,320 $ 11,372,548 $ 13,872,080
Unfunded {overfund) Acruarial
Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 10,888,078 $ 11,034,975 $ 8994280 $  11,447251
Funded ratio 38% 30% 21% 17%
Annual covered payroll $ 18,597,171 $ 18,649,701 $ 18,787,516 S 18,787,516
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 59% 59% 48% 61%
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The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

The City’s net pension obligation (NPO) for TMRS at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

is calculated as follows:
December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Actuarial Valuation Date
NPO, beginning of year 3 - 3 - $ -
Annual required contribution (ARC) 938,027 844,310 1,262,583
Contributions made 938,027 844,310 1,262,583
NPO, end of year $ - $ - $ .

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive
plan in effect at the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent
with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets.

Note 10: Post-employment Health Care Plan
Plan Description and Funding Policy

Starting January 1, 2010, the City began requiring participants who are active employees
with less than 20 years of service or 60 years or more of age with less than 5 years of
service to contribute an age-based full-cost premium if they choose to remain on the City’s
health care plan upon retirement. In return, the City will make scheduled annual
contributions into a retiree health savings plan in the name of each eligible employee who
has 10 years of service or more. Employees are 50% vested at 20 years of service and
100% vested at 30 years of service.

Under provisions of GASB Statement 45, employees who will be required to contribute the
full age-based cost of coverage for the City’s health plan do not receive another post-
employment benefit.
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Retiring employees will pay either age-based or blended premiums depending on their
status as “grandfathered” or “non-grandfathered.” Blended premiums blend the cost of
providing health coverage to both active employees and retirees, and will be based on the
total employer/employee premium for the health plan as a whole, and will be determined
annually during the budget process.

Grandfathered Employees

As of January 1, 2010, employees that have 20 years of continuous service with the City or
employees having 5 years of continuous service and have reached the age of 60 will be
cligible to purchase City health benefits at blended rates upon the date of their retirement if
they are less than age 65. Employees who meet the requirements to stay on the plan will
continue to pay both employee and employer required contributions for the retiree health
plan chosen for themselves and eligible dependents. Employer and employee required
contributions are determined annually by plan as part of the City’s annual budget. If the
spouse or eligible dependents are on the plan at the time of the employee’s retirement, they
can remain on the plan, until which time they are no longer eligible.

Non-Grandfathered Employees

Employees who do not meet the eligibility requirements to stay on the plan will pay age-
based premiums for the retiree health plan chosen for themselves and eligible dependents.
These employees will participate in the City’s retiree health savings plan,

Policy Information

Retiree Health Plan Benefit Eligibility

To be eligible for retiree health benefits employees must meet the following criteria:

s Any employee who is covered under the City’s health plan at the effective date of
(the employee’s) retirement, who is less than age 65, and who meets the “retiree”
definition (as described below) may elect to continue health insurance coverage
under the plan.

o Employees who are eligible and elect to stay on the plan will be required to begin
paying monthly premiums immediately upon retirement.

» Employees eligible for retiree health insurance may also continue coverage for any
dependents following the employee’s retirement, provided the dependents were
covered under the employee’s health insurance as of the effective date of the
employee’s retirement and the appropriate enrollment forms are completed within
30 days of retirement. Anyone electing this coverage must meet all of the
eligibility rules of the plan.
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NOTE: When a covered retiree’s spouse is employed at the time the City of Bedford
employee retires, an exception to this policy may be made. The spouse may elect coverage
under the City’s health plan if the spouse’s employment ends or the spouse’s employer
discontinues coverage.

* Dependents who are covered under the retiree’s health insurance at the time of the
retiree’s death may continue coverage as follows: () the spouse may continue
coverage following the death of the retiree until such time as the spouse remarries,
dies or reaches age 65, (b) any other eligible dependent(s), as defined by the City’s
self-funded plan, may continue to be covered under retiree health insurance as long
as all eligibility requirements of the City’s plan are met.

Retiree Health Plan Benefit Coverage

Retirees are able to maintain retiree coverage through the City until they reach age 65 (see
section below). Retirees cannot drop the City’s plan and re-elect retiree benefits at a later
date unless they become re-employed by the City. If this is the case, they must re-enroll
into the City’s retiree insurance program within 30 days of the termination from the City’s
re-employment.

® Retirees are able to choose from and elect the same plans offered to active
employees during open enrollment each year until they reach age 65.

* Retirees who decide to elect the City’s retiree health benefits will pay either age
based on blended premiums depending on their status as “grandfathered” or “non-
grandfathered.”

* Blended premiums blend the cost of providing health coverage to both active
employees and retirees, will be based on the total employer/employee premium for
the health plan as a whole, and will be determined annually during the budget
process.

Retirees Age 65 or Older

Effective January 1, 2010, retirees who are Medicare eligible or age 65 or older will have
access to a more cost effective and comparable Medicare Supplement or Medicare
Advantage Plan and will no longer have access to the City’s health plan. Retirees will
continue to have access to the City’s dental plan.

* Retirees who choose to obtain coverage elsewhere may later elect one of the City’s
Medicare Supplement or Medicare Advantage plans when they become eligible for
Medicare.
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Retirees’ dependents who are under 65 years of age will be able to maintain
coverage through the City’s health plan. Once a dependent reaches age 65, the
dependent will no longer be able to access the City’s health plan, but will be able
to select either the Medicare Supplement or Medicare Advantage Plan which is
less expensive than the current retiree premiums and is comparable to or offers a
richer benefit than the City’s health plan.

If the employee is 65 years of age or older, but is not Medicare eligible, the City
will evaluate the cost of Medicare Part A premiums each year and determine
whether the City will reimburse the employee for the purchase of Medicare Part A
(on behalf of the retiree or whether to allow the retiree to pay the premium to stay on
the City’s health plan). Retirees in this situation will be notified of this
determination at the end of each year for the following plan year.

Applicability

This policy applies to all regular full-time employees.

Definitions

Retiree — is defined as an employee who has effected retirement with the City and is
eligible to retire according to the City’s pension plan guidelines.

Policy Authority

The City Council authorizes this policy. The City’s management team and Human
Resources are responsible for interpreting and enforcing this policy.

Implementation Procedures

Employees eligible for retiree health insurance will be given written notification from
Human Resources explaining their eligibility to clect retiree health insurance, the
applicable premium rates for the type of coverage(s) they are eligible to continue, and the
procedures the employee must follow in order to elect retiree health insurance. They will
also be given an election form on which to make their health insurance elections.

Employees eligible for retiree health insurance must complete the retiree health insurance
election form and remit the appropriate premium payment as outlined in the retiree medical
information packet within 30 days following the effective date of the employee’s
retirement; otherwise, the retiree will automatically forfeit his/her right to continue health
insurance under this policy, except as provided by federal law.
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Retirees who are not age 65 and who are eligible for and elect retiree coverage through the
City will receive notification from the City’s Human Resources Department of the
discontinuation of their retiree coverage along with enrollment information for the
Medicare Supplement and Medicare Advantage plans upon turning age 65.

Termination of Retiree Health Plan Coverage

Retiree health insurance will automatically terminate for the retiree and/or covered
dependents upon the earliest of the following occurrences:

The City ceases to provide group health insurance.

Retiree/retiree’s dependent(s) fail to remit the monthly premium payment to the
City’s Human Resources Department by the last day of each month,

The retiree retums to active employment status with the City and becomes covered
under a City sponsored health plan.

Dependent(s) of the retiree cease to meet the eligibility requirements of the City’s
medical plan.

Note 11: Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description

The City provides post-employment medical care (OPEB) for employees through a single-
employer defined benefit medical plan. The plan provides medical benefits for eligible
retirces, their spouses and dependents through the City’s group health insurance plans,
which cover both active and retired members. The benefit levels and contribution rates are
approved annuaily by the City management and the City Council as part of the budget
process. Since an irrevocable trust has not been established, the plan is not accounted for
as a trust fund. The plan does not issue a separate financial report.

Benefits Provided

The City provides post-employment medical and dental care benefits to its retirees.
Retirees who elect COBRA cannot later elect retiree coverage. To be eligible for coverage
an employee must qualify under all three of the following:

The retiree must have been covered for medical benefits under the City health plan as
an employee immediately prior to termination of employment.

Apply for pension benefits from TMRS in accordance with their requirements and
deadlines, but in no event later than 90 days from termination of employment and

Enroll for retiree health coverage within 30 days of the date of termination.
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Annual Funding Policy

The plan’s premium rates are determined annually by City management and approved by
the City Council as part of the annual budget. Members receiving PPO medical benefits
contribute 50% — 80% per month for retiree-only coverage, 50% — 80% per month for
retiree and spouse and 50% — 80% per month for retiree and family.

Annual OPEB Costs

The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required
contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period pot to exceed 30 years. The
City’s annual OPEB cost for the past three years and the related information is listed

below:
September 30,
2013 2012 2011

Annual required contribution $ 97,796 $ 97,796 $ 181,392
Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 12,881 10,989 6,960
Adjustment to annual required contribution (18,882) (16,109) {6.448)
Annual OPEB cost 91,795 92,676 181,904
Contributions made (60,130) (50,649) (92,358)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 31,665 42,027 89,546
Net obligation, beginning of year 286,235 244,208 154,662
Net obligation, end of year $ 317,900 $ 286,235 5 244,208
Percentage of OPEB costs contributed 19% 18% 38%

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for the current year are calculated using a 4.5% discount rate,
and the Projected Unit Credit Cost method.

49



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

City of Bedford, Texas

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of actuarial measurement date of December 31, 2011, was

as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability $ 1,138,070
Actuarial value of plan assets 27,970
Unfunded actnarial accrued liability 5 1!1 10i100
Funded ratio 2.46%
Covered payroll $ 3,596,383
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability

as a percentage of covered payroll 30.9%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2011, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit Cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5% investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses) and an annual health care cost trend rate of 9.0% initially,
reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.5% after a number of years. Both rates
include a 3.0% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of the plan’s assets was set equal
to the reported market value of assets. The assets are allocated among the divisions based
on liabilities valued at 4.5%. The City’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining
amortization period at December 31, 2011, was 25 years.
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Note 12: Commitments and Contingencies
Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The City participates in the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (the
Risk Pool) to provide insurance for workers’ compensation benefits, liability and property
coverage.

At September 30, 2013, the Risk Pool was self-sustaining based on premiums charged, so
that total contributions plus compounded earnings on these contributions will be sufficient
to satisfy claims and liabilities and other expenses. Premiums are assessed based on the
rates set by the Texas State Board of Insurance and may be adjusted, on an annual basis, by
the Risk Pool’s Board of Trustees for each participating political subdivision’s experience.
The City is not liable for payments beyond the annual contributions.

The Risk Poo! has purchased stop-loss coverage to protect the assets of the pool from
catastrophic losses. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years, and there have been no significant reductions
in insurance coverage during the current year.

Trinity River Authority of Texas

In 1972, the City entered into a contract with the Trinity River Authority (TRA) for the
purchase of water. The contract is in effect for a period of 35 years from the date the TRA
began receiving water from the Tarrant Water District (which was in 1974) and shall
continue in effect until all bonds, including refunding bonds, have been paid.

Under the terms of the contract, the City is obligated to pay its proportional share of
operating and maintenance expenses and debt service charges by the TRA based on the
ratio of estimated water usage for the ensuing year to the total estimated water usage.
Total purchases during fiscal year 2013 were approximately $6,989,200.

In 1973, the City entered into a 50-year contract with the TRA for the transportation,
treatment, and disposal of sanitary sewage actually discharged and to share in the cost of
operation and maintenance of the system. Total payments of approximately $3,244,883
were made in fiscal year 2013. Additionally, $322,767 was spent with the City of Hurst
for the transportation, treatment and disposal of sanitary sewage as well.
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Litigation
Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of the City’s legal
counsel and management, the potential loss on all claims after insurance will not be
significant to the City’s financial statements.

State and Federal Programs

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
In the opinion of management of the City, disallowed costs, if any, should not be material.

Note 13: Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 21, 2014, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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City of Bedford, Texas
Schedule of Funding Progress
September 30, 2013
UAAL as a
Actuarial Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Accrual Funded AAL of Covered
Acutarial Value of Liability Ratlo (UAAL) Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets (AAL) [3] 4] Payroll [6]
Date Plan ] i2] (12} [2]-[1] [5] [41/15]
12/31/2009 TMRS $ 320,305 $ 8,653,917 31.7% $ 8,333,112 $ 2,866,929 290.7%
12/31/2010 TMRS * 2,378,268 11,372,548 20.9% 8,994,280 18,787,516 47.9%
12/31/2010 TMRS ** 2,424,829 13,872,080 17.5% 11,447,251 18,787,516 60.9%
12/31/2011 TMRS 4,713,345 15,748,320 28.9% 11,034,975 18,649,701 59.2%
12/31/2012 TMRS 6,694,752 17,582,830 38.1% 10,888,078 18,597,171 58.5%
11/30/2010 OPEB . 2,467,613 0.0% 2,467,613 16,465,708 15%
12/31/2011 OPEB 27,970 1,138,070 2.5% 1,110,100 3,596,883 31%

* Actuarial valuation performed under original fund structure
** Actuarial valuation performed under the new fund structure

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive
plan in effect at the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent
with the perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets.

In June 2011, SB 350 was enacted by the Texas Legislature, resulting in a restructure of
the TMRS funds. This legislation provided for the actuarial valuation to be completed as if
restructuring had occurred on December 31, 2010. In addition, the actuarial assumptions
were updated for the new fund structure, based on an actuarial experience study that was
adopted by the TMRS Board at their May 2011 meeting (the review compared actual to
expected experience for the four-year period of January 1, 2006 through December 31,
2009). For a complete description of the combined impact of the legislation and new
actuarial assumptions, including the effects of TMRS city rates and funding ratios, please
see the December 31, 2010, TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

Under the reporting parameters, the City’s retiree health care plan is 2.46% funded with an
estimated actuarial accrued liability exceeding actuarial assets by $1,110,100 at December
31, 2011. As of the most recent valuation, the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability to annual covered payroll is 30.9%.
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The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the
City’s retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a
set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected
unit credit method then provides for a systematic recognition of the cost of these
anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefits being

earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued
liability.
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COMMUNIQUE

Revenue
Taxes, penalty and interest
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Support from other governmental entities
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
City council
City manager
City secretary
Information systems
Human resources

Total general government

Community services
Economic development
Planning and zoning
Inspections

Total community services

Public services
Facilities maintenance
Maintenance services
Streets

Total public services

Administrative services
Finance
Nondepartmental
Municipal court
Teen court

Total administrative services

AGENDA

City of Bedford, Texas
Budgetary Comparison Schedule General Fund
September 30, 2013
Variance with
Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)
$ 19,396,146 $ 19,396,146 $ 19,890,570 8 494,424
751,203 751,203 456,761 (294,442)
2,026,442 2,026,442 2,731,965 705,523
1,455,000 1,455,000 1,239,093 (215,907)
529,420 520,420 538,583 9,163
17,900 17,900 9,437 (8,463)
166,000 166,000 505,907 339,907
24,342,111 24,342,111 25,372,316 1,030,205
105,770 105,770 101,282 4,488
410,880 410,880 413,527 (2,647)
222,755 222,755 210,745 12,010
664,171 664,171 579,850 84,321
300,479 300,479 318,710 {18,231)
1,704,055 1,704,055 1,624.114 79,941
161,860 161,860 245,656 (83,796}
353,381 353,381 364,164 (10,783)
700,774 700,774 462,772 238,002
1,216,015 1,216,015 1,072,592 143,423
581,149 581,149 416,953 164,196
259,240 259,240 252,624 6,616
1,028.469 1,028,469 1,062,027 (33,558)
1,868,858 1,868,858 1,731,604 137.254
561,342 561,342 558,374 2,968
820,107 820,107 629,122 190,985
568,081 568,081 548,613 19,468
167,771 167,771 158,231 9,540
2.117.301 2,117,301 1,894.340 222,961
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Variance with
Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts GAAP Posltive
riginal Final Basis {Negative)
Expenditures
Public safety
Administration $ 818,818 $ 818,818 822,640 $ (3,822)
Animal control 363,786 363,786 366,645 (2,859
Criminal investigation division 1,532,281 1,532,281 1,509,594 22,687
Community services 678,243 678,243 665,057 13,186
Code compliance - - 76,331 (76,331)
SWAT 19,805 15,805 16,014 3,791
Patrol 4,385,220 4,385,220 4,379,401 5,819
Traffic 587,694 587,694 455,065 132,629
Dispatch 688,943 688,943 646,381 42,562
Jail 841,231 841,231 797,257 43,974
Records 600,422 600,422 572,015 28.407
Fire operations 6,488,316 6,488,316 6,491,450 (3,134)
Total public safety 17,004,759 17,004,759 16,797,850 206,909
Leisure services
Library 1,290,910 1,290,910 1,235,054 55,856
Parks 1,265,148 1,265,148 1,198,091 67,057
Recreation 804,122 804,122 738,849 65,273
Senior citizens 220,125 220,125 202,191 17,934
Splash 411,198 411,198 369,889 41,309
Total leisure services 3,991,503 3,991,503 3,744,074 247,429
Capital outlay - - 692,728 (692,728)
Debt service - 102,019 (102,019)
Total expenditures 27,902,491 27,902,491 27,659,321 243,170
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (3,560,380) (3,560,380) (2,287,005) 787,035
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 2,564,921 2,564,921 2,564,921 .
Sale of capital asset . - 77 77
Lease purchase proceeds - - 228,370 228,370
Insurance proceeds - 45,073 45,073
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,564,921 2,564,921 2,838,441 273,520
Net Changes in Fund Balance (995,459) (995,459) 551,436 1,060,555
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 5,786,353 5,786,353 5,786,353 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 4,790,804 8 4,790,894 6,337,789 $ 1,546,895
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City of Bedford, Texas

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Economic Development 4B Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Varlance with

Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes, penalty and interest $ 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000 $ 2,407,357 $ 107,357
Interest 10,000 10,000 4,291 (5.709)
Total revenues 2,310,000 2,310,000 2,411,648 101,648
Expenditures
Current
Public services 561,120 361,120 464,140 96,980
Capital outlay 157.000 157,000 156,832 168
Total expenditures 718,120 718,120 620,972 97,148
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 1,591,880 1,591,880 1,790,676 198,796
Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1.388,416) (1,388.416) (1,388,416) -
Total other financing sources (uses) {1,388,416) (1,388,416} (1,388,416) -
Net Changes in Fund Balance 203,464 203,464 402,260 198,796
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,501,475 1.501,475 1,501,475
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,704,939 $§ 1,704,939 1,903,735 $ 198,796
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information
September 30, 2013

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted for the General, Debt Service, Court Security, Drug Forfeiture,
Tourism Development, Park Donation, Beautification Commission, Economic
Development and Police Training funds using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The City Council follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

Prior to August 15, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
within any fund. However, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund
must be approved by the City Council after public hearings.

All unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.
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A
NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Fulbright & Jaworski LLP

2200 Ross Avenus, Sukte 2800
Dalias, Texas 75201-2784
United States

Tel +1 214 855 8000
Fax +1 214 855 8200
nortonrosefulbright.com

[Closing Date]

IN REGARD to the authorization and issuance of the “City of Bedford, Texas, General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2014,” dated March 15, 2014, in the principal amount of $

{the “Bonds”), we have examined into their issuance by the City of Bedford, Texas (the “City"),
solely to express legal opinions as to the validity of the Bonds and the exclusion of the interest
on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and for no other purpose. We
have not been requested to investigate or verify, and we neither expressly nor by implication
render herein any opinion concerning, the financial condition or capabilities of the City, the
disclosure of any financial or statistical information or data pertaining to the City and used in the
sale of the Bonds, or the sufficiency of the security for or the value or marketability of the Bonds.

THE BONDS are issued in fully registered form only and in denominations of $5,000 or any
integral muitiple thereof (within a maturity). The Bonds mature on February 1 in each of ihe
years specified in the ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City authorizing the issuance
of the Bonds (the “Ordinance”), unless redeemed prior to maturity in accordance with the terms
stated on the Bonds. The Bonds accrue interest from the dates, at the rates, and in the manner
and interest is payable on the dates, all as provided in the Ordinance.

IN RENDERING THE OPINIONS herein we have examined and rely upon {i) original or certified
copies of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including the Ordinance and an
examination of the initial Bond executed and delivered by the City (which we found to be in due
form and properly executed); (ii} certifications of officers of the City relating to the expected use
and investment of proceeds of the sale of the Bonds and certain other funds of the City and
(iif) other documentation and such matters of law as we deem relevant. In the examination of
the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds, we have assumed the authenticity of all
documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original copies of all documents
submitted to us as certified copies, and the accuracy of the statements contained in such
documents and certifications.

BASED ON OUR EXAMINATIONS, IT IS OUR OPINION that, under the applicable laws of the
United States of America and the State of Texas in force and effect on the date hereof:

1. The Bonds have been duly authorized by the City and, when issued in
compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance, are valid, legally binding and enforceable
obligations of the City payable from an ad valorem tax ievied, within the limits prescribed by law,
upon all taxable property in the City, except to the extent that the enforceability thereof may be
affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights or the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with the general principles of

equity.

Fulbright & Jaworski LLP is a limited liability partnership registered under the laws of Texas. 57651532.1/11312434

Fulbright & Jaworskl LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright Australia, Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright
South Africa (incorporated as Deneys Reltz, Inc.), each of which is a separate legal entity, are members of Norton Rose Fulbright Verein, a Swiss
Verein. Detalls of aach entity, with cartain regulatory information, are at nortonrossfulbright.com. Norton Rose Fulbright Verein helps coordinate the
activitles of the members but does not itself provide legal services to clients.
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NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT
Page 2 of Legal Opinion of Fulbright & Jaworski LLP
Re: “City of Bedford, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014”

2. Pursuant to section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to
the date hereof (the “Code”), and existing regulations, published rulings, and court decisions
thereunder, and assuming continuing compliance after the date hereof by the City with the
provisions of the Ordinance relating to sections 141 through 150 of the Code, interest on the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes (a) will be excludable from the gross income, as defined
in section 61 of the Code, of the owners thereof, and (b) will not be included in computing the
alternative minimum taxable income of individuals or, except as hereinafter described,
corporations. Interest on the Bonds owned by a corporation will be included in such
corporation's adjusted current earnings for purposes of calculating the aiternative minimum
taxable income of such corporations, other than an S corporation, a qualified mutual fund, a real
estate mortgage investment conduit, a real estate investment trust, or a financial asset
securitization investment trust (“FASIT”). A corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income is
the basis on which the altemative minimum tax imposed by section 55 of the Code will be
computed.

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION with respect to any other federal, state, or local tax consequences
under present law or any proposed legislation resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on,
or the acquisition or disposition of, the Bonds. Ownership of tax-exempt obligations such as the
Bonds may result in collateral federal tax consequences to, among others, financial institutions,
life insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, ceriain foreign
corporations doing business in the United States, S corporations with subchapter C earnings
and profits, owners of an interest in a FASIT, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad
Retirement benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for the earned income tax credit, and
taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurmed or continued indebtedness to purchase or
carry, or who have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to, tax-exempt obligations.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are
further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We assume no duty to update or
supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to our
attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective.
Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the Internal
Revenue Service: rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review of
existing law that we deem relevant to such opinions and in reliance upon the representations
and covenants referenced above.

57651532.1/11312434
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Fulbright & Jaworski LLP

2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 2800
Dallas, Texas 75201-2784
United States

Tel +1 214 855 8000
Fax +1 214 855 8200
nortenrosefulbright.com

[Closing Date]

IN REGARD to the authorization and issuance of the “City of Bedford, Texas, Public Property
Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2014,” dated March 15, 2014, in the principal amount of
$ (the “Obligations”), we have examined into their issuance by the City of Bedford,
Texas (the “City”), solely to express legal opinions as to the validity of the Obligations and the
exclusion of the interest on the Obligations from gross income for federal income tax purposes,
and for no other purpose. We have not been requested to investigate or verify, and we neither
expressly nor by implication render herein any opinion concerning, the financial condition or
capabilities of the City, the disclosure of any financial or statistical information or data pertaining
to the City and used in the sale of the Obligations, or the sufficiency of the security for or the
value or marketabllity of the Obligations.

THE OBLIGATIONS are issued in fully registered form only and in denominations of $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof (within a maturity). The Obiigations mature on February 1 in each
of the years specified in the ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City authorizing the
issuance of the Obligations (the “Ordinance”), without right of prior redemption. The Obligations
accrue interest from the dates, at the rates, and in the manner and interest is payable on the
dates, all as provided in the Ordinance.

IN RENDERING THE OPINIONS herein we have examined and rely upon (i} original or certified
copies of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Obligations, including the Ordinance
and an examination of the initial Obligation executed and delivered by the City (which we found
to be in due form and properly executed); (i) certifications of officers of the City relating to the
expected use and investment of proceeds of the sale of the Obligations and certain other funds
of the City and (jii) other documentation and such matters of law as we deem relevant. In the
examination of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Obligations, we have assumed
the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to original copies of
all documents submitted to us as certified copies, and the accuracy of the statements contained
in such documents and certifications.

BASED ON OUR EXAMINATIONS, IT IS OUR OPINION that, under the applicable laws of the
United States of America and the State of Texas in force and effect on the date hereof:

1. The Obligations have been duly authorized by the City and, when issued in
compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance, are valid, legally binding and enforceable
obligations of the City payable from an ad valorem tax levied, within the limits prescribed by law,
upon all taxable property in the City, except to the extent that the enforceability thereof may be
affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights or the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with the general principles of
equity.

Fulbright & Jaworski LLP is a limited fiabllity partrership registered under the laws of Texas. 57651540.1/111312434

Fulbright & Jaworskl LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright Australia, Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP, Norton Rese Fulbright
South Africa (Incorporated as Deneys Reltz, Inc.), each of which is a separate legal entity, are membars of Norton Rose Fulbright Verein, a Swiss
Vergin. Details of each entity, with cartain regulatory information, are at nortonrosefulbright.com. Norton Rose Fulbright Vereln helps coordinate the
activities of the members but does not itself provide legal servicas to clients.
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Re:  “City of Bedford, Texas Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2014”

2. Pursuant to section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to
the date hereof (the “Code"), and existing regulations, published rulings, and court decisions
thereunder, and assuming continuing compliance after the date hereof by the City with the
provisions of the Ordinance relating to sections 141 through 150 of the Code, interest on the
Obligations for federal income tax purposes (a} will be excludable from the gross income, as
defined in section 61 of the Code, of the owners thereof, and (b} will not be included in
computing the alternative minimum taxable income of individuals or, except as hereinafter
described, corporations. Interest on the Obligations owned by a corporation will be included in
such corporation’s adjusted current earnings for purposes of calculating the alternative minimum
taxable income of such corporations, other than an S corporation, a qualified mutual fund, a real
estate mortgage investment conduit, a real estate investment trust, or a financial asset
securitization investment trust (“FASIT"). A corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income is
the basis on which the alternative minimum tax imposed by section 55 of the Code will be
computed.

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION with respect to any other federal, state, or local tax consequences
under present law or any proposed legislation resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on,
or the acquisition or disposition of, the Obligations. Ownership of tax-exempt obligations such
as the Obligations may result in collateral federal tax consequences to, among others, financial
institutions, life insurance companies, property and casualty insurance companies, certain
foreign corporations doing business in the United States, S corporations with subchapter C
earnings and profits, owners of an interest in a FASIT, individual recipients of Social Security or
Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals otherwise qualifying for the eamed income tax credit,
and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or
carry, or who have paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to, tax-exempt obligations.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are
further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We assume no duty to update or
supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to our
attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective.
Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the Internal
Revenue Service; rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review of
existing law that we deem relevant to such opinions and in reliance upon the representations
and covenants referenced above.

57651549.1/11312434
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AGENDA

Clifford Blackwell, CGFO, Director of

PRESENTER: Administrative Services DATE! 03/25/14
Council Mission Area: Be responsive to the needs of the community.
ITEM:

Consider approval of an ordinance and all matters incident and related to the issuance and sale of
$2,300,000 “City of Bedford, Texas Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2014,”
dated March 25, 2014.

City Attorney Review: N/A

City Manager Review:

DISCUSSION:

On February 11, 2014, staff met with the City Council to discuss capital outlays to be purchased
with public property finance contractual obligations (PPFCO). Per the recommendation of the City
Council, a few capital purchases will be funded from cash reserves, while the rest will be financed
using PPFCOs.

This ordinance is authorizing the sale of $2,300,000 in Public PPFCOs to purchase the following
items:

- Emergency vehicle/custom pumper  $625,528
- New World Systems Software $679,140
- Motorola Trunk Radio System $956,786

Standard and Poor’s, the City’s bond rating agency, declared these PPFCOs ‘AA’ with a stable
outlook based on the most recent rating analysis. This rating reaffirms the City’s status based on
strong wealth and income levels, very strong budgetary flexibility with an adjusted available fund
balance of 20.8%, adequate budgetary performance, very strong liquidity providing strong cash
levels to cover debt service and expenditures, and strong management conditions with good
financial management policies and practices.

These contractual obligations will be amortized over a 10-year term. Additionally, it is being sold
simultaneously with the Series 2014 General Obligation Bonds to achieve savings in cost of
issuance. The cost of issuing both obligations should not exceed $80,000, whereas, selling
separately would cost more than $95,000.

Due to the fact these obligations are competitively bid, the payment schedules, along with sections
of the ordinance cannot be finalized until the bids are officially opened and accepted; which is on
March 25, 2014.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the following motion:

Approval of an ordinance and all matters incident and related to the issuance and sale of $2,300,000
“City of Bedford, Texas Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2014,” dated March
25, 2014.




AGENDA

FISCAL IMPACT:

Amount of issue $2,300,000
To be paid from revenue by Debt Fund: 91.46%
Water Fund: 8.54%
$0.0038 per $100 AV

Tax Rate impact:

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance

Copy of Preliminary Official Statement (POS) —
(attached to previous item)

Page 2 of 2
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF “CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS, PUBLIC PROPERTY
FINANCE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, SERIES 20147,
SPECIFYING THE TERMS OF SUCH CONTRACTS; MAKING
PROVISIONS FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF; AND RESOLVING
OTHER MATTERS INCIDENT AND RELATED TO THE EXECUTION,
PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT OF SUCH CONTRACTS, INCLUDING
THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR
AGREEMENT AND THE APPROVAL AND DISTRIBUTION OF A
PRELIMINARY  OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND AN OFFICIAL
STATEMENT PERTAINING THERETO; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Subchapter A of Chapter 271,
as amended (the “Public Property Finance Act”), the City Council is authorized and empowered
to execute, perform and make payments under contracts with any person for the use,
acquisition or purchase of personal property; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Public Property Finance Act, the
City Council hereby finds and determines that the acquisition, use or purchase of certain items
of personal property identified in Exhibit A attached hereto, or such other personal property,
appliances, equipment, furnishings, or interests therein, considered by the City Council to be
necessary, useful and/or appropriate for purposes of the City, should be financed under and
pursuant to one or more contractual obligations to be executed and delivered on the terms and
in the form hereinafter prescribed;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BEDFORD, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Contract - Authorization - Contract Amount - Property ldentification.
Contracts, aggregating in amount $2,300,000 (the “Aggregate Contract Amount”) and entitled
“City of Bedford, Texas, Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2014” (the
“Contractual Obligations” or the “Contracts”) shall be and are hereby authorized to be executed
and delivered with the Initial Contracting Party, and the assigns thereof, to finance the use or
the purchase or other acquisition of personal property identified in Exhibit A attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference as a part of this Ordinance for all purposes, or such other
personal property, appliances, equipment, furnishings, or interests therein, considered by the
City Council to be necessary, useful and/or appropriate for purposes of the City (the “Property”);
all in accordance with and pursuant to authority conferred by the laws of the State of Texas,
particularly the Public Property Finance Act.

SECTION 2: Fully Registered Form - Contract Date - Authorized Amounts - Installment
Payments - Interest Rate. The Contracts shall be made, executed and delivered in fully
registered form, bear a date of March 15, 2014 (the “Contract Date”), and, except for the Initial
Contract authorized in Section 8 hereof, shall be in authorized amounts of $5,000 or any integral
multiple thereof (not to exceed an Installment Amount), and the Aggregate Contract Amount
shall be payable in annual installments (the “Installment Amounts”) on February 1 in the
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amounts and interest shall accrue on such Installment Amounts at the per annum rate(s) as
follows:

Installment Interest

Payment Date Amount Rate(s)
2015 $ 210,000
2016 215,000
2017 220,000
2018 220,000
2019 225,000
2020 230,000
2021 235,000
2022 240,000
2023 250,000
2024 255,000

Interest on the unpaid Installment Amounts shall accrue from the Contract Date
(calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) and such interest shall be
payable on August 1 and February 1 in each year, commencing August 1, 2014, until maturity.

SECTION 3: Terms of Payment - Paying Agent/Registrar. The Installment Amounts on
each Contract and the interest thereon shall be payable only to the registered contracting party
or person (hereinafter called the “Contracting Party”) appearing on the registration and transfer
books maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar and such Installment Amounts and the interest
payable thereon shall be payable in coin or currency of the United States of America, which at
the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts, and without
exchange or collection charges to the Contracting Party.

The selection and appointment of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
Dallas, Texas to serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Contracts is hereby approved and
confirmed. Books and records relating to the registration, payment, exchange and transfer of
the Contracts (the “Contract Register”) shall at all times be kept and maintained on behalf of the
City by the Paying Agent/Registrar, all as provided herein, in accordance with the terms and
provisions of a “Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement,” substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit B, and such reasonable rules and regulations as the Paying Agent/Registrar and the
City may prescribe. The Mayor and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute and deliver
such Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement in connection with the delivery of the Contracts. The
City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at all times until the Contracts
are paid and discharged, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a bank, trust
company, financial institution or other entity qualified to perform the duties and services of
Paying Agent/Registrar. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Contracts, the
City agrees to promptly cause a written notice thereof to be sent to each Contracting Party by
United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, which notice shall also give the address of the
new Paying Agent/Registrar.

The Installment Amounts shall be payable when due only upon the presentation and
surrender of the Contracts to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its designated offices, initially in
East Syracuse, New York, or, with respect to a successor Paying Agent/Registrar, at the
designated offices of such successor (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”). Interest on
the Installment Amounts shall be paid to the Contracting Parties which appear in the Contract
Register at the close of business on the Record Date (the last business day of the month next
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preceding each interest payment date) and shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar (i) by
check sent United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of the Contracting
Party recorded in the Contract Register or (ii) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the Contracting Party. If the date
for the payment of an Installment Amount or interest thereon shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a
legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city where the Designhated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or
executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which
is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking institutions are authorized to
close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original
date payment was due.

In the event of a nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30)
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be
established by the Paying Agent/ Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest
have been received. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of
the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at
least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States Mail, first class
postage prepaid, to the address of each Contracting Party appearing on the Contract Register
at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such
notice.

SECTION 4: Redemption. The Contractual Obligations are not subject to redemption
prior to maturity.

SECTION 5: Assignment - Registration - Transfer - Exchange of Contracts. The
Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain, record, and maintain in the Contract Register the name and
address of each and every Contracting Party to a Contract executed and delivered under and
pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance, or if appropriate, the nominee thereof. Any
Contract may be assigned, transferred or exchanged for Contracts of other authorized amounts
by the Contracting Party, in person or by his duly authorized agent, upon surrender of such
Contract to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument of
assignment and transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the Contracting Party or by
his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.

Any Contract to be assigned and transferred shall be surrendered to the Paying
Agent/Registrar and, upon its receipt and cancellation, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register
and deliver, in the name of the designated assignee or transferee, one or more new Contracts
of authorized amounts and, except for the assignment and transfer of the Initial Contract by the
Initial Contracting Party, having the same Payment Date and of a like Installment Amount as the
Contract or Contracts surrendered for assignment and transfer.

Contracts may be exchanged for Contracts of other authorized amounts and having the
same Payment Date, bearing the same rate of interest and of like aggregate Installment Amount
as the Contracts surrendered for exchange, upon surrender of the Contracts to be exchanged to
the Paying Agent/Registrar. Whenever any Contracts are surrendered for exchange, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver new Contracts to the Contracting Party requesting the
exchange.

When a Contract has been duly assigned and transferred or exchanged, the new
Contract or Contracts registered in such assignment and transfer or exchange shall be delivered
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to the Contracting Party at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar or sent by United States Mail, first class, postage prepaid to the Contracting
Party, and, upon the registration and delivery thereof, such Contracts shall be the valid
obligations of the City, evidencing the same obligation to pay, and entitled to the same benefits
under this Ordinance, as the Contracts surrendered in such assignment and transfer or
exchange.

All transfers or exchanges of Contracts pursuant to this Section shall be made without
expense or service charge to the Contracting Party, except as otherwise herein provided, and
except that the Paying Agent/Registrar shall require payment by the Contracting Party
requesting such transfer or exchange of any tax or other governmental charges required to be
paid with respect to such transfer or exchange.

Contracts cancelled by reason of an exchange or transfer pursuant to the provisions
hereof are hereby defined to be “Predecessor Contracts,” evidencing all or a portion, as the
case may be, of the same obligation to pay evidenced by the new Contract or Contracts
registered and delivered in the exchange or transfer therefor. Additionally, the term
“Predecessor Contracts” shall include any mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Contract for
which a replacement Contract has been registered and delivered in lieu thereof pursuant to the
provisions of Section 11 hereof and such new replacement Contract shall be deemed to
evidence the same obligation as the mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Contract.

SECTION 6: Book-Entry-Only Transfers _and Transactions.  Notwithstanding the
provisions contained herein relating to the payment of and transfer/exchange of the Contracts,
the City hereby approves and authorizes the use of “Book-Entry-Only” securities clearance,
settlement and transfer system provided by The Depository Trust Company (“DTC"), a limited
purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, in accordance with
the requirements and procedures identified in the Blanket Letter of Representations, by and
between the City and DTC (the “Depository Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Depository Agreement and the rules of DTC, the Contracts shall be
deposited with DTC, who shall hold said Contracts for its participants (the “DTC Participants”).
While the Contracts are held by DTC under the Depository Agreement, the Contracting Party of
the Contracts on the Contract Register for all purposes, including payment and notices, shall be
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, notwithstanding the ownership of each actual purchaser or
owner of each Contract (the “Beneficial Owners”) being recorded in the records of DTC and
DTC Participants.

In the event DTC determines to discontinue serving as securities depository for the
Contracts or otherwise ceases to provide book-entry clearance and settlement of securities
transactions in general or the City determines that DTC is incapable of properly discharging its
duties as securities depository for the Contracts, the City covenants and agrees with the
Contracting Parties of the Contracts to cause Contracts to be printed in definitive form and
provide for the Contract certificates to be issued and delivered to DTC Participants and
Beneficial Owners, as the case may be. Thereafter, the Contracts in definitive form shall be
assigned, transferred and exchanged on the Contract Register maintained by the Paying
Agent/Registrar and payment of such Contracts shall be made in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 3 and 5 hereof.

SECTION 7: Execution - Registration. The Contracts shall be executed on behalf of
the City by the Mayor, with the seal of the City reproduced or impressed thereon and
countersigned by the City Secretary. The signature of such officers on the Contracts may be
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manual or facsimile. Contracts bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of the persons
holding such offices on the Contract Date shall be deemed to be duly executed on behalf of the
City, notwithstanding a change in persons holding such offices at the time of delivery of the
Contracts to the Initial Contracting Party and with respect to Contracts delivered in subsequent
assignments and transfers or exchanges.

No Contract shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Ordinance, or be valid or
obligatory for any purpose, unless the registration certificate appearing on the Contracts to be
signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas (substantially in the form
provided in Section 9(c) and/or the Paying Agent/Registrar (substantially in the form provided in
Section 9(d), either or both such certificates, as the case may be, are manually executed by an
authorized officer, employee or representative of the Comptroller of Public Accounts and/or the
Paying Agent/Registrar, and such registration certificate, either or both, upon any Contract when
duly executed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts and/or the Paying Agent/Registrar, as the
case may be, shall be conclusive evidence, and the only evidence, that such Contract has been
duly certified, registered and delivered.

SECTION 8: Initial Contract(s). The Contracts herein authorized may be initially
executed and delivered either (i) as a single fully registered Contract in the Aggregate Contract
Amount with Installment Amounts to become due and payable as provided in Section 2 hereof
and numbered T-1 or (ii) as multiple fully registered Contracts, being one Contract for each
Payment Date in the applicable Installment Amount and denomination and to be numbered
consecutively from T-1 upward (hereinafter called the “Initial Contract(s)” and, in either case, the
Initial Contract(s) shall be registered in the name of the Initial Contracting Party or the designee
thereof. The Initial Contract(s) shall be the Contracts submitted to the Office of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas for approval, certified and registered by the Office of the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and delivered to the Initial Contracting
Party. Any time after the delivery of the Initial Contract(s), the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant
to written instructions from the Initial Contracting Party, shall cancel the Initial Contract(s) and
exchange therefor Contracts of authorized amounts and in Installment Amounts with Payment
Dates and bearing applicable interest rates for transfer and delivery to the Contracting Parties
named at the addresses identified therefor; all pursuant to and in accordance with such written
instructions from the initial Contracting Party and such other information and documentation as
the Paying Agent/Registrar may reasonably require.

SECTION 9: Forms.

(@) Forms Generally. The Contracts, the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Registration Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar,
and the form of Assignment to be printed on the Contracts, shall be substantially in the forms
set forth in this Section with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other
variations as are permitted or required by this Ordinance and may have such letters, numbers,
or other marks of identification and such legends and endorsements (including insurance
legends in the event the Contracts, or any installment amounts thereof, are purchased with
insurance and any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as may, consistently herewith,
be determined by the officers executing and delivering such Contracts as evidenced by their
execution.

The Contracts, including the Initial Contract, shall be printed, lithographed, engraved,
typewritten, photocopied or otherwise reproduced in any other similar manner, all as determined
by the officers executing such Contracts as evidenced by their execution.
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(b) General Contract Form.

REGISTERED REGISTERED:
NO. $

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TEXAS
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS
PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION
SERIES 2014

Contract Date: Interest Rate: Payment Date: CUSIP No.:
March 15, 2014 %

Contracting Party:
Installment Amount:

The City of Bedford (hereinafter referred to as the “City”), a body corporate and
municipal corporation in the County of Tarrant, State of Texas, hereby agrees and promises to
pay to the Contracting Party named above, or the registered assigns thereof, the Installment
Amount hereinabove stated on the Payment Date specified above (without right of prior
redemption) and to pay interest on such unpaid Installment Amount from the interest payment
date next preceding the “Registration Date” of this Contract appearing below (unless this
Contract bears a “Registration Date” as of an interest payment date, in which case it shall bear
interest from such date, or unless the “Registration Date” of this Contract is prior to the initial
interest payment date in which case it shall bear interest from the Contract Date) at the per
annum rate of interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months; such interest being payable on August 1 and February 1 in each year,
commencing August 1, 2014, until maturity. The Installment Amount is payable on the Payment
Date noted above to the Contracting Party only upon presentation and surrender of this
Contract to the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar executing
the registration certificate appearing hereon, or its successor. Interest is payable to the
Contracting Party of this obligation (or one or more Predecessor Contracts, as defined in the
Ordinance hereinafter referenced) who appears on the “Contract Register” maintained by the
Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which is the last business
day of the month next preceding each interest payment date, and interest shall be paid by the
Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the
address of such Contracting Party recorded in the Contract Register or by such other method,
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the
Contracting Party. If the date for the payment of an Installment Amount or interest thereon shall
be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city where the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by
law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding
day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking institutions are
authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made
on the original date payment was due. The Installment Amount of this Contract and interest
thereon shall be paid without exchange or collection charges to the Contracting Party and in any
coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for
the payment of public and private debts.
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This Contract is one of a number of contracts aggregating in amount $2,300,000 (herein
referred to as the “Contracts”), executed and delivered to finance the acquisition, use or
purchase of personal property, under and in strict conformity with the Constitution and laws of
the State of Texas, particularly the Public Property Finance Act (Texas Local Government Code,
Subchapter A of Chapter 271, as amended) and pursuant to an Ordinance adopted by the City
Council of the City (herein referred to as the “Ordinance”).

This Contract is not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

This Contract is an obligation of the City payable from the pledged proceeds of an ad
valorem tax levied, within the limitations prescribed by law, upon all taxable property in the City.
Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the
Contracting Party by the acceptance hereof hereby agrees, for definitions of terms; the
description of and the nature and extent of the taxes pledged for the payment of the Contracts;
the terms and conditions relating to the assignment and transfer of this Contract; the conditions
upon which the Ordinance may be amended or supplemented with or without the consent of the
Contracting Parties; the rights, duties, and obligations of the City and the Paying
Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions upon which this Contract may be discharged at or
prior to its Payment Date, and the obligation evidenced by the Contracts cease to exist as an
obligation of the City; and for other terms and provisions contained therein. Capitalized terms
used herein have the meanings assigned in the Ordinance.

This Contract, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be assigned
and transferred on the Contract Register only upon its presentation and surrender at the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, with the Assignment hereon
duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the
Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by, the registered party hereof, or his duly authorized
agent. When a transfer on the Contract Register occurs, one or more new fully registered
Contracts with the same Payment Date, in authorized amounts, bearing the same rate of
interest, and of the same Installment Amount will be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar to
the designated assignee or assignees.

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the
registered party whose name appears on the Contract Register (i) on the Record Date as the
Contracting Party entitled to payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this
Contract as the Contracting Party entitled to payment of the Installment Amounts on the
Payment Date and (iii) on any other date as the Contracting Party to notify for all other
purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, shall be
affected by notice to the contrary. In the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled
payment date and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a
“Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for
the payment of such interest have been received. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the
scheduled payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special
Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by
United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Contracting Party
appearing on the Contract Register at the close of business on the last business day next
preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

It is hereby certified, recited, represented and declared that the City is a body corporate
and political subdivision duly organized and legally existing under and by virtue of the
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Constitution and laws of the State of Texas; that the execution and delivery of the Contracts is
duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions and things required to exist and be done
precedent to and in the execution and delivery of the Contracts to render the same lawful and
valid obligations of the City have been properly done, have happened and have been performed
in regular and due time, form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State
of Texas, and the Ordinance; and that due provision has been made for the payment of the
Contracts and interest thereon as aforestated. In case any provision in this Contract shall be
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining
provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. The terms and provisions of
this Contract and the Ordinance shall be construed in accordance with and shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Texas.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City has caused this Contract to be
duly executed under the official seal of the City as of the Contract Date.

CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Secretary
(City Seal)

(© Form of Registration Certificate of Comptroller of Public Accounts to appear on
Initial Contract(s) only.

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER )
) REGISTER NO.
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS )

| HEREBY CERTIFY that this Contract has been examined, certified as to validity and
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this

Comptroller of Public Accounts
of the State of Texas

(SEAL)
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(d) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar to appear on definitive Contracts.

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

This Contract has been duly delivered and registered under the provisions of the
within-mentioned Ordinance; the contract or contracts initially executed and delivered by the
City having been approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying Agent/Registrar.

The designated offices of the Paying Agent/Registrar in East Syracuse, New York is the
“Designated Payment/Transfer Office” for this Contract.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., Dallas, Texas,
as Paying Agent/Registrar

Registration date:

By:

Authorized Signature

(e) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto (Print
or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee:)
(Social Security or other identifying number):
the within Contract and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints

attorney to transfer the within Contract on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power
of substitution in the premises.

DATED:

NOTICE: The signature on this
Sighature guaranteed: assignment must correspond with the
name of the contracting party as it
appears on the face of the within Contract
in every particular.
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) The Initial Contract shall be in the form set forth in paragraph (b) of this Section,
except that the form of the single fully reqgistered Initial Contract shall be modified as follows:

REGISTERED REGISTERED:
NO. T-1 $2,300,000

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TEXAS
CITY OF BEDFORD, TEXAS
PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION
SERIES 2014

Contract Date: March 15, 2014
Contracting Party:
Contract Amount: TWO MILLION THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS

The City of Bedford (hereinafter referred to as the “City”), a body corporate and
municipal corporation in the County of Tarrant, State of Texas, hereby agrees and promises to
pay to the order of the Contracting Party named above, or the registered assigns thereof, the
Contract Amount hereinabove stated on the Payment Dates and in Installment Amounts in
accordance with the following schedule:

Payment Installment Interest
Date Amount Rate(s)

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 2 hereof)

(without right of prior redemption) and to pay interest on such unpaid annual Installment
Amounts from the Contract Date at the per annum rate(s) of interest specified above computed
on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest being payable on August
1 and February 1 in each year, commencing August 1, 2014, until maturity. The Installment
Amounts are payable on the Payment Dates noted above to the Contracting Party named above
or the assigns thereof by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas
(the “Paying Agent/Registrar”), upon its presentation and surrender at its designated offices,
initially in East Syracuse, New York, or, with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at
the designated office of such successor (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”). Interest is
payable to the Contracting Party whose name appears on the “Contract Register” maintained by
the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which is the last
business day of the month next preceding each interest payment date, and interest shall be paid
by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent United States Malil, first class postage prepaid, to
the address of the Contracting Party recorded in the Contract Register or by such other method,
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the
Contracting Party. If the date for the payment of an Installment Amount or interest thereon shall
be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city where the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by
law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding
day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking institutions are
authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made
on the original date payment was due. The Installment Amounts of this Contract and interest
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thereon shall be paid without exchange or collection charges to the Contracting Party and in any
coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for
the payment of public and private debts.

SECTION 10: Levy of Taxes. To provide for the payment of the Installment Amounts to
become due and payable and the payment of the interest thereon, there is hereby levied, and
there shall be annually assessed and collected in due time, form, and manner, a tax on all
taxable property in the City, within the limitations prescribed by law, and such tax hereby levied
on each one hundred dollars’ valuation of taxable property in the City shall be at a rate from
year to year as will be ample and sufficient to provide funds each year to pay (i) the Installment
Amounts to become due and payable or an amount equal to 2% of the Aggregate Contract
Amount (whichever is the greater) and (ii) the accrued interest on the Installment Amounts to
become due and payable; full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection.
Full, complete and accurate books and records relating to the receipt and disbursement of taxes
levied, assessed and collected for and on account of the Contracts shall be kept and maintained
by the City at all times while the Contracts are Outstanding, and the taxes collected annually for
the payment of the Contracts shall be deposited to the credit of a “Special 2014 Contracts Fund”
(the “Sinking Fund”) maintained on the records of the City and at an official depository of the
City’s funds; and such tax hereby levied, and to be assessed and collected annually, is hereby
pledged to the payment of the Contracts.

The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Secretary, City Manager, and Director of Administrative
Services of the City, individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to cause to be
transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from funds on deposit in the Sinking Fund, amounts
sufficient to fully pay and discharge promptly each Installment Amount and interest on the
Contracts as the same accrues or becomes due and payable; such transfer of funds to be made
in such manner as will cause collected funds to be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar on
or before each Payment Date and each interest payment date for the Contracts.

SECTION 11: Mutilated - Destroyed - Lost and Stolen Contracts. In case a Contract
shall be mutilated, or destroyed, lost or stolen, the Paying Agent/Registrar may execute and
deliver a replacement Contract of like form and tenor, and in the same authorized amount and
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and substitution for such
mutilated Contract, or in lieu of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost or stolen Contract,
only upon the approval of the City and after (i) the filing by the Contracting Party with the Paying
Agent/Registrar of evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar of the destruction, loss or
theft of such Contract, and of the authenticity of the ownership thereof and (ii) the furnishing to
the Paying Agent/Registrar of indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the City and the
Paying Agent/Registrar harmless. All expenses and charges associated with such indemnity
and with the preparation, execution and delivery of a replacement Contract shall be borne by
the Contracting Party of the Contract mutilated, or destroyed, lost or stolen.

Every replacement Contract issued pursuant to this Section shall be a valid and binding
obligation, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and ratably with all
other Outstanding Contracts; notwithstanding the enforceability of payment by anyone of the
destroyed, lost, or stolen Contracts.

SECTION 12: Satisfaction of Obligation of City. If the City shall pay or cause to be paid,
or there shall otherwise be paid to the Contracting Parties, the Installment Amounts, together
with the accrued interest thereon, at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Ordinance,
then the pledge of taxes levied under this Ordinance and all covenants, agreements, and other

57733413.3/11312434 11



COMMUNIQUE AGENDA

obligations of the City to the Contracting Parties shall thereupon cease, terminate, and be
discharged and satisfied.

The Contracts shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect
expressed above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in full the Installment Amounts
as the same shall become due and payable on the Payment Dates, together with all interest due
thereon, shall have been irrevocably deposited with and held in trust by the Paying
Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, or (ii) Government Securities shall have been
irrevocably deposited in trust with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent,
which Government Securities have been certified by an independent accounting firm to mature
as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will insure the availability,
without reinvestment, of sufficient money, together with any moneys deposited therewith, if any,
to pay when due the Installment Amounts and accrued interest on and prior to each Payment
Date. The City covenants that no deposit of moneys or Government Securities will be made
under this Section and no use made of any such deposit which would cause the Contracts to be
treated as “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, or regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/ Registrar, or an authorized escrow
agent, and all income from Government Securities held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar,
or an authorized escrow agent, pursuant to this Section which is in excess of the amounts
required for the payment of the Contracts in accordance with the defeasance provisions shall be
remitted to the City or deposited as directed by the City. Notwithstanding the above and
foregoing, any remittance of funds from the Paying Agent/Registrar to the City shall be subject
to any applicable unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas.

The term “Government Securities” shall mean (i) direct noncallable obligations of the
United States of America, including obligations the principal of and interest on which are
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (i) noncallable obligations of an
agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations unconditionally guaranteed
or insured by an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America and, on the date of
their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, (iii) noncallable obligations
of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that
have been refunded and that, on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the City, are rated
as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or
its equivalent and (iv) any other then authorized securities or obligations that may be used to
defease obligations such as the Contracts under the then applicable laws of the State of Texas.

SECTION 13: Ordinance a Contract - Amendments - Outstanding Contracts. This
Ordinance shall constitute an agreement with the Contracting Parties from time to time, be
binding on the City, and shall not be amended or repealed by the City so long as any of the
Contracts remain Outstanding except as permitted in this Section and in Section 28 hereof. The
City may, without the consent of or notice to any Contracting Parties, from time to time and at
any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the
Contracting Parties, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or
omission herein. In addition, the City may, with the consent of Contracting Parties to Contracts
which are Outstanding and represent a majority of the aggregate Installment Amounts affected
thereby, amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that,
without the consent of Contracting Parties of all Contracts which are Outstanding, no such
amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the time or times of payment of the
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Installment Amounts and interest on the Contracts, reduce the Installment Amounts, change the
rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the Contracts,
(2) give any preference to any Contract over any other Contract, or (3) reduce the aggregate
Installment Amount of Contracts required to be held for consent to any such amendment,
addition, or rescission.

The term “Outstanding” when used in this Ordinance with respect to Contracts means,
as of the date of determination, all Contracts theretofore delivered and registered under this
Ordinance, except:

Q) those Contracts cancelled or delivered to the Paying
Agent/Registrar for cancellation;

(2) those Contracts for which the Installment Amounts and all interest
payable thereon has been paid or is deemed to be fully paid in accordance with
the provisions of Section 12 hereof; and

3) those mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Contracts for which
replacement obligations have been registered and delivered in lieu thereof as
provided in Section 11 hereof.

SECTION 14: Covenants to Maintain Tax-Exempt Status.

@) Definitions. When used in this Section, the following terms have the following
meanings:

“Closing Date” means the date on which the Contracts are first
authenticated and delivered to the initial purchasers against payment therefor.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all
legislation, if any, effective on or before the Closing Date.

“Computation Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the
Regulations.

“Gross Proceeds” means any proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(b)
of the Regulations, and any replacement proceeds as defined in Section
1.148-1(c) of the Regulations, of the Contracts.

“Investment” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the
Regulations.

“Nonpurpose Investment” means any investment property, as defined in
section 148(b) of the Code, in which Gross Proceeds of the Contracts are
invested and which is not acquired to carry out the governmental purposes of the
Contracts.

“Rebate Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the
Regulations.
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“Regulations” means any proposed, temporary, or final Income Tax
Regulations issued pursuant to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code,
and 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, which are applicable to the
Contracts. Any reference to any specific Regulation shall also mean, as
appropriate, any proposed, temporary or final Income Tax Regulation designed
to supplement, amend or replace the specific Regulation referenced.

“Yield” of (1) any Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-5
of the Regulations; and (2) the Contracts has the meaning set forth in Section
1.148-4 of the Regulations.

(b) Not to Cause Interest to Become Taxable. The City shall not use, permit the use
of, or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other amounts (or any property the acquisition,
construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with Gross
Proceeds) in a manner which if made or omitted, respectively, would cause the interest on any
Contract to become includable in the gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, of the
owner thereof for federal income tax purposes. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
unless and until the City receives a written opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the field
of municipal bond law to the effect that failure to comply with such covenant will not adversely
affect the exemption from federal income tax of the interest on any Contract, the City shall
comply with each of the specific covenants in this Section.

(©) No Private Use or Private Payments. Except as permitted by section 141 of the
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall at all times prior to the last
Installment Amount of Contracts:

Q) exclusively own, operate and possess all property the acquisition,
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or
indirectly with Gross Proceeds of the Contracts, and not use or permit the use of
such Gross Proceeds (including all contractual arrangements with terms different
than those applicable to the general public) or any property acquired, constructed
or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any activity carried on by any person or
entity (including the United States or any agency, department and instrumentality
thereof) other than a state or local government, unless such use is solely as a
member of the general public; and

(2) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other
payment by any person or entity who is treated as using Gross Proceeds of the
Contracts or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which
is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly with such Gross Proceeds,
other than taxes of general application within the City or interest earned on
investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending application for their
intended purposes.

(d) No Private Loan. Except to the extent permitted by section 141 of the Code and
the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of the Contracts
to make or finance loans to any person or entity other than a state or local government. For
purposes of the foregoing covenant, such Gross Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a
person or entity if: (1) property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds is
sold or leased to such person or entity in a transaction which creates a debt for federal income
tax purposes; (2) capacity in or service from such property is committed to such person or entity
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under a take-or-pay, output or similar contract or arrangement; or (3) indirect benefits, or
burdens and benefits of ownership, of such Gross Proceeds or any property acquired,
constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds are otherwise transferred in a transaction
which is the economic equivalent of a loan.

(e) Not to Invest at Higher Yield. Except to the extent permitted by section 148 of
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not at any time prior to the
final Installment Amount of the Contracts directly or indirectly invest Gross Proceeds in any
Investment (or use Gross Proceeds to replace money so invested), if as a result of such
investment the Yield from the Closing Date of all Investments acquired with Gross Proceeds (or
with money replaced thereby), whether then held or previously disposed of, exceeds the Yield of
the Contracts.

() Not Federally Guaranteed. Except to the extent permitted by section 149(b) of
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any
action which would cause the Contracts to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of
section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder.

(9) Information Report. The City shall timely file the information required by section
149(e) of the Code with the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038-G or such other form and
in such place as the Secretary may prescribe.

(h) Rebate of Arbitrage Profits. Except to the extent otherwise provided in section
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder:

Q) The City shall account for all Gross Proceeds (including all
receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account
separately and apart from all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and
investments thereof) and shall retain all records of accounting for at least six
years after the day on which the last Outstanding Contract is discharged.
However, to the extent permitted by law, the City may commingle Gross
Proceeds of the Contracts with other money of the City, provided that the City
separately accounts for each receipt and expenditure of Gross Proceeds and the
obligations acquired therewith.

(2 Not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City shall
calculate the Rebate Amount in accordance with rules set forth in section 148(f)
of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. The City shall maintain
such calculations with its official transcript of proceedings relating to the issuance
of the Contracts until six years after the final Computation Date.

3) As additional consideration for the purchase of the Contracts by
the Purchasers and the loan of the money represented thereby and in order to
induce such purchase by measures designed to insure the excludability of the
interest thereon from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income
tax purposes, the City shall pay to the United States out of the Interest and
Sinking Fund or its general fund, as permitted by applicable Texas statute,
regulation or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the amount
that when added to the future value of previous rebate payments made for the
Contracts equals (i) in the case of a Final Computation Date as defined in
Section 1.148-3(e)(2) of the Regulations, one hundred percent (100%) of the
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Rebate Amount on such date; and (ii) in the case of any other Computation Date,
ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount on such date. In all cases, the
rebate payments shall be made at the times, in the installments, to the place and
in the manner as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the
Regulations and rulings thereunder, and shall be accompanied by Form 8038-T
or such other forms and information as is or may be required by Section 148(f) of
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder.

(4) The City shall exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no
errors are made in the calculations and payments required by paragraphs (2) and
(3), and if an error is made, to discover and promptly correct such error within a
reasonable amount of time thereafter (and in all events within one hundred eighty
(180) days after discovery of the error), including payment to the United States of
any additional Rebate Amount owed to it, interest thereon, and any penalty
imposed under Section 1.148 3(h) of the Regulations.

@ Elections. The City hereby directs and authorizes the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem,
City Manager, Director of Administrative Services and City Secretary, either individually or
jointly, to make elections permitted or required pursuant to the provisions of the Code or the
Regulations, as they deem necessary or appropriate in connection with the Contracts, in the
Certificate as to Tax Exemption or similar or other appropriate certificate, form or document.

()] Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations. In accordance with the provisions of
paragraph (3) of subsection (b) of Section 265 of th